
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting

Wednesday - October 4, 2017

2:00 PM

MHSC Classrooms 1, 2 & 3



I. Call to Order
Richard Mathey

 

 

II. Minutes
Richard Mathey

(For Approval)

 

 

Audit Financial Statement.pdf
 
 

IV. FY17 Audit
Darryn McGarvey, CliftonLarsonAllen

(For Approval)

 

1. Joint Conference Charter
 

(For Approval)

Joint Conference Committee Charter October 4
2017.docx

B. Committee Charters
 

 

A. CEO
Richard Mathey

 

VIII. Old Business
Richard Mathey

 

A. Pledge of Allegiance
Richard Mathey

 

Minutes for September 6 2017.docx
 
 

III. Community Communication
Richard Mathey

 

Audit Board Packet FY17.pdf
 
 

V. Medical Staff Report
Dr. David Dansie, Medical Staff President
No written report included in the meeting packet.

 

VI. Executive Session
Richard Mathey
(W.S. Section 16-4-405(a)(ii))

 

VII. Credentials
Richard Mathey
Confidential information available for Board review on the
portal.

(For Approval)

Meeting Book - Wednesday - October 4, 2017 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting

Board Meeting Agenda

Page 7

Page 14

Page 50

Page 80

Page 2 of 335



 

2. Building & Grounds Charter
 

(For Approval)

 

3. Quality Committee Charter
 

(For Approval)

 
 

Building Grounds tardoni.docx
 
 

Quality Charter final draft 2017.docx
 
 

 

D. Bylaws
Richard Mathey

(For Approval)

4. Finance & Audit Committee Charter & Spending
Authority Matrix
 
Work continues. No update included in the
meeting packet.

 

C. Contract Review & Approval Policy
Suzan Campbell, Chief Legal Exec/Gen Counsel
Work continues. No update included in the meeting
packet.

 

IX. New Business
Richard Mathey

 

 

1. Building & Grounds Committee
Taylor Jones

 

2. Foundation Board
Marty Kelsey

 

meeting book - tuesday - september 12, 2017
building & grounds committee meeting.pdf
 
 

A. Committees Consent Agenda
Richard Mathey

(For Approval)

XI. Committee Reports
Richard Mathey

 

Bylaws Draft October 2017.pdf
 
 

A. Mission Statement & Strategic Plan
Richard Mathey

 

X. Interim Chief Executive Officer Report
Irene Richardson, CFO & Interim CEO
No written report included in the meeting packet.

 

Page 81

Page 83

Page 86

Page 104

Page 3 of 335



 

 

 

September 2017 Agenda.docx
 
 
Sept 2017 FDN Board Packet.pdf
 
 
August 2017 Meeting Notes.pdf
 
 

 

 

 

Requests and Budget Update.pdf
 
 
FY 18_7.pdf
 
 

1. Capital Expenditures
Taylor Jones

(For Approval)

 

 

 

Narrative to August 2017 Financial Statement.pdf
 
 
Narrative Provider Clinic August 2017.pdf
 
 

2. Narrative
Irene Richardson

 

 

4. Investment Recommendation
Irene Richardson

(For Approval)

 

5. September 26, 2017 Committee Meeting Book
 

 

FY 18_8.pdf
 
 

Narrative High Desert District August 2017.pdf
 
 

3. Bad Debt
Ron Cheese, Director of Patient Financial Services
Information will be provided the day of the
meeting in hard copy form and loaded into the
portal packet following the meeting.

(For Approval)

Open Bid Investment Summary Report August 31
2017.pdf
 
 

B. Finance & Audit Committee
Taylor Jones

 

3. Governance Committee
Barbara Sowada

 

meeting book - september 26, 2017 finance &

Page 110

Page 111

Page 121

Page 126

Page 128

Page 136

Page 142

Page 145

Page 146

Page 147

Page 148

Page 4 of 335



C. Human Resources Committee
Richard Mathey

 

 

 

7 19 17 Quality Minutes QAPI Highlight.pdf
 
 

1. QAPI and Safety Plan
Amanda Molski, Quality Director

(For Approval)

 

2. September 19, 2017 Draft Minutes
 

 

QAPI and Safety Plan 2017.pdf
 
 

D. Quality Committee
Taylor Jones

 

audit committee meeting.pdf
 
 

1. Report from Physician Contract Ad Hoc Committee
Ed Tardoni
(Board to approve Committee's recommendation
regarding contracting with Kaufman Hall,
CliftonLarsonAllen, or stay with internal resources
regarding physician contracts.)

 

 

1. RUMOR Service Agreement
 

 

 

2. DEX White Pages and Yellow Directory Listings
 

 

 

3. Cephid -- Gene Xpert Service Agreement
 

 

4. BD Service Agreement
 

 

RUMOR Service Agreement.pdf
 
 

DEX Listings.pdf
 
 

Cephid Gene Xpert Service Agreement.pdf
 
 

A. Contract Consent Agenda
Richard Mathey

(For Approval)

XII. Contract Review
Suzan Campbell

 

9 19 17 Quality Draft Minutes.doc
 
 

Page 267

Page 269

Page 300

Page 301

Page 309

Page 322

Page 5 of 335



 BD Service Agreement.pdf
 
 

XIII. Community Communication
Richard Mathey

 

XIV. Good of the Order
Richard Mathey

 

XV. Executive Session as Needed
Richard Mathey

 

 XVI. Adjourn
Richard Mathey

Page 331

Page 6 of 335



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

September 6, 2017 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session on 

September 6, 2017, at 2:00 PM with Mr. Richard Mathey, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Mathey called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following 

Trustees were present: Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Barbara 

Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, CFO & Interim CEO; Dr. David Dansie, Medical Staff 

President; Mr. Jim Phillips, Legal Counsel; and Mr. John Kolb, Sweetwater Board of County 

Commissioners.  

 

Mr. Mathey led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the August 2, 2017, regular meeting as corrected (“or” 

changed to “not” on final page in quote by Mr. Kelsey) was made by Mr. Jones; second by Dr. 

Sowada. Motion carried. The motion to approve the minutes of the July 27, 2017, special 

meeting as presented was made by Mr. Jones; second by Dr. Sowada. Mr. Kelsey and Dr. 

Sowada abstained. Motion carried. The motion to approve the minutes of the August 22, 2017, 

special meeting as presented was made by Mr. Jones; second by Dr. Sowada. Mr. Mathey 

abstained. Motion carried. 

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

Mr. Mathey invited members of the community to address the Board. There were no comments. 

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Dansie, President of the Medical Staff, reported the General Medical Staff met with the 

Board during a special meeting August 22. The General Medical Staff propose a change to the 

utilization management process. He said the Utilization Management Committee was an ad hoc 

committee and needs to become a permanent committee with organization and structure that is 

clearly defined. Dr. Dansie added this is a Joint Commission requirement. He said rules and 

regulations are things the bylaws have given the Medical Executive Committee the ability to 

change without a medical staff vote. Dr. Dansie requested the Board ratify the formation of the 

committee. Dr. Sowada suggested a language change to accurately reflect the organization 

Page 7 of 335



 

 

Minutes of the September 6, 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

structure in the absence of a Director of Utilization Management. Ms. Richardson said we will 

strike “and the Director of Utilization Management.” The motion to approve the rules and 

regulations update with the change as discussed was made by Mr. Jones; second by Dr. Sowada. 

Motion carried. The motion to approve the Utilization Management process as stated in the 

packet was made by Mr. Jones; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. Dr. Dansie said he did 

not have anything further to report. Mr. Mathey thanked Dr. Dansie for his report. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The motion to go into Executive Session was made by Mr. Jones; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion 

carried.   
  

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

The Board of Trustees reconvened into Regular Session at 3:37 PM. Mr. Phillips was excused 

for the remainder of the meeting. 

 

CREDENTIALS 

 

Mr. Mathey said particulars are discussed in Executive Session and the Board cannot take action 

in Executive Session. The motion to approve the August 14, 2017, Credentials Committee 

Recommendations as follows for appointment to the Medical Staff was made by Dr. Sowada; 

second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried. 

 

1. Initial Appointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Alan Brown, Pediatrics  

2. Initial Appointment to Associate Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Bikram Sharma, Hospitalist 

3. Initial Appointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 years) 

 Anna Rudolphi, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Jon Vivolo, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

4. Initial Appointment to Consulting Staff  (1 year) 

 Dr. Clint Allred, Cardiology (U of U) 

 Richard Barton, MD Tele ICU (U of U) 

5. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 Years) 

 Dr. Karen Simmons, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Michael Rethy, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Richard Rossin, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Kevin Shilling, Sleep Medicine 

 Dr. William Marcus Brann, Cardiology 

6. Reappointment to AHP Staff (2year) 

 Ross Little, LPC (SWCS) 

 

  

Page 8 of 335



 

 

Minutes of the September 6, 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson thanked everyone for their hard work. She reported on a Code Orange 

activation, August volume, August 24 Hospital Open House, physician recruitment efforts, the 

upcoming Wyoming Hospital Association (WHA) annual meeting, Best on Board education 

opportunity via the WHA, upcoming Pulse of Southwest Wyoming healthcare presentation, 

continued work on board committee charters, and welcomed Dr. Cody Christensen-Urology. Mr. 

Kolb reminded Ms. Richardson to always keep the Commissioners involved when lobbying 

legislators on behalf of a County entity so we have an opportunity to work together.  

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

Committee Charters 

 

Mr. Mathey said the Human Resources Committee Charter and the Quality Committee Charter 

were introduced last month for review and are now presented for action.  

 

Dr. Sowada asked about voting rights on committees. She asked for the pleasure of the Board 

regarding voting privileges of staff. The Board discussed management vs. governance and 

fiduciary duties of the Board. Mr. Kolb said the only power is with the Board of Trustees. Mr. 

Mathey said he is the Chair of the Human Resources Committee. Mr. Taylor is the Chair of the 

Quality Committee.  

 

Mr. Mathey will make changes to the Human Resources policy to include the change from 

“establishes” to “review and recommends” the percentile pay range, and “venue” instead of 

“mechanism” in addressing conflicts and differences concerning employment policies. 

 

The motion to adopt the Human Resources Committee Charter as revised during discussion was 

made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

Dr. Sowada said the Quality Committee Charter is not ready for review and needs more work. 

Mr. Jones invited comments. Mr. Kelsey said he would like to see as part of Responsibilities #2: 

“Develop policies for Board consideration…”. The motion to table at this time was made by Mr. 

Jones; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

Bylaws 

 

Ms. Suzan Campbell, Chief Legal Executive/General Counsel, reviewed highlighted questions. 

Mr. Mathey said the Board may approve a process to review and approve contracts. He said he 

wants the Board to have the right to look at anything they want to look at. He suggested striking 

the meeting time, adding Building and Grounds to standing committees, and striking “complete 

authority” sentence. Mr. Mathey asked Dr. Dansie for the history of medical staffs and asked if 

there are governing statutes. Mr. Kelsey commented on the difference between bylaws and rules 

and regulations. Mr. Kelsey said the Board has the authority to adopt a mission statement. Ms. 

Campbell offered to make the suggested changes and return to the Board for review. Mr. Kolb 

said statute specifically addresses County Memorial Hospital ability to indebt itself. He asked for 

Page 9 of 335



 

 

Minutes of the September 6, 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

it to be looked into with the Board attorney regarding interpretation. Mr. Kolb asked to add 

appoint and remove instead of just appoint. Mr. Mathey suggested working in that we are a five-

member Board because the Board of County Commissioner said five but that could change. The 

County Commissioners determine the size of the Board and they do have the power to remove. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Committee Charters 

 

Mr. Mathey said several committee charters were included in the packet and Board member 

assignments are to review and prepare to discuss at the next regular meeting. The Board 

discussed the need for a Joint Conference Committee. Mr. Mathey said it should read “meet as 

needed.” Dr. Dansie said he would not recommend against the Joint Conference Committee and 

Ms. Richardson said she agreed.  

 

Contract Review and Approval Policy 

 

Ms. Richardson said we want to make sure it coincides with the spending authority matrix. She 

asked if we need to bring service agreements to the Board for approval or as a “for your 

information” only? She said we would like this to include maintenance agreements and renewal 

of existing contracts. Ms. Richardson said we want to streamline the process and believe this has 

been an educational process for all of us. She said we would like to have a little bit of leeway to 

do some things operationally but we will bring all things to the Board as informational. 

Regarding educational and clinical placement agreements, Ms. Richardson said we think a lot of 

those have the same language so we would want to bring them to the Board for information 

purposes only. Mr. Kelsey said he sees a lot of tie-in with the spending authority matrix and the 

policy. Page 3 #3 on the competitive bid process was a concept for discussion purposes, not 

concrete. Mr. Mathey said there is a statute controlling municipalities regarding $35,000 and 

items put to bid. He is not sure if that applies to the Hospital and counties. Mr. Kolb said it’s 

different for the counties. Mr. Mathey said the Hospital will be bound by county requirements. 

Ms. Richardson said we would like to discuss the policy and matrix again in the Finance and 

Audit Committee meeting to look at it more closely. The motion to remand the information to 

the Finance and Audit Committee for further refinement was made by Mr. Jones; second by Dr. 

Sowada. Motion carried.  

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Committees Consent Agenda 

 

Mr. Mathey said consent agendas were a bone of contention between the Board of County 

Commissioners and the Board of Trustees when Mr. Mathey and Mr. Jones joined the Board. 

When there is a vote on the consent agenda, he will do everything he can to make the effect of 

that vote very clear. Is a vote on a consent agenda necessary? Mr. Mathey said there is research 

needed. The purpose is not to do business behind closed doors. The Board packets are available. 

Mr. Mathey said we reserve the right to charge a modest fee for the copies to the extent provided 

by law. Mr. Kelsey said the college had a very transparent process and suggested loading the 

Page 10 of 335



 

 

Minutes of the September 6, 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

packets, minutes and agendas on the hospital website. Ms. Deb Sutton, PR and Marketing 

Director, said she will investigate the possibilities. 

 

Building and Grounds: Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director, provided a summary of Committee 

meeting highlights. 

 

Foundation Board: Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Foundation Director, provided a summary of 

Foundation Board highlights. 

 

Governance Committee: Dr. Sowada said there was nothing to report on the Governance 

Committee. 

 

Human Resources Committee: Ms. Amber Fisk, Human Resources Director, said there was 14% 

turnover hospital-wide, 75 separations and 56 new hires from 1/1/17. There were 545 employees 

in January and there are 513 now. Ms. Fisk stated that is 513 people, not FTE’s. Ms. Fisk said 

the clinic turnover is 16%. They have had 18 separations since 1/1/17. Ms. Fisk said Mr. 

Tardoni, Ms. Richardson, Ms. Tami Love-Controller, Ms. Marianne Sanders-Physician 

Recruitment & Relations Managers, Ms. Campbell and Ms. Fisk are working on contract 

development. They were not able to provide a synopsis in the packet. They have a “shell” 

developed by Ms. Campbell. The negotiation portion would be through “Attachment A” of the 

agreement. The Board had previously approved wages between MGMA median and the 75th 

percentile. Ms. Fisk said the group needs more time to work on what we want practice 

evaluations to look like. Ms. Fisk said she just received the 2017 MGMA data. Mr. Tardoni 

reviewed the process and said we are looking to have a consistent format to use. He said he sees 

three potential options or a combination of options for a standardized contract format. He said he 

considers his assignment to be terminated. Mr. Mathey said he wants to place this item on the 

next meeting agenda. 

 

Quality Committee: Mr. Jones said the Emergency Department thru-put time went up last month 

but is still on a downward trend. He said there has been a lot of discussion on tying the Hospital 

and Clinic together better regarding quality.  

 

Finance & Audit Committee 

 

Mr. Jones presented capital expenditure requests FY18-5 and FY18-6 for approval. The motion 

to approve FY18-5 for $39,280.80 to Venture Technologies and FY18-6 for $19,526 to 

Nanosonics as presented was made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. The 

motion to approve the net potential bad debt for August of $976,713.44 as presented by Mr. Ron 

Cheese-Patient Finance Services Director was made by Mr. Jones; second by Dr. Sowada. 

Motion carried. The motion to approve investments of $16,987,944 at Bank of the West, Key 

Bank and WyoStar as presented by Ms. Richardson was made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. 

Kelsey. Motion carried. Mr. Mathey asked what we do to maintain FDIC provisions. He thinks 

special maneuvers must be done. Mr. Kelsey said FDIC only covered to a certain amount at 

Western Wyoming Community College and they had to go out and pledge the difference. Mr. 

Mathey said the water board had the bank pledge the collateral. Ms. Richardson said she will 

research and report back to the Board. Ms. Richardson reviewed highlights from the narratives 

Page 11 of 335



 

 

Minutes of the September 6, 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

for the Hospital and the Clinic included in the packet. Mr. Jones commented that collectively the 

Hospital has reduced daily cash expenses and increased days of cash on hand to 33. He said we 

have been trying to find out who our leaders are and affect change. Mr. Jones said Ms. 

Richardson has been that leader in finances from day one and she is not doing it alone. He said 

we are looking for those leaders in all areas.  

 

Mr. Mathey said the Board would take a 10 minute recess. The Board reconvened at 6:19 PM. 

 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

 

Contract Consent Agenda 

 

Mr. Mathey told the Trustees any of them can remove a contract from the consent agenda for 

discussion. The remaining will remain in the consent agenda and will not be discussed. The 

approval of the consent agenda will be approval of Ms. Richardson signing agreements on behalf 

of the Hospital. Mr. Tardoni said he objects to the use of a consent agenda for contracts. Mr. 

Mathey said he wanted to remove #4, #7, #11, and #13 from the consent agenda. Mr. Kelsey said 

he wanted to remove #1. The motion to approve the consent agenda was made by Mr. Kelsey; 

second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried with one vote against. 

 

#1 – University of Wyoming School of Nursing & MHSC: Mr. Kelsey asked Ms. Campbell if 

she was comfortable with resolution of the previous concerns. She said yes and Mr. Mathey 

shared information about sovereign immunity language. The motion to approve the agreement as 

presented was made by Mr. Jones; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

#4 – SIS (IBM Support Provider): Mr. Rich Tyler, Information Technology Director, said SIS 

equipment showed up shortly after he started working at the Hospital. This is a support 

agreement for hardware that QuadraMed sits on for our patient records. He is leery to change 

because QuadraMed recommended SIS. Going forward from this point, Mr. Tyler would like to 

see more justification on why we have to use SIS. The motion to approve the agreement as 

presented was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried. Mr. Tardoni shared 

some quality-related concerns involving QuadraMed’s system and product. He said the change to 

something else would be prohibitively expensive. He said we need to support QuadraMed but he 

wanted to give a head’s up on potential future issues. Mr. Tyler said he is going to begin 

attending the monthly quality meetings to stay involved in the conversations regarding 

QuadraMed and quality. 

 

#7 – Staff Care Locums: Mr. Mathey discussed his concerns regarding workers compensation 

and malpractice insurance. Ms. Campbell addressed the reasons for handling locums services 

through a contract. Mr. Mathey asked Ms. Campbell to find out about the workers compensation 

piece. She said she will double-check. The motion to table the agreement until October was 

made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried.  

 

#11 – Agreement with Rocky Mountain University of Health Professionals (RMUoHP): Mr. 

Mathey is concerned with section 6.2. He thinks we will suffer a disadvantage and feels there is a 

dangerous provision regarding out of state jurisdiction and venue provisions. He is wondering if 

Page 12 of 335



 

 

Minutes of the September 6, 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 7 

they would be willing to negotiate. He said the agreement is approved but will not be signed 

unless Ms. Campbell can negotiate the removal of 6.2. 

 

#13 – University of Utah Family Residency Program: Mr. Mathey said he is concerned with 

insurance language. The motion to approve the agreement as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; 

second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried.  

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

Mr. Mathey invited members of the community to address the Board. 

 

Mr. Kolb said he received a text message that Gorge Rock donated $5,100 of rock to the 

Hospital for the purposes of landscaping. Ms. Richardson said she will invite a representative to 

a meeting to recognize them for their generous donation.  Mr. Kolb commended the Board on the 

contract checklist page on each contract for review. 

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 

 

Mr. Tardoni announced Sweetwater School District 2 is collecting packages of underwear for 

students in need in recent disaster areas. All sizes up to 3X may be dropped off at schools in 

Green River. He asked people to please help spread the word. 

 

Mr. Kelsey said he is concerned with a local telephone book ad. It is a very prominent ad 

because it has a list of physicians but no listing of specialty so it has no meaning for people. Ms. 

Sutton said she will investigate. Mr. Kelsey requested the agenda contain page numbers to help 

Trustees move around in the packet efficiently. He expressed appreciation to Mr. Mathey for his 

work on the agenda.  

 

Mr. Mathey said Dr. Kristy Nielson, Chief Nursing Officer, and Dr. Sowada are two of the many 

people who bring up to him often the need for a mission statement and a strategic plan. He said 

he has a difference of opinion with some but some want and need this information. Mr. Mathey 

said he will place this on the “New Business” agenda for the next meeting. 

 

Ms. Richardson stated this was a great meeting. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to discuss, the motion was made, second and carried to adjourn.  

The meeting adjourned at 7:10 PM.  

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Richard Mathey, President  

Attest: 
 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

Page 13 of 335



 

 

 
 
 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY  
 

COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 

DRAFT

Page 14 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 1 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 3 

COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 12 

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 
IN NET POSITION 14 

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 15 

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 17 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS 33 

 
 

DRAFT

Page 15 of 335



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

 

(1) 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County  
Rock Springs, Wyoming 
 
 
Report on the Combined Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater 
County (the Hospital), which comprise the combined statements of net position as of June 30, 2017 and 
2016, and the related combined statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and 
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the combined financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Combined Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these combined financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of combined financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined financial statements based on our audits. 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the combined financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the combined financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the combined financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the combined financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
 

DRAFT

Page 16 of 335



Board of Trustees 
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

(2) 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County as of June 30, 2017 and 
2016, and the changes in its net position and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the combined financial statements as 
a whole. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis information on pages 3 through 11 be presented to supplement 
the basic combined financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the combined 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the combined financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing 
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the combined financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
combined financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 4, 
2017, on our consideration of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County‘s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the result of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County‘s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Minneapolis, Minnesota 
October 4, 2017 
 

DRAFT

Page 17 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(3) 

 
INTRODUCTION 

This is management’s discussion and analysis of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County‘s (the 
Hospital) financial performance and provides an overview of the Hospital’s financial activities for the 
years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. It should be read in conjunction with the Hospital’s combined 
financial statements, which begin on page 12. 
 
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County is a Joint Commission accredited, 99-bed rural acute-care 
facility located in Southwest Wyoming, which services a region exceeding 10,000 square miles. The 
Hospital serves a population in excess of 45,000 in Sweetwater County alone as well as surrounding 
areas. The Hospital provides a vast array of inpatient and outpatient services, emergent care, dialysis, 
occupational medicine, radiation oncology, and hematology oncology services. Memorial Hospital of 
Sweetwater County continues to maintain a strong, viable presence in the community. Recognizing the 
need to create a collaborative focus for the future and by identifying the opportunity and accountability 
in the delivery of healthcare for the communities the Hospital serves, the following goals and objectives 
continue to serve as our roadmap to guide the Hospital into the future: 
 

Regional Referral Center: Continue efforts to increase presence in Sweetwater County and 
surrounding areas and becoming a regional referral center. 
 
Growth in Services and Programs: Being responsive to the needs of the community by 
maintaining care locally whenever possible by growing service lines and offering new programs, 
which include: 
 

 Radiation Oncology 
 Hematology Oncology 
 Enhanced Orthopedic Surgery 
 Occupational Medicine 
 Telemedicine 

 
Medical Staff Development Plan: Work to meet the needs of the community by developing a 
medical staff that will enhance current programs and effectively deliver new services and 
programs. The facility invested in new physicians in FY 2017; including a Pediatrician, a 
Nephrologist, an Orthopedic Surgeon, a Radiation Oncologist, a Physician Assistant, and a 
Hospitalist. Recognizing the need to balance growth with financial stability, the Hospital 
streamlined operations by eliminating some unprofitable service lines.   
 
Information Technology: Continued adoption of health information technology to improve quality 
while lowering cost. 
 
Joint Board/Medical Staff Decision Making: Create a culture with the board of trustees and the 
Medical Staff that is collaborative and will allow the Hospital to move forward with partnerships 
and/or affiliations that will provide the most comprehensive care for Sweetwater County and its 
surrounding areas. 

DRAFT

Page 18 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(4) 

 
INTRODUCTION (CONTINUED) 

Customer Service: The Hospital has been diligent in striving to provide our patients with excellent 
customer service. Our patient satisfaction scores continue to increase with the ongoing efforts of 
improvement. 
 
Quality: The Hospital continues to meet the increasing quality initiatives. Recognizing that 
reimbursement is driven by these efforts, we have created a specialized team to ensure our 
quality measures meet and exceed the standards. 
 
Finance: The Hospital strives to provide quality health care at a lower cost by managing expenses 
and maximizing reimbursement. 
 
Value: Customer service, quality, and finance are the drivers that deliver value to the patient. The 
dynamics of health care is changing to focus more on improving the quality of health care rather 
than on the cost of health care. The benefit of delivering quality health care and better customer 
service helps to drive costs down, which creates more value for the patient. Providing the highest 
value of care to the patient through improved quality and better customer service, all at a lower 
cost, is our number one priority. 
 

These strategies will serve as a compass to help guide us to achieve our Mission and Vision for the 
future: 

 
Mission: To deliver superior regional health care services that improve the health and wellness of 
all people and communities we serve. 
 
Vision: To be the leading health care provider delivering quality, innovation, education, community 
service, and fiscal responsibility. 
 

The affiliation with the University of Utah allows the Hospital to expand its service line without 
investment into full time staff, facilities, and equipment for highly specialized procedures and services 
that would likely not be economically justifiable given the population size of the primary service area. In 
addition, the affiliation limits outmigration of patients by keeping them close to home, provides a high 
level of specialty care, and allows the Hospital to retain revenue that might have otherwise gone to 
other hospitals. Presently, the Hospital is providing telemedicine services for stroke, burn, and ICU 
services to the community as a result of the University of Utah affiliation. The affiliation has continued to 
grow in 2017. The Hospital staff have been able to gain knowledge and skills through education and 
shadowing at the University of Utah. Specialty Physicians continue to hold visiting clinics in our Hospital 
so our patients do not need to travel out of state for services. The Hospital plans to expand these 
services in the next year by adding Maternal Fetal Monitoring, Endocrinology and Dermatology clinics 
to name a few. In fiscal year 2016, the Hospital also added affiliations with the Huntsman Cancer 
Center through the University of Utah and the Shriner’s Hospital. 
 

DRAFT

Page 19 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(5) 

 
INTRODUCTION (CONTINUED) 

Fiscal year 2017 continued to see growth in physician recruitment and the hiring of new physicians. The 
growth in employed physicians has resulted in the need for additional offsite locations. The Hospital’s 
employed physicians can now be found in three different locations; including the Hospital, the attached 
MOB and offsite at the Family and Occupational Medicine Clinic. The Hospital increased the 
Occupational Health service line in 2017 and is currently providing patient care at several industry 
locations throughout the County. 

 
The current Electronic Health Record (EHR), provides patients with a secure, confidential medical 
record that will work with other systems to share information. The EHR additionally offers the necessary 
technological capability, functionality, and security to reach Meaningful Use criteria established for 
facilities to receive incentive payments under the Medicare and Medicaid EHR incentive programs. In 
Fiscal Year 2017, the Hospital applied for and received $288,467 from Medicare and Medicaid for 
successfully achieving the third stage of Meaningful Use. The Hospital is currently continuing its 
diligence in achieving Meaningful Use in the upcoming year. 
 
Quality and patient satisfaction will continue to play a role in hospital reimbursement in the future. The 
Executive Team has been proactive in ensuring that quality outcomes are the best they can be and that 
patient satisfaction scores are in the top percentile.  
 
The Hospital is striving to realize our Vision for the future of providing exceptional patient care by 
focusing on quality and safety of patient care, providing excellent customer service through teamwork 
and a positive culture, increasing market share and service growth and enhanced medical staff 
development. 
 
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Foundation (Foundation) was created to help support the 
Hospital. The Foundation’s financial statements are included in the combined financial statements. The 
Hospital and the Foundation are collectively referred to as the Hospital throughout the combined 
financial statements. DRAFT

Page 20 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(6) 

 
USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

The Hospital’s combined financial statements consist of three statements – a combined statement of 
net position; a combined statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position; and a 
combined statement of cash flows. These combined financial statements and related notes provide 
information about the activities of the Hospital, including resources held by the Hospital, but restricted 
for specific purposes by contributors, grantors, or enabling legislation. 
 
FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 The Hospital recorded an operating loss of $8,182,259 and $1,551,966 in 2017 and 2016, 
respectively. 

 The Hospital recorded a decrease in overall net position of $7,738,549 and an increase of 
$900,269 in 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

 The days in net patient accounts receivable was 49 in 2017 and 2016. 
 The Hospital has experienced significant growth and change since 2014. The investment in 

hiring physicians resulted in accelerated startup costs that significantly increased total 
expenses. Typically, providers do not realize their full income potential until their practice 
matures, which may take several years. The accumulated cost associated with hiring 
physicians, without the commensurate revenue, contributed to the loss realized by the Hospital 
in FY 2017.     

 The Hospital experienced a change in payor mix due to a decline in the statewide economy. 
There was a growth in Medicare, Medicaid and uninsured patients with a corresponding 
decrease in commercial insurance patients. This resulted in an increase in the write-offs and 
allowances and bad debt expense which negatively impacted the operating margin.     

 In August 2016, the Hospital introduced a cost savings plan to mitigate the effect of increasing 
expenses and decreasing net revenues. The plan included a temporary halt of normal capital 
expenditures, productivity models that aided in reducing staffing through attrition, and increased 
efforts to maximize reimbursement through improved utilization of services. 

 DRAFT

Page 21 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(7) 

 
THE COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION AND COMBINED STATEMENTS OF 
REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

One of the most important questions asked about the Hospital’s finances is “Is the Hospital as a whole 
better or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The combined statements of net position and the 
combined statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position report information about the 
Hospital’s resources and its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These combined 
statements include all restricted and unrestricted assets and all liabilities using the accrual basis of 
accounting. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when 
cash is received or paid. 
 
These two combined statements report the Hospital’s net position and changes in them. You can think 
of the Hospital’s net position – the difference between assets and liabilities – as one way to measure 
the Hospital’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Hospital’s 
net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need 
to consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in the Hospital’s patient base and 
measures of the quality of service it provides to the community, as well as local economic factors to 
assess the overall health of the Hospital. 
 
THE COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW 

The final required statement is the combined statement of cash flows. The combined statement reports 
cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, and 
financing activities. It provides answers to such questions as “Where did cash come from?”, “What was 
cash used for?”, and “What was the change in cash balance during the reporting period?” 
 

DRAFT

Page 22 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(8) 

 
THE HOSPITAL’S COMBINED NET POSITION 

The Hospital’s combined net position is the difference between its assets and liabilities reported in the 
statement of net position. The Hospital’s net position has decreased by $7,738,549 in 2017 and 
increased by $900,269 in 2016, as shown in Table 1. 
 
TABLE 1: COMBINED ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 

2017 2016 2015
ASSETS

Current Assets 29,154,702$       31,134,355$       32,576,683$       
Noncurrent Cash and Investments and Other 16,099,056         17,075,903         19,970,244         
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 73,909,204         81,043,496         82,231,037         

Total Assets 119,162,962       129,253,754       134,777,964       

Deferred Loss from Long-Term Debt Refinancing 259,415 271,768 284,121

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 119,422,377$     129,525,522$     135,062,085$     

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities 10,320,075$       9,705,752$         14,552,699$       
Long-Term Debt 32,333,928         35,312,847         36,902,732         

Total Liabilities 42,654,003         45,018,599         51,455,431         

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 39,300,831         43,795,260         40,597,311         
Restricted for Debt Service Reserve 3,017,205           3,014,837           3,014,915           
Restricted by Contributions and Grantors for 
  Capital Acquisition 396,645              449,088              648,869              
Unrestricted 34,053,693         37,247,738         39,345,559         

Total Net Position 76,768,374         84,506,923         83,606,654         

Total Liabilities and Net Position 119,422,377$     129,525,522$     135,062,085$     
 

DRAFT

Page 23 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(9) 

 
COMBINED OPERATING RESULTS AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

In 2017, the Hospital’s net position decreased by $7,738,549 as shown in Table 2. This decrease is 
made up of the following components: 
 
TABLE 2: OPERATING RESULTS AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

2017 2016 2015
OPERATING REVENUE

Operating Revenues 85,725,975$   87,076,549$   79,450,109$   

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating Expenses 93,908,234    88,628,515    76,786,601    

OPERATING GAIN (LOSS) (8,182,259)     (1,551,966)     2,663,508      

Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses, Net 400,994         2,452,235       2,819,692      

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES (7,781,265)     900,269          5,483,200      

Other Changes in Net Position 42,716           -                      794,115         

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION (7,738,549)     900,269          6,277,315      

Net Position - Beginning of Year 84,506,923    83,606,654    77,329,339    

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 76,768,374$   84,506,923$   83,606,654$   

OPERATING INCOME 
The first component of the overall change in the Hospital’s net assets is its operating income, generally, 
the difference between net patient service revenue and other operating revenues and the expenses 
incurred to perform those services. In fiscal year 2017 the Hospital reported an operating loss of 
$8,182,259 and in fiscal year 2016 the Hospital reported an operating loss of $1,551,966. 
 
The Hospital provides charity care to the patients who meet Hospital set guidelines. Charges foregone 
for charity care of $2,512,231 and $2,728,255 were provided in 2017 and 2016, respectively. Because 
there is no expectation of payment, charity care is not reported as patient service revenues of the 
Hospital. In 2017 and 2016, assistance funds of $435,000 and $493,000, respectively, were received 
from Sweetwater County to help offset the cost of maintenance in the Hospital. 
 
NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES 

Nonoperating revenues and expenses consist primarily of recognized sales tax revenue designated for 
the repayment of the Series 2013A and 2013B Bonds, rental revenue and expenses from Hospital 
property, investment income and interest expense. The sales tax revenues make up approximately 
86.0% and 87.7% of the total nonoperating revenue for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively. 

DRAFT

Page 24 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(10) 

 
THE HOSPITAL’S CASH FLOWS 

Changes in the Hospital’s cash flows are consistent with changes in operating gains, nonoperating 
revenues and expenses, discussed earlier. The Hospital’s cash and cash equivalents, including 
restricted and designated cash and investments, decreased from $14,158,750 in 2016 to $13,123,895 
in 2017. 
 
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

At the end of 2017, the Hospital had $73,909,204 invested in capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation. In 2017, the Hospital had disbursements of approximately $1,900,000 for new equipment 
and construction-related costs, compared to disbursements of approximately $7,900,000 in 2016. 
 
Long-Term Debt 

Refinancing: The Hospital had two Variable Rate Demand Notes (VRDNs) outstanding in the amount of 
$25,550,000. These bonds were originally issued in 2006 and 2008 in the aggregate amount of $48.6 
million for the purpose of the Hospital’s major renovation and expansion which was completed in 2009. 
A portion of the proceeds of the Series 2013 bonds were used to refinance the remaining bonds and 
convert them to fixed rate bonds. 
 
Financing Plan: The Series 2013 Bonds are comprised of two components: The first is financing the 
construction and equipping of a medical office building adjacent to the Hospital and the second portion 
was refinancing the Hospital’s approximately $25 million of Variable Rate Demand Notes outstanding, 
backed by a letter of credit from Key Bank, to a fixed rate. 
 
The financing for the MOB was issued as privately placed variable rate bonds to one or more 
commercial banks (the Bank Bonds). While on a parity with other indebtedness, these bonds will largely 
be paid from the recently voter approved Specific Purpose Tax. In November 2012, authorized voters in 
Sweetwater County approved the enactment of a $0.01 Specific Purpose Tax (SPT) in the aggregate 
amount of $81.8 million for qualifying projects. The portion allocable to the Hospital is $18.9 million. As 
part of the structure of the Bank Bonds, the County Treasurer will enter into an agreement to send the 
monthly SPT receipts directly to the Bond Trustee with instructions to pay interest due and to redeem 
as much principal of outstanding bonds as such collected receipts permit until the Bonds are paid in full. 
Based upon similar historical sales tax collections and estimates from the County Treasurer, SPT 
collections are projected at $1.5 million per month. It’s assumed the Hospital will receive 23% (Hospital 
portion of the final resolution) of the monthly collection. 
 

DRAFT

Page 25 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(11) 

 
2018 OUTLOOK 

The outlook for 2018 is stable. The Hospital experienced significant growth and investment in fiscal 
years 2016 and 2017. The Hospital hired several new physicians and renovated a newly acquired 
medical office building to accommodate the new class of physicians. The Executive Team of the 
Hospital realizes that the physician recruitment plan to bring needed specialties and an adequate 
number of practices has been satisfied. The plan for 2018 is to focus on growing the new and 
established physician practices and to start increasing revenue in order to offset expenses.  
 
The Hospital continues to adjust to the changing landscape of the health care industry. The transition 
from inpatient care to outpatient care will affect reimbursement which will require continued monitoring 
and adjusting of expenses. Opportunities to increase outpatient market share and new service lines will 
be the focus in 2018. The Hospital’s goal is to capitalize on the growth in the existing physician 
practices, while expanding health care services that have been absent in Sweetwater County and 
Southwest Wyoming. The Hospital is in a position to deliver quality patient care, excellent patient 
satisfaction and continue to increase market share; while striving to be fiscally responsible in order to 
achieve a positive operating margin in fiscal year 2018. 
 
CONTACTING THE HOSPITAL’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our patients, suppliers, taxpayers, and creditors with a 
general overview of the Hospital’s finances and to the Hospital’s accountability for the money it 
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the 
Hospital’s Chief Financial Officer at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County, 1200 College Drive, Rock 
Springs, Wyoming 82901. 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT

Page 26 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Combined Financial Statements. 
(12) 

 
2017 2016

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,410,045$      9,394,825$      
Restricted by Bond Indenture Agreements 453,328           474,129           
Receivables:

Patients, Net of Estimated Uncollectibles of Approximately
  $4,117,000 in 2017 and $3,645,000 in 2016 11,071,787      11,188,926      
Current Maturities of Notes Receivable 221,340           390,458           
Other 4,329,275        4,614,590        

Supplies 2,664,302        2,888,682        
Prepaid Expenses 2,004,625        2,182,745        

Total Current Assets 29,154,702      31,134,355      

NONCURRENT CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Restricted by Contributors and Grantors 396,645           449,088           
Restricted by Bond Indenture Agreements 2,563,877        2,540,708        
Designated by Board for Capital Improvements 12,520,041      13,518,130      

Total Noncurrent Cash and Investments 15,480,563      16,507,926      

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 73,909,204      81,043,496      

OTHER ASSETS
Rental Property, Net 405,413           432,710           
Notes Receivable, Less Current Maturities 136,181           58,368             
Other Assets 76,899             76,899             

Total Other Assets 618,493           567,977           

Total Assets 119,162,962    129,253,754    

DEFERRED OUTFLOW FROM LONG-TERM DEBT REFINANCING 259,415           271,768           

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 119,422,377$  129,525,522$  

 
 

DRAFT

Page 27 of 335



 
 
 
 
 
 

(13) 

 
2017 2016

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 2,274,445$      1,935,389$      
Accounts Payable 4,008,843        3,772,020        
Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements 198,000           263,000           
Accrued Expenses:

Salaries, Wages and Payroll Taxes 1,026,506        875,396           
Vacation 2,001,047        2,013,694        
Health Insurance Claims 400,000           400,000           
Interest 411,234           446,253           

Total Current Liabilities 10,320,075      9,705,752        

LONG-TERM DEBT, LESS CURRENT MATURITIES 32,333,928      35,312,847      

Total Liabilities 42,654,003      45,018,599      

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 39,300,831      43,795,260      
Restricted for Debt Service Reserve 3,017,205        3,014,837        
Restricted by Contributors and Grantors 396,645           449,088           
Unrestricted 34,053,693      37,247,738      

Total Net Position 76,768,374      84,506,923      

Total Liabilities and Net Position 119,422,377$  129,525,522$  

 
 

DRAFT

Page 28 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY  
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 

 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Combined Financial Statements. 
(14) 

 
2017 2016

OPERATING REVENUES
Net Patient Service Revenue (Net of Provision for Bad Debts of
  Approximately $9,745,000 in 2017 and $8,906,000 in 2016) 83,585,449$    83,613,904$    
Other Operating Revenues 2,140,526 3,462,645

Total Operating Revenues 85,725,975      87,076,549      

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and Wages 41,499,633 36,646,762
Employee Benefits 9,670,476 8,773,997
Professional Fees - Physicians 2,992,685 4,000,829
Purchased Services 8,040,958 7,955,348
Supplies 12,803,281 11,899,163
Repairs and Maintenance 4,208,062 4,037,572
Insurance 935,450 928,310
Utilities 1,155,991 1,134,498
Leases and Rental 1,030,137 862,580
Depreciation 8,892,873 8,851,484
Other Expenses 2,678,688 3,537,972

Total Operating Expenses 93,908,234      88,628,515      

OPERATING LOSS (8,182,259)       (1,551,966)       

NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Interest Income 268,721 356,966
Interest Expense (1,365,882) (1,398,213)
Rent and Other 253,269 149,068
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets (1,809,472) 4,931
Sales Tax Revenues 3,210,608 3,616,606
Unrealized Loss on Investments (108,571)          (87,426)
Restricted Gifts and Grants 4,810 30,972
Expended for Operations (52,489)            (220,669)          

Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses, Net 400,994           2,452,235        

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES (7,781,265)       900,269           

Capital Grants and Contributions 42,716             -                       

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION (7,738,549)       900,269           

Net Position - Beginning of Year 84,506,923      83,606,654      

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 76,768,374$   84,506,923$   
 

 

DRAFT

Page 29 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Combined Financial Statements. 
(15) 

 
2017 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from and on Behalf of Patients 83,637,588$    84,526,100$   
Other Receipts 1,740,459        4,630,621       
Cash Paid to Employees (51,031,646)     (45,981,252)    
Cash Paid to Suppliers and Others (33,205,929)     (35,964,013)    
  Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,140,472        7,211,456       

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Restricted, Gifts, Grants, and Other Changes, 
  Net of Expended for Operations (47,679)            (189,697)         

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND CAPITAL RELATED
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Construction and Purchase of Capital Assets (3,540,756)       (7,947,448)      
Capital Grants and Contributions 42,716             -                      
Sales Tax Revenue 3,895,990        3,876,103       
Receipts from Issuance of Long-Term Debt 1,703,100        -                      
Principal Paid on Long-Term Debt (4,285,220)       (4,012,012)      
Interest Paid on Long-Term Debt (1,446,291)       (1,485,174)      

Net Cash Used by Capital and Capital
  Related Financing Activities (3,630,461)       (9,568,531)      

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment Income 160,150           269,540          
Rent and Other 253,269           149,068          
Decrease in Notes Receivable and Other 91,305             136,264          
Purchases of Investments (6,761,865)       (6,211,842)      
Proceeds from Sale of Investments 7,759,954        8,741,038       

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 1,502,813        3,084,068       

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,034,855)       537,296          

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 14,158,750      13,621,454     

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 13,123,895$    14,158,750$   

 
 

DRAFT

Page 30 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Combined Financial Statements. 
(16) 

 
RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO
  THE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

Cash and Cash Equivalents in Current Assets 8,410,045$      9,394,825$     
Cash and Cash Equivalents in Restricted by Bond
  Indenture Agreements (Current and Noncurrent) 3,017,205     3,014,837    
Cash and Cash Equivalents in Designated by Board
  for Capital Improvements 1,300,000     1,300,000    
Cash and Cash Equivalents Restricted
  by Contributors and Grantors 396,645        449,088       

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,123,895$    14,158,750$   

Total Noncurrent Cash and Investments Included Above 4,260,522$      4,289,796$     

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET 
  CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating Loss (8,182,259)$     (1,551,966)$    
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss
  to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation 8,892,873        8,851,484       
Provision for Bad Debts 9,745,479        8,906,444       
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:

Receivables (10,028,407)     (6,889,272)      
Supplies 224,380           (359,333)         
Prepaid Expenses 178,120           263,872          
Accounts Payable 236,823           (1,512,280)      
Accrued Expenses 138,463           (560,493)         
Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements (65,000)            63,000            

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,140,472$      7,211,456$     

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of Capital Lease Obligations 1,230,000$     436,706$       

 
 DRAFT

Page 31 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY  
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(17) 

 
NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (Hospital) is a 99-bed general acute care facility 
located in Rock Springs, Wyoming. The Hospital’s primary mission is to provide health care 
to the residents of Sweetwater County through its acute care services. The Hospital is a 
component unit of Sweetwater County, Wyoming (County) and participates in the County’s 
tax levies. The Hospital, as a component unit of the County, is exempt from income taxes 
under current regulations. 
 
The Hospital is governed by a board of trustees, which has all of the powers necessary and 
convenient to provide for the acquisition, betterment, operation, maintenance, and 
administration of the facilities as the board of trustees determines to be necessary and 
expedient. 
 
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Foundation (Foundation) is a Wyoming nonprofit 
corporation and, effective January 29, 2015, is reported as a blended component unit of the 
Hospital. In 2015, the Foundation changed its Articles of Incorporation so that the board of 
directors is effectively appointed by the Hospital. The Foundation’s sole purpose is to 
support the Hospital. The Foundation is a nonprofit corporation as described in Section 
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) and is exempt from federal income taxes on 
related income pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC. The Foundation has $2,499,971 
and $2,417,520 of assets and $178,529 and $1,132,709 of revenue for the years ended 
June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
 
Collectively, Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County and Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater 
County Foundation are referred to as the Hospital in the combined financial statements. 
 
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts 
and reported in the combined financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing 
of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied. The Hospital’s 
combined financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accompanying combined financial statements 
have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when 
earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred. 
 
The Hospital uses enterprise fund accounting. Revenues and expenses are recognized on 
the accrual basis, using the economic resources measurement focus, based on GASB 
Codification Topic 1600, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and 
Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, as amended. 
 

DRAFT

Page 32 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY  
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(18) 

 
NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(CONTINUED) 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include deposits and highly liquid investments with an original 
maturity of three months or less, unless otherwise designated or restricted. 
 
Patient Receivables 

Patient receivables are uncollateralized patient and third-party payor obligations. Payments 
of patient receivables are allocated to the specific claims identified in the remittance advice 
or, if unspecified, are applied to the earliest unpaid claim. 
 
The carrying amount of patient receivables is reduced by a valuation allowance that reflects 
management’s estimate of amounts that will not be collected from patients and third-party 
payors. Management reviews patient receivables by payor class and applies percentages to 
determine estimated amounts that will not be collected from third parties under contractual 
agreements and amounts that will not be collected from patients due to bad debts. 
Management considers historical write-off and recovery information in determining the 
estimated bad debt provision. 
 
Supplies 

Supplies are stated at lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. 
 
Noncurrent Cash and Investments 

Interest and dividends are included in nonoperating revenues when earned. Interest 
earnings on borrowed proceeds for capital acquisition are capitalized. 
 
The Hospital’s investments are maintained in accordance with Wyoming Statute 9-4-831. 
This statute limits the types of investments the Hospital may invest in as listed in 
Section 9-4-831(a). The Hospital has adopted an investment policy as directed under 
Section 9-4-831(h). 
 
Restricted investments consist of funds restricted in accordance with bond indenture 
agreements, funds restricted by donor for an endowment and purchase of equipment, and 
funds restricted by the board for capital improvements. Restricted investments that are 
available for obligations classified as current liabilities are reported in current assets. All 
investments are carried at fair value. Fair value is determined using quoted market prices. 

DRAFT

Page 33 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY  
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(19) 

 
NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(CONTINUED) 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets acquisitions in excess of $2,000 are capitalized and recorded at historical 
cost. Contributed capital assets are reported at their estimated fair value at the time of their 
donation. All capital assets other than land are depreciated or amortized (in the case of 
capital leases) using the straight-line method of depreciation using these asset lives: 
 

Land Improvements 5 to 20 Years
Buildings 5 to 40 Years
Moveable Equipment 3 to 20 Years  

 
Notes Receivable 

Notes receivable are stated at principal amounts and are uncollateralized. Payments on 
notes receivable are allocated to the outstanding principal and accrued interest balances. 
Management reviews all notes receivable periodically and estimates a portion, if any, of the 
balance that will not be collected. 
 

Cost of Borrowing 

Except for capital assets acquired through gifts, contributions, or capital grants, interest cost 
on borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital assets is capitalized as a 
component of the cost of constructing or acquiring those assets. Interest expense 
capitalized was $0 and $190,787 for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
 

Trust Funds 

The Hospital acts as custodian for the funds of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 
Auxiliary. Trust funds and the related liability are included in cash and accounts payable in 
the combined financial statements. The balance of these funds was $148,388 and $147,721 
at June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
 

Compensated Absences 

The Hospital’s employees earn paid-time-off and sick leave at varying rates depending on 
years of service. Paid-time-off and sick leave accumulate up to a specified maximum 
depending upon length of service. Employees are paid for accumulated paid-time-off upon 
termination. Sick leave accumulated is forfeited upon termination. 
 

Self-Funded Health Insurance 

The provision for estimated health insurance claims includes estimates of the ultimate costs 
for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported. 
 

Restricted Resources 

When the Hospital has both restricted and unrestricted resources available to finance a 
particular program, it is the Hospital’s policy to use restricted resources before unrestricted 
resources. 

DRAFT

Page 34 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY  
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(20) 

 
NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(CONTINUED) 

Net Position 

Net position of the Hospital is classified in four components. Net position invested in capital 
assets consist of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the current 
balances of any outstanding borrowings used to finance the purchase or construction of 
those assets. Restricted for debt service reserve and restricted by contributors and grantors 
is the noncapital net position that must be used for a particular purpose, as specified by 
creditors, grantors, or contributors external to the Hospital. Unrestricted net position is the 
remaining net position that does not meet the definition of invested in capital assets or 
restricted. 
 
Operating Revenues and Expenses 

The Hospital’s combined statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position 
distinguishes between operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses. Operating 
revenues result from exchange transactions associated with providing health care services – 
the Hospital’s principal activity. Nonexchange revenues, including taxes, grants, and 
contributions received for purposes other than capital asset acquisition, are reported as 
nonoperating revenues. Operating expenses are all expenses incurred to provide health 
care services, other than financing costs. 
 
Net Patient Service Revenue 

The Hospital has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the 
Hospital at amounts different from its established rates. Payment arrangements include 
prospectively determined rates, reimbursed costs, discounted charges, and per diem 
payments. Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts 
from patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated 
retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. 
Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related 
services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. 
 
Charity Care 

To fulfill its mission of community service, the Hospital provides care to patients who meet 
certain criteria under its charity care policy without charge or at amounts less than its 
established rates. Because the Hospital does not pursue collection of amounts determined 
to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as net patient service revenue. 
 

DRAFT

Page 35 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY  
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(21) 

 
NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(CONTINUED) 

Sales and Use Tax 

The County imposed a 1% Sales and Use Tax beginning April 1, 2013 to provide support for 
capital infrastructure projects in the County. The Hospital’s portion of the proceeds was 
designated for payment of the principal on the Hospital Revenue Bonds, Series 2013B. 
Sales and use tax proceeds are recognized as revenue by the Hospital on the accrual basis 
as dictated by GASB Statement No. 22. For the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, the 
Hospital recorded nonoperating revenue related to the Sales and Use tax of $3,210,608 and 
$3,616,606, respectively. As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Hospital had recorded 
receivables of $3,013,115 and $3,698,497, respectively, related to Sales and Use tax 
revenues. 
 
County Support 

The Hospital received approximately $435,000 and $493,000 or 0.5% and 0.6% of total 
operating and nonoperating revenue in direct financial support from the County, for the 
years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The primary source of the funds is from 
the general funds of the County. The Hospital applies to the County for these funds, which 
the County distributes through resolution. For both years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, 
these funds were used to reimburse the Hospital for maintenance expenses. 
 
Grants and Contributions 

From time to time, the Hospital receives grants and contributions from individuals and 
private organizations. Revenues from grants and contributions (including contributions of 
capital assets) are recognized when all eligibility requirements, including time requirements, 
are met. Grants and contributions may be restricted for either specific operating purposes or 
for capital purposes. Amounts that are unrestricted or that are restricted to a specific 
operating purpose are reported as nonoperating revenues. Amounts restricted for capital 
acquisitions are reported after nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
Advertising Costs 

The Hospital expenses advertising costs as incurred. 
 
Risk Management 

The Hospital is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; business interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and 
illnesses; natural disasters; medical malpractice; and employee health, dental, and accident 
benefits. Commercial insurance coverage is purchased for claims arising from such matters. 
Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the three preceding 
years. 

DRAFT

Page 36 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY  
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(22) 

 
NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(CONTINUED) 

Fair Value Measurements 

To the extent available, the Hospital’s investments are recorded at fair value. GASB 
Statement No. 72 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or 
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. This statement establishes a hierarchy of valuation inputs based on the 
extent to which inputs are observable in the marketplace. Inputs are used in applying the 
various valuation techniques and take in to account the assumptions that market 
participants use to make valuation decisions. Inputs may include price information, credit 
data, interest and yield curve data, and other factors specific to the financial instrument. 
Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources. 
 
In contrast, unobservable inputs reflect an entity’s assumptions about how market 
participants would value the financial instrument. Valuation techniques should maximize the 
use of observable inputs to the extent available. A financial instrument’s level within the fair 
value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement. 
 
The following describes the hierarchy of inputs used to measure fair value and the primary 
valuation methodologies used for financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring 
basis: 
 

Level 1 – Inputs that utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities that the Hospital has the ability to access. 
 
Level 2 – Inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active 
markets and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument. Fair values for these 
instruments are estimated using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar 
characteristics, or discounted cash flows. 
 
Level 3 – Inputs that are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are typically 
based on an entity’s own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market activity. 

DRAFT

Page 37 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY  
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(23) 

 
NOTE 2 CHARITY CARE 

The Hospital maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care it provides. 
These records include the amount of charges foregone for services and supplies furnished 
under its charity care policy, and an estimated cost (based on cost to charge ratio) of those 
services and supplies. The estimated costs and expenses incurred to provide charity care 
for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, was approximately $1,088,000 and 
$1,183,000, respectively. 
 
 

NOTE 3 NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE 

The Hospital has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the 
Hospital at amounts different from its established rates. A summary of the payment 
arrangements with major third-party payors follows: 
 

Medicare 

Acute care services provided to Medicare program beneficiaries were paid at 
prospectively determined rates per visit. These rates varied according to a patient 
classification system that was based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. The 
Hospital is entitled to certain additional payments on a sole community provider. The 
Hospital is reimbursed for these payments after submission of annual cost reports by the 
Hospital and audits thereof by the Medicare fiscal intermediary. The Hospital’s Medicare 
cost reports have been finalized by the Medicare fiscal intermediary through the year 
ended June 30, 2013. The Hospital’s classification of patients under the Medicare 
program and the appropriateness of their admission are subject to an independent 
review by a peer review organization under contract with the Hospital. 
 
Medicaid 

Acute care services provided to Medicaid program beneficiaries are paid at prospectively 
determined rates per discharge. These rates vary according to a patient classification 
system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. 
 
Blue Cross 

Inpatient and outpatient services provided to Blue Cross subscribers are paid at 
established charges except for physician services that are reimbursed based on fee 
screens. 

 
Revenue from the Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 25% and 
6%, respectively, of the Hospital’s net patient service revenue for the year ended June 30, 
2017 and 28% and 6%, respectively, of the Hospital’s net service patient revenue for the 
year ended June 30, 2016. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid 
programs are extremely complex and subject to interpretation. As a result, there is at least a 
reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material amount in the near 
term. 

DRAFT

Page 38 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY  
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(24) 

 
NOTE 3 NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE (CONTINUED) 

The Hospital has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance 
carriers and other organizations. The basis for payment to the Hospital under these 
agreements includes charges, prospectively determined rates per discharge, and 
prospectively determined daily rates. 
 
A summary of patient service revenue, contractual adjustments, and provision for bad debts 
for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 is as follows: 
 

2017 2016
Gross Patient Service Revenue 153,739,253$  144,258,300$  

Adjustments and Discounts:
Medicare (33,231,062)     (24,915,182)     
Medicaid (10,775,037)     (9,184,480)       
Other Third-Party Payors (16,402,226)     (17,638,290)     
Provision for Bad Debts (9,745,479)       (8,906,444)       

   Total Adjustments and Discounts (70,153,804)     (60,644,396)     

Net Patient Service Revenue 83,585,449$   83,613,904$   

 
 

NOTE 4 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS  

Deposits 

The Hospital’s deposits are subject to, and in accordance with, Wyoming State Statutes. 
Under these statutes, all uninsured deposits are fully collateralized. The eligible collateral 
pledged shall be held in custody of any Federal Reserve Bank, or branch thereof, or held in 
escrow by some other bank in a manner as the banking commissioner shall prescribe be 
rules and regulations, or may be segregated from the other assets of the eligible public 
depository and held in its own trust department. All collateral so held shall be clearly 
identified as being security maintained or pledged for the aggregate amount of public 
deposits accepted and held on deposit by the eligible public depository. The depository has 
the right at any time to make substitutions of eligible collateral maintained or pledged and 
shall at all times be entitled to collect and retain all income derived from those investments 
with restrictions. The Hospital may legally invest in direct obligations of and other obligations 
guaranteed as to principal by the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies and instrumentalities. 
 
The Hospital’s investments are recorded at fair value and consist of cash and cash 
equivalents and U.S. agency obligations. As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, management 
believes the investments were in compliance with the defined rating and risk criteria set forth 
under Wyoming regulations. 

DRAFT

Page 39 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY  
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(25) 

 
NOTE 4 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Deposits (Continued) 

The Hospital provides for investment in a variety of investment funds, In general, 
investments are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit and overall market 
volatility risk. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investments, it is reasonably 
possible that changes in the values of the investments will occur in the near term and that 
such changes could materially affect the Hospital’s account balances. 
 
Investments 

The Hospital’s investments are reported at fair value as discussed in Note 1. At June 30, 
2017 and 2016, the Hospital had the following investments and maturities, all of which were 
held in the Hospital’s name by a custodial bank that is an agent of the Hospital. 
 

2017

Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1 to 5 6 to 10 Credit Rating

Money Market 22,925$          22,925$          -$                    -$                    N/A

Certificates of Deposit 490,685          -                      490,685          -                      AA+ or AAA

Federal Farm Credit Bank Loan 1,866,188       -                      1,498,798       367,390          AA or AAA

Federal Home Loan Bank 5,564,376       -                      5,476,017       88,359            AA or AAA

Federal National Mortgage 3,275,867       -                      3,039,280       236,587          AA or AAA

Total Investments 11,220,041$   22,925$          10,504,780$   692,336$        

Investment Maturity (in Years)

2016

Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1 to 5 6 to 10 Credit Rating

Money Market 50,310$          50,310$          -$                    -$                    N/A

Certificates of Deposit 497,713          -                      497,713          -                      AA+ or AAA

Federal Farm Credit Bank Loan 2,257,261       2,127,032       -                      130,229          AA or AAA

Federal Home Loan Bank 3,970,767       2,160,907       1,719,825       90,035            AA or AAA

Federal National Mortgage 5,442,079       2,456,587       2,485,304       500,188          AA or AAA

Total Investments 12,218,130$   6,794,836$     4,702,842$     720,452$        

Investment Maturity (in Years)

 
The carrying values of deposits shown above are included in the combined statements of 
net position as follows: 
 

2017 2016
Carrying Value:

Deposits 13,018,280$    14,053,777$    
WYO-STAR State Pooled Funds 105,615           104,973           
Investments 11,220,041      12,218,130      

Total Deposits and Investments 24,343,936$   26,376,880$   

Included in the Following Balance Sheet Captions:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,410,045$      9,394,825$      
Restricted by Contributors and Grantors 396,645           449,088           
Restricted by Bond Indenture Agreements 3,017,205        3,014,837        
Designated by Board for Capital Improvements 12,520,041      13,518,130

Total Deposits and Investments 24,343,936$   26,376,880$   
 

DRAFT

Page 40 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY  
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(26) 

 
NOTE 4 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Fair Value Measurements 

The Hospital uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain 
assets and liabilities and to determine fair value disclosures. For additional information on 
how the Hospital measures fair value refer to Note 1 – Organization and Summary of 
Significant Accounting Policies. The following table presents the fair value hierarchy for the 
balances of the assets and liabilities of the Hospital measured at fair value on a recurring 
basis as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 : 
 

Investment Type Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Money Markets 22,925$          -$                    -$                    22,925$          
Certificates of Deposit 490,685          -                      -                      490,685          
U.S. Government Agencies -                      10,706,431     -                      10,706,431     

Total 513,610$        10,706,431$   -$                    11,220,041$   

Investment Type Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Money Markets 50,310$          -$                    -$                    50,310$          
Certificates of Deposit 497,713          -                      -                      497,713          
U.S. Government Agencies -                      11,670,107     -                      11,670,107     

Total 548,023$        11,670,107$   -$                    12,218,130$   

2016

2017

 
Interest Income 

Interest income of $268,721 and $356,966 for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively, is made up entirely of interest income from deposits and patient accounts at 
collection. 
 
 

NOTE 5 PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Patient accounts receivable for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 consists of the 
following: 
 

2017 2016
Receivable from Patients and Their Insurance Carriers 13,571,170$    11,875,613$    
Receivable from Medicare 1,243,404        2,000,287        
Receivable from Medicaid 374,213           958,026           

Total Patient Accounts Receivable 15,188,787      14,833,926      
Less: Estimated Allowance for Uncollectible Amounts (4,117,000)       (3,645,000)       

Net Patient Accounts Receivable 11,071,787$   11,188,926$   

 
 

NOTE 6 DESIGNATED NET POSITION 

Of the $34,053,693 and $37,247,738 of unrestricted net position reported in 2017 and 2016, 
$12,520,041 and $13,518,130, respectively, has been designated by the Hospital’s board of 
trustees for capital acquisitions. Designated funds remain under the control of the board of 
trustees, which may at its discretion later use the funds for other purposes. 

DRAFT

Page 41 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY  
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(27) 

 
NOTE 7 CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets additions, retirements, and balances for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 
2016 are as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
June 30, Transfers June 30,

2016 Additions Retirements 2017 

Land   18,245$          -$                    -$                    18,245$          
Land Improvements 2,241,397       7,265              661,150          2,909,812       
Buildings 37,401,756   -                    (57,711)           37,344,045   
Equipment 103,163,349 1,253,797     1,782,226       106,199,372 

Totals at Historical Cost 142,824,747   1,261,062       2,385,665       146,471,474   
Less:  Accumulated Depreciation for:

Land Improvements (1,943,458)    (249,392)       (2,208)             (2,195,058)    
Buildings (11,720,554)  (1,220,344)    2,208              (12,938,690)  
Equipment (51,557,029)    (7,395,838)      185,700          (58,767,167)    

Total Accumulated Depreciation (65,221,041)    (8,865,574)      185,700          (73,900,915)    
Capital Assets, Net before Construction
  in Progress 77,603,706     (7,604,512)      2,571,365       72,570,559     
Construction in Progress 3,439,790       2,396,253       (4,497,398)      1,338,645       

Capital Assets, Net 81,043,496$   (5,208,259)$    (1,926,033)$    73,909,204$   

Balance Balance
June 30, Transfers June 30,

2015 Additions Retirements 2016 

Land   18,245$          -$                    -$                    18,245$          
Land Improvements 2,228,097       -                      13,300            2,241,397       
Buildings 33,284,884     -                      4,116,872       37,401,756     
Equipment 99,891,636     120,505          3,151,208       103,163,349   

Totals at Historical Cost 135,422,862   120,505          7,281,380       142,824,747   
Less: Accumulated Depreciation for:

Land Improvements (1,730,225)      (213,233)         -                      (1,943,458)      
Buildings (10,660,500)    (1,060,054)      -                      (11,720,554)    
Equipment (44,225,190)    (7,550,903)      219,064          (51,557,029)    

Total Accumulated Depreciation (56,615,915)    (8,824,190)      219,064          (65,221,041)    
Capital Assets, Net before Construction
  in Progress 78,806,947     (8,703,685)      7,500,444       77,603,706     
Construction in Progress 3,424,090       7,896,357       (7,880,657)      3,439,790       

Capital Assets, Net 82,231,037$   (807,328)$       (380,213)$       81,043,496$   

 
Construction in progress at June 30, 2017, represents costs related to various projects 
throughout the Hospital. 
 
Assets held under capital leases were as follows as of June 30, 2017 and 2016: 
 

2017 2016

Equipment 2,971,290$     1,741,290$     

Less: Accumulated Amortization (1,040,869)      (668,204)         

   Total 1,930,421$     1,073,086$     

 
 

DRAFT

Page 42 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY  
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(28) 

 
NOTE 8 LONG-TERM DEBT 

Long-term debt at June 30, 2017 and 2016 consists of the following: 
 

Balance Balance Amount
June 30, June 30, Due Within

2016 Additions Reductions  2017 One Year 

Hospital Revenue Bonds:
Series 2013A 26,790,000$     -$                     -$                     26,790,000$     -$                     
Series 2013B 8,150,000         -                       (3,800,000)       4,350,000         1,575,000         

Siemen's Note Payable -                       473,100           -                       473,100           85,845             
Capital Lease Obligations 1,066,768         1,230,000         (485,220)          1,811,548         613,600           
Series 2013A Bond Premium 1,241,468         -                       (57,743)            1,183,725         -                       

Total 37,248,236$     1,703,100$       (4,342,963)$     34,608,373$     2,274,445$       

Balance Balance Amount
June 30, June 30, Due Within

2015 Additions Reductions 2016 One Year
Hospital Revenue Bonds:

Series 2013A 26,790,000$     -$                     -$                     26,790,000$     -$                     
Series 2013B 11,890,000       -                       (3,740,000)       8,150,000         1,530,000         

Capital Lease Obligations 902,074           436,706           (272,012)          1,066,768         405,389           
Series 2013A Bond Premium 1,299,211         -                       (57,743)            1,241,468         -                       

Total 40,881,285$     436,706$          (4,069,755)$     37,248,236$     1,935,389$       
 

The terms and due dates of the Hospital’s long-term debt at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 
 

 Sweetwater County, Wyoming (Memorial Hospital) Hospital Revenue Refunding 
Bonds Series 2013A, dated June 20, 2013. Interest is due annually to September 
2037 at a 5% rate. Bonds are secured by Hospital revenues. 

 Sweetwater County, Wyoming (Memorial Hospital) Hospital Revenue Bonds Series 
2013B, dated June 20, 2013. Interest is due annually to September 2023 at a 3.5% 
rate. Bonds are secured by Hospital revenues. 

 Siemen’s Note Payable, payable in monthly installments of $8,877, including 
interest at 4.76%, through January 2021. 

 Capital Lease Obligation, payable in monthly installments of $12,788, including 
interest at 0.77%, though October 2018. 

 Capital Lease Obligation, payable in monthly installments of $9,580, including 
interest at 1.78%, though April 2019. 

 
Restrictive Covenants 

The Hospital is required to meet certain financial and nonfinancial covenants. Management 
believes the Hospital was in compliance with the restrictive covenants as of June 30, 2017 
and 2016, respectively. 
 

DRAFT

Page 43 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY  
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(29) 

 
NOTE 8 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

Scheduled principal and interest payments on long-term and capital leases debt are as 
follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2018 2,274,445$     1,691,904$     3,966,349$     
2019 2,179,881       1,625,474       3,805,355       
2020 1,989,186       1,560,135       3,549,321       
2021 2,054,645       1,493,477       3,548,122       
2022 2,125,325       1,425,060       3,550,385       

2023 to 2027 7,316,166       6,199,428       13,515,594     
2028 to 2032 8,320,000       4,370,500       12,690,500     
2033 to 2037 7,165,000       2,068,875       9,233,875       

Total 33,424,648$   20,434,853$   53,859,501$   

 
 

NOTE 9 PENSION PLANS 

The Hospital has a Section 457 defined contribution pension plan that is available to all 
qualified Hospital employees. The Hospital’s contribution to the plan is based on a 100% 
match of employee contributions up to a maximum of 7% of participant salaries. The 
Hospital’s matching contributions are deposited into the 401(a) plan described below. 
Employees are eligible to participate in the plan upon completion of three months of service 
and reaching the age of 21. 
 
The Hospital also has a Section 401(a) defined contribution pension plan that is available to 
all qualified Hospital employees. The Hospital contributes up to 7% of participant salaries to 
the account. Employees are eligible to participate in the plan upon completion of one year of 
service and reaching the age of 21. 
 
The pension expense for the years ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015 was $1,511,802, 
$1,349,213, and $1,085,676, respectively. 
 

DRAFT

Page 44 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY  
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(30) 

 
NOTE 10 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK 

The Hospital grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of who are insured under 
third-party payor agreements. The mix of patient receivables from third-party payors and 
patients at June 30, 2017 and 2016 was as follows: 
 

2017 2016
Medicare 20 % 20 %
Medicaid 8 11
Blue Cross 17 14
Other Third-Party Payors 25 30
Patients 30 25

Total 100 % 100 %

 
 

NOTE 11 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Operating Leases 

The Hospital leases certain facilities and equipment under long-term operating lease 
agreements for the year ended June 30, 2017. Total lease expense for all operating leases 
for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 was approximately $1,030,000 and $863,000, 
respectively. 

 
Minimum future lease payments for these operating leases are as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30,
 Operating 

Leases 
2017 110,953$        
2018 84,069            
2019 38,223            
Total 233,245$        

 
Malpractice Insurance 

The Hospital has malpractice insurance coverage to provide protection for professional 
liability losses on a claims-made basis subject to a limit of $1 million per claim and an annual 
aggregate limit of $3 million. Should the claims-made policy not be renewed or replaced with 
equivalent insurance, claims based on occurrences during its term, but reported 
subsequently, would be uninsured. 
 

DRAFT

Page 45 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY  
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(31) 

 
NOTE 11 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 

Self-Funded Health Insurance 

The Hospital self-funds health benefits for eligible employees and their dependents. Health 
insurance expense is recorded on an accrual basis. An accrued liability is recorded in the 
combined financial statements, which estimates the claims incurred but not yet reported and 
claims reported but not yet paid. The Hospital has stop loss insurance to cover catastrophic 
claims. The Hospital expensed amounts representing the employer’s portion of actual claims 
paid, adjusted for the actuarially determined estimates of liabilities relating to claims 
resulting from services provided prior to the respective fiscal period-end. The Hospital 
recognized approximately $4,903,000 and $4,451,000 of expense during the years ended 
June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The estimated liability relating to self-funded health 
insurance was $400,000 as of June 30, 2017 and 2016. 
 
Litigations, Claims and Disputes 

The Hospital is subject to the usual contingencies in the normal course of operations relating 
to the performance of its tasks under its various programs. In the opinion of management, 
the ultimate settlement of litigation, claims and disputes in process will not be material to the 
combined financial position of the Hospital. 
 
The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and 
local governments. Compliance with these laws and regulations, specifically those relating 
to the Medicare and Medicaid programs, can be subject to government review and 
interpretation, as well as regulatory actions unknown and unasserted at this time. Federal 
government activity has increased with respect to investigations and allegations concerning 
possible violations by health care providers of regulations, which could result in the 
imposition of significant fines and penalties, as well as significant repayments of previously 
billed and collected revenues from patient services. Management believes that the Hospital 
is in substantial compliance with current laws and regulations. 
 
 

NOTE 12 ELECTRONIC HEALTH RECORD INCENTIVE PROGRAM 

The Electronic Health Record (EHR) incentive program was enacted as part of the American 
Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) and the Health Information Technology for 
Economic and Clinical Health (HITECH) Act. These Acts provided for incentive payments 
under both the Medicare and Medicaid programs to eligible hospitals that demonstrate 
meaningful use of certified EHR technology. The incentive payments are made based on a 
statutory formula and are contingent on the Hospital continuing to meet the escalating 
meaningful use criteria. 
 

DRAFT

Page 46 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY  
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

(32) 

 
NOTE 12 ELECTRONIC HEALTH RECORD INCENTIVE PROGRAM (CONTINUED) 

The Hospital demonstrated meaningful use to Stage 1 criteria for the initial 90-day reporting 
period during the year ended June 30, 2014. The Hospital received approximately $310,000 
and $440,000 of meaningful use incentive revenue, which is recognized as other operating 
revenues in the combined statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position 
for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. As of June 30, 2017, there has 
been no adjustment of these payments. However, the Hospital’s cost report for the year 
ended June 30, 2014 has not been finalized. 
 
 
 

DRAFT

Page 47 of 335



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

 

(33) 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 
Rock Springs, Wyoming 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the combined financial statements of Memorial 
Hospital of Sweetwater County (the Hospital), which comprise the combined statement of net position 
as of June 30, 2017, and the related combined statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net 
position, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the combined financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 4, 2017. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the combined financial statements, we considered the 
Hospital’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the combined 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Hospital’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Hospital’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

DRAFT

Page 48 of 335



Board of Trustees 
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 
 

(34) 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Hospital’s combined financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Hospital’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Hospital’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Minneapolis, Minnesota 
October 4, 2017 
 

DRAFT

Page 49 of 335



WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Investment advisory services are offered through CliftonLarsonAllen Wealth Advisors, LLC, 
an SEC‐registered investment advisor.  | ©2017 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Memorial Hospital of 
Sweetwater County

2017 Audit Results and 
Report to the Board of Trustees

DRAFT

Page 50 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Table of Contents

Governance Communication A
Internal Control Communication B
Financial Ratios C
Industry Trends D

Appendix: 
• Internal Control Communication Letter

2

DRAFT

Page 51 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

Section A

Governance Communication

3

DRAFT

Page 52 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Governance Communication
Area Comments

Our responsibility 
under Generally 
Accepted Auditing 
Standards

• Express an opinion on the fair presentation of the financial
statements in conformity with GAAP

• Plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, not absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of material
misstatement

• Evaluate internal control over financial reporting
• Determine the nature, timing, and extent of audit procedures

based on risk assessments and our evaluation of internal control
• Utilize a risk based audit approach
• Communicate significant matters to appropriate parties

Planned scope and 
timing of the audit

• Performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing
discussed

Other information in 
documents 
containing audited 
financial statements

• Financial statements may only be used in their entirety
• Our approval is required to use our audit report in a client prepared

document
• We have no responsibility to perform procedures beyond those

related to the financial statements

4

DRAFT

Page 53 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Significant disclosures

• No sensitive disclosures
• No significant risks, exposures, or uncertainties
• No unusual transactions
• Disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear

Governance Communication
Area Comments

Significant accounting 
policies

• Management is responsible for accounting policies
• Outlined in Note 1 to the combined financial statements
• No changes in accounting policies or new policies adopted
• Appropriate accounting policies
• No significant or unusual transactions occurred

Significant accounting 
estimates

• Contractual allowances, allowance for bad debts, third-party payer
settlement estimates, and accrued self-funded health insurance
liability

• Determined based on management’s knowledge and experience
• No indicators of management bias
• Estimates are reasonable
• Estimate uncertainty disclosed in the financial statements

5

DRAFT

Page 54 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Governance Communication
Area Comments
Corrected and 
uncorrected 
misstatements

• No proposed audit adjustments
• No passed adjustments

Management 
representation

• Management provided a management representation letter dated
October 4, 2017

Other

• No difficulties encountered in performing the audit
• No issues discussed prior to retention as independent auditors
• No disagreements with management regarding accounting,

reporting, or auditing matters
• No consultations with other independent accountants
• No other findings or issues were discussed with, or

communicated to, management

6

DRAFT

Page 55 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

Section B

Internal Control Communication 

7

DRAFT

Page 56 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Internal Control Communication

8

Purpose

• Express an opinion on the combined financial statements, not on the effectiveness of
internal controls.

Material Weakness

• Reasonable possibility that a material misstatement would not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected, on a timely basis.

Significant Deficiencies

• Less significant than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit the attention
of governance.

Results: No control deficiencies detected that were determined to be 
material weaknesses

DRAFT

Page 57 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

Section C

Financial Ratios

9

DRAFT

Page 58 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

• Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 
(MHSC)
– $83 Million Net Patient Service Revenue in 2017
– Based on Audited Financial Statements

• CLA Benchmark
– Hospital’s between $25M and $100M in Net Patient 

Services Revenue

• Standard & Poor’s (S&P BBB+ to BBB‐)
– Median indicators from a sample of 88 non‐profit 

hospitals in the United States.

Comparative Data Used

2014-2016

2014-2016

2014-2017

10

DRAFT

Page 59 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Definition:
This ratio is operating income as a percentage of net patient service revenue plus other operating
revenues. It is used to report the facility’s return on revenues which relate to the main purpose of
operations.

Operating Margin

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Financial Indicators – Profitability Ratios
Exhibit 1

11

-5.5%

1.6%

-3.4%

-11.1%

-1.5% 1.1%

1.3%
1.3%

2.4%
1.2%

-12.0%
-10.0%

-8.0%
-6.0%
-4.0%
-2.0%
0.0%
2.0%
4.0%

2014 2015 2016 2017
MHSC CLA BBB+ to BBB-

DRAFT

Page 60 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Financial Indicators – Profitability Ratios
Exhibit 2

Total Margin
Definition:

Total margin reflects excess of revenue over expenses as a percentage of total revenues, including non‐
operating revenues.

12

1.1%

6.7%

1.3%

-8.9%

3.0%
4.1%

2.4%

3.1%
4.1% 2.4%

-10.0%
-8.0%
-6.0%
-4.0%
-2.0%
0.0%
2.0%
4.0%
6.0%
8.0%

2014 2015 2016 2017

MHSC CLA BBB+ to BBB-

DRAFT

Page 61 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Definition:
Total EBIDA represents Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation, and Amortization divided by total
revenues. It is used as a rough measure of cash flow in a facility. This ratio is often used when evaluating
debt capacity.

Total EBIDA

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Financial Indicators – Profitability Ratios
Exhibit 3

13

13.2%
18.6%

12.5%

2.8%

12.7%
11.8%

10.2%

0.0%
2.0%
4.0%
6.0%
8.0%

10.0%
12.0%
14.0%
16.0%
18.0%
20.0%

2014 2015 2016 2017
MHSC CLA

DRAFT

Page 62 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Definition:
This is measured by dividing the amount of operating losses in the physician practices by the Provider
FTE’s worked. We would recommend not focusing necessarily on the loss position of the practice but
more the trend over a four year time horizon.

Operating Loss per Provider FTE 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Operating Indicators – Physician Specific
Exhibit 4

14

‐114,894
‐122,476

‐131,718

‐164,119
‐180,000

‐160,000

‐140,000

‐120,000

‐100,000

‐80,000

‐60,000

‐40,000

‐20,000

0

2014 2015 2016 2017

Loss per
Provider FTE

DRAFT

Page 63 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Definition:
This is measured by dividing the amount of visits (primary care and specialty care) in the physician
practices by the Provider FTE’s worked.

Visits per Provider FTE 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Operating Indicators – Physician Specific
Exhibit 5

15

986

1,255
1,191

845

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

2014 2015 2016 2017

Visits per
Provider FTE

DRAFT

Page 64 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Definition:
Days Cash on Hand measures the number of days of average cash expenses that the facility maintains in
cash and amounts reserved for capital improvements. High values usually imply a greater ability to meet
both short‐term obligations and long‐term capital replacement needs.

Days Cash on Hand (All Sources)

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Financial Indicators – Liquidity Ratios
Exhibit 6

16

151

130

103

88

181 176 190

160
159

164

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

2014 2015 2016 2017
MHSC CLA BBB+ to BBB-

DRAFT

Page 65 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Definition:
Days in patient accounts receivable is defined as the average time that receivables are outstanding, or the
average collection period.

Net Days in Accounts Receivable

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Financial Indicators – Liquidity Ratios
Exhibit 7

17

56 58

49

4847

44
44

48 47
46

35

40

45

50

55

60

2014 2015 2016 2017
MHSC CLA BBB+ to BBB-

DRAFT

Page 66 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Definition:
This is measured by dividing the amount of patient accounts receivable over 90 days by the total
receivables in that payer category. Generally the lower this percentage is, the shorter turn around time
the facility experiences for collecting receivables.

Percentage of A/R over 90 Days Old

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Financial Indicators – Liquidity Ratios
Exhibit 8

18

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Medicare Medicaid Self-Pay Other Total

16%

42%

21% 21%

27%

6%

26%

34%

19% 21%

9%

31%

55%

15%

26%

MHSC - 2016 MHSC - 2017 CLA - 2016

DRAFT

Page 67 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Definition:
This ratio is calculated by dividing the bad debt and charity care by gross patient service revenue.

Bad Debt & Charity Care as a % of Gross Patient Service Revenue

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Financial Indicators – Other Ratios
Exhibit 9

19

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

2014 2015 2016 2017 CLA - 2016

8.0%

6.5% 6.1% 6.2%

3.6%

2.4% 2.4%
1.9% 1.6% 1.9%

10.3%

8.9%
7.9% 7.8%

5.5%

Bad Debt Charity Combined

DRAFT

Page 68 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Definition:
Debt service coverage is calculated as income available for debt service (net income + depreciation and
amortization + interest expense) divided by the annual debt service requirements (principal payments
made + interest expense).

Debt Service Coverage

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Financial Indicators – Leverage Ratios
Exhibit 10

20

3.8

3.0
2.1

1.3

2.7 3.0
2.82.9

3.3

2.7

0.0
0.5
1.0
1.5
2.0
2.5
3.0
3.5
4.0
4.5

2014 2015 2016 2017
MHSC CLA BBB+ to BBB-

DRAFT

Page 69 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Definition:
This ratio is defined as the proportion of long‐term debt divided by long‐term debt plus total net assets.
Higher values for this ratio imply a greater reliance on debt financing and may imply reduced ability to
carry additional debt.

Debt to Capitalization

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Financial Indicators – Leverage Ratios
Exhibit 11

21

35% 31%

29% 30%

23%
28%

30%

35%
36% 34%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

2014 2015 2016 2017
MHSC CLA BBB+ to BBB-

DRAFT

Page 70 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Definition:
Average age of plant attempts to approximate the average age of an organization’s fixed assets. A low
value is considered to be desirable as it indicates a newer facility.

Average Age of Plant

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Financial Indicators – Other Ratios
Exhibit 12

22

6.9 6.6
7.4

8.3

12.5

11.4

12.1
11.9

11.9
12.1

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0

12.0

14.0

2014 2015 2016 2017
MHSC CLA BBB+ to BBB-

DRAFT

Page 71 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

Section D

Industry Trends

23

DRAFT

Page 72 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Two Options for Changes to ACA Provisions

Door A = Full Repeal
• Not “filibuster proof” in 

Senate 
• Resistance from State 

Governors
• Industry and general 

public resentment
• Republicans not unified

Door B = Piecemeal Change
• Use of “Budget 

Reconciliation”
• Legislation that impacts 

spending, revenues, or 
federal debt limit, only

• No filibuster in Senate 
allowed

• Simple majority necessary 
to pass in Senate

Budget Reconciliation is a numbers game, with limited options in a 
constrained process that does not always result in the best outcomes

DRAFT

Page 73 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Insurers Exiting Exchanges

DRAFT

Page 74 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Individual Market Seeing Premiums Skyrocket
• With the implementation of the 

ACA per member per month costs 
(PMPM) skyrocketed. 

• According to an S&P study, PMPM 
costs in the individual market 
exceeded the PMPM costs in the 
employer market by early 2015.

• According to the S&P study, PMPM 
costs in the individual market rose 
by 38% between 2013 and 2014.

• This trend continued for 2014 and 
2015 by growing an additional 
23%, for a combined growth rate 
from 2013 to 2015 of 69%

Source: Forbes article dated July 28, 2016, Titled: “Overwhelming Evidence That Obamacare Caused Premiums to Increase Substantially” accessed via 
web at: https://www.forbes.com/sites/theapothecary/2016/07/28/overwhelming-evidence-that-obamacare-caused-premiums-to-increase-
substantially/#7ba0752b15be

DRAFT

Page 75 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Insurance Premiums Continue To Erode Wages

• To date the ACA has not 
been able to curb the erosion 
insurance premiums have 
had on workers wages.

• Since 2010, premiums spent 
for family coverage have 
grown from $.42 for every $1 
earned to $.49 for every $1 
earned.

• This represents an aggregate 
erosion in take home pay of 
almost 17%.

Source: Forbes article dated Sept. 27, 2016, Titled: “Health Insurance Premiums Have Continued to Rise Faster Than Worker Wages Under Obamacare” 
accessed via the web at:
https://www.forbes.com/sites/theapothecary/2016/09/27/health-insurance-premiums-have-continued-to-rise-faster-than-worker-wages-under-
obamacare/#3aeb3729afe7

DRAFT

Page 76 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

An Unsustainable Trend Line
• CBO’s projects outlays as a percent of GDP through 2027 to grow to 23.4% vs. historical average of 20.3%.
• Major Health Care Programs are projected to continue to escalate, and grow to 6.9% of GDP; the fastest and 

largest of any spending category.
• The corresponding impact of this deficit would be to escalate federal debt held by the public from $15 

trillion to $25 trillion, or growing from 77% to 89% of GDP.
• This level of debt would be the highest since WWII in 1947 and more than double the average over the past 

five decades.

DRAFT

Page 77 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Four Principles to Monitor

Reductions in 
federal health 
care spending

Greater state 
management 
and control with 
less federal 
intervention

Increased market 
competition and 
incentives to drive 
consumerism

Continue to drive 
policies that 
promote increasing 
the value of health 
care

29

DRAFT

Page 78 of 335



©
20
17

 C
lif
to
nL
ar
so
nA

lle
n 
LL
P

WEALTH ADVISORY  |  OUTSOURCING |  AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING
30

CLAconnect.com

twitter.com/
CLA_CPAs

facebook.com/
cliftonlarsonallen

linkedin.com/company/
cliftonlarsonallen

Darryn McGarvey, CPA
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Principal
Darryn.McGarvey@CLAconnect.com
612‐376‐4624

Contact Information

DRAFT

Page 79 of 335



Joint Conference Committee Charter Page 1 
 

Board Charter for The Joint Conference Committee  

                                                                                                                                   
                                                                                           

Category: Charter 
Title: Joint Conference Committee 
Original adoption: 2010 
Revision: October 4, 2017 
           
    

Purpose: 

The purpose of the Joint Conference Committee is to serve as an official means of 
liaison among the Board of Trustees (Board), the Medical Staff, and the Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO), with the intent of promoting open communications and strengthening 
relationships. Its primary function shall be to serve as a forum for discussion of matters 
effecting the medical staff and medical care; the community’s health care needs; and 
plans for growth and/or changes in service(s). 

  
Responsibilities: 
In fulfilling its charge, the Joint Conference Committee is responsible for the following 
activities and functions: 
 

 Serves as a forum for education and discussion of issues of mutual concern 
related to patient care, medical policies, staffing and resources, and the 
relationship between the Board, the CEO, and members of the medical staff. 

 Serves as a forum for education and discussion on all matters related to the 
quality of care, patient safety, customer service, organizational culture, hospital 
economics, health care policy, and other items of mutual interest. 

 Addresses troublesome issues before they burgeon into conflicts. 

 Makes recommendations to the Board and the Medical Executive 
Committee, respectively. 

 Keeps a record of its meetings and reports to the Board and the Medical 
Executive Committee, respectively.  

 
Composition 

The committee shall consist of two (2) members of the Board, one (1) of whom shall 
be the Board Chair; two (2) members of the medical staff, one (1) of whom shall be the 
Chair of the Medical Executive Committee, and the CEO. All members will have voting 
privileges. The chair of this committee will alternate annually between the Board Chair 
and the Medical Executive Committee Chair.  
 

Meeting Schedule 
The committee shall meet as needed. 

Board of Directors Policy Manual 

Page 80 of 335



Building & Grounds Committee Charter Page 1 
 

Board Charter: The Building & Grounds Committee  

                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                          

Category: Board Committees & Committee Charters 
Title: Building & Grounds Committee 
Original adoption:  
Revision:  
 
            
   
  

Purpose: 
 
The purpose of the Building & Grounds Committee is to represent and assist the Board 
of Trustees (Board) in discharging its duties in respect to protecting and maintaining the 
real properties of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (Hospital), including its off-
site properties, in support of a safe, efficient, and aesthetic environment. 

Responsibilities: 

In fulfilling its charge, the Building & Grounds Committee is responsible for the following 
activities and functions: 

1. Monitor the functional integrity and safety of the Hospital’s real properties, 
including its off-site properties, and reports to the Board any needs for action to 
maintain or improve its real properties. 

2. Assess the needs, and governmental and regulatory mandates, to set priorities 
that support the overall mission of the Hospital for safe, efficient care. 

3. Recommend, review, and assess proposed projects and renovations. 
4. Identify future needs and improvements that are beyond normal maintenance 

activities. 
5. Monitor capital construction projects. 
6. Recommend to the Board an annual Building and Grounds plan consistent with 

the Hospital’s annual budget and strategic plan. 
 

Composition:  

The Building & Grounds Committee will consist of two (2) members of the Board, one of 
whom will function as chair person; the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officers; and 
the Director of Facilities. Each of these members shall have voting privileges. 

The Director of Facilities, at his discretion, may invite other attendees who have 
involvement with, or can contribute information about, any current issue under 

Board of Trustees Orientation and Resource Handbook 

Page 81 of 335



Building & Grounds Committee Charter Page 2 
 

consideration at a meeting of the committee.  Such additional attendees will not have 
voting rights.   

Meeting Schedule: 

 
The committee shall meet monthly, or as needed. 
 

 

Page 82 of 335



Quality Committee Charter Page 1 
 

Board Charter for Quality Committee  

                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                          

Category: Board Committee & Committee Charters 
Title: Quality Committee 
Original adoption: June 14, 2010 
Revision: October 4, 2017 
 
            
   

Purpose: 
The purpose of the Quality Committee is to represent and assist the Board in its fiduciary and 
oversight duties regarding the delivery of safe quality care as set forth below.  
 
Definition of Quality: “Quality at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County is a patient-
centered commitment to excellence, consistently using best practice for process improvement 
to achieve the best outcomes for our patients and organizational culture.” 
 
The American Institute of Medicine (IAM) defines the six (6) dimension of quality as:  

1. SAFE, does not harm 
2. TIMELY, delivered without unnecessary delays  
3. EFFECTIVE, based on the best scientific knowledge currently available  
4. EFFICIENT, does not waste resources 
5. EQUITABLE, based health needs not personal characteristics 
6. PATIENT-CENTERED, respectful and customized according to patients needs and values 

  

Responsibilities: 
  
In fulfilling its charge, the Quality Committee is responsible for the following activities and 
functions: 

1. Reviews monthly the quality, safety and patient experience reports as well as priority 
focus topics as identified by the committee.  

2. Develops Board level policies regarding the delivery of safe, patient centered, quality 
care, as needed. 

3. Develops organizational strategy regarding the delivery of safe patient centered, quality 
care as aligned with the organizational strategic plan. 

4. Reviews the hospital’s annual “Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI) 
and Safety Plan and makes recommendations to the Board regarding approval of said 
plan.  

Board of Trustees Orientation and Resource Manual 

Page 83 of 335



Quality Committee Charter Page 2 
 

5. Monitors overall quality, safety, and patient experience of the organization as aligned 
with approved plans, goals and regulatory requirements.  

6. Reviews all Serious Safety Events, as defined by our organization, the National Quality 
Forum, Wyoming Department of Health, Joint Commission and/or other agencies along 
with improvement plans. The committee designee reports it to the Board in executive 
session.  

7. Assures that quality and cost are appropriately inter-related and that the hospital’s 
culture and resources are sufficient to support efforts to improve quality and reduce 
costs.  

8. In executive session, participates with medical staff to set criteria and processes for 
credentialing and the ongoing quality monitoring of clinicians, and recommends Board 
approval. Monitors credentialing process for consistency, fairness and effectiveness. 
Review of high level reports and outcomes from the Medical Staff Ongoing Professional 
Practice Evaluation process bi-annually. 

9. Requires that major new programs and/or service additions or enhancements have met 
specific quality-related performance criteria including, but not limited to, volume, 
staffing, and accreditation requirements. 

10. Recommend education programs to the Board. 

 
Composition 
 
The committee shall consist of two (2) members of the Board, one of whom shall serve 
as Chair; the Chief Medical Officer and at least one other physician; the Chief Executive 
Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Nursing Officer, the Chief Clinical Officer, 
the Director of Accreditation, the Director of Quality, Director of Infection Prevention 
and a Clinic designee.  Each of these members shall have voting privileges. 
 
Meetings should l be attended by the Director of Information Technology, the Medical 
Staff Supervisor, and representatives from other patient care departments. These 
individuals shall not have voting privileges. 
 

Meeting Schedule 
The committee shall meet monthly, and as needed. 
 

Reports 
 
The committee will regularly receive and review the following reports and executive 
summaries will be reported to the Board: 
 

•     The reports for quality, patient safety, and patient experience monthly. . 
 Payment adjustment program information and publicly reported quality metrics 
as made available by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services 

 Serious Safety Events, as they occur. 

Page 84 of 335



Quality Committee Charter Page 3 
 

 Root Cause Analysis (RCA) and Failure Mode and Effects Analysis (FMEA) reports 
as they occur. 

 Environmental safety reports quarterly.  

 Progress on performance improvements and/or safety goals as aligned with 
identified priority areas in the QAPI Plan and/or other priorities identified by the 
committee monthly in action plan format. 

 Quality Assessment Performance Improvement and Safety Plan annually. 

 Culture of Safety survey biennially. 

 Accreditation reports when received. 

 Audit of credentialing process at least every two years. 

 Audit of peer review and focused monitoring annually. 

 Audit clinical contract quality review annually. 

Page 85 of 335



Page 86 of 335



Page 87 of 335



Page 88 of 335



Page 89 of 335



Page 90 of 335



Page 91 of 335



Page 92 of 335



Page 93 of 335



Page 94 of 335



Page 95 of 335



Page 96 of 335



Page 97 of 335



Page 98 of 335



Page 99 of 335



Page 100 of 335



Page 101 of 335



Page 102 of 335



Page 103 of 335



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Board
of Trustees

Building & Grounds Committee Meeting

Tuesday - September 12, 2017

5:00 PM

MHSC Classrooms 1 & 2

Page 104 of 335



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Building & Grounds Committee 

Classrooms 1 & 2 

5:00 PM 

 

Tuesday – September 12, 2017 

 

 

 

Board Committee Members  Staff Attendees 

Taylor Jones    Irene Richardson 

Ed Tardoni    Jim Horan 

     Tami Love 

 

Guests 

  John Kolb – Board of Sweetwater County Commissioners 

  Gerry Johnston – Facilities 

  Stevie Nosich – Facilities 

 

Agenda 

 

1. Approve August 15, 2017 Minutes     

2. Project(s) Review  

A. Emergency Room Desk – Final documents and payment   

B. Laundry Update        

C. CT Project Update        

D. 10-20 Prioritized Projects List      

3. Old Business  

A. Tunnel Issues        

B. Existing Contingency Plans      

C. Storage Options        

4. New Business  

A. The Joint Commission Survey 

B. Charter      

5. Meeting Schedule         

 

Page 2 of 6Page 105 of 335



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

Building & Grounds Committee Meeting 

August 15, 2017 

 

 

Trustees Present:   Mr. Taylor Jones 

Mr. Ed Tardoni  

 

Committee Members Present:  Mr. Jim Horan 

     Ms. Tami Love 

 

Committee Members Absent:  Ms. Irene Richardson 

   

Guests: Mr. Gerry Johnston - Facilities 

Mr. John Kolb – Sweetwater County Board of County 

Commissioners 

Ms. Britt Swanson – Plan One Architects 

 

 

Call Meeting to Order 
 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order.  
 

Meeting Minutes 
 

The minutes of the July 18, 2017, regular meeting were reviewed. The motion to approve the 

minutes as presented was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Horan. Motion carried.  
 

Projects Review 
 

Emergency Department Reception Desk 

 

Ms. Swanson said there is nothing new to report as they are still waiting on the contractor, 

Hogan.  

 

Laundry 

 

Mr. Horan said they have been cleaning the ducts and found and repaired a bad damper.  This 

has already resulted in better exhaust in the room.  They are looking at having all of the ducts 

thoroughly cleaned and then will look at the possibility of installing a second exhaust.  

 

Seclusion/Detention Rooms 

 

The committee is waiting for additional information and accurate data before making any 

recommendations. 

 

Old Business 

 

Tunnel Issues 

 

No update. 

Page 3 of 6Page 106 of 335



 

 

Minutes of the August 15, 2017 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

 

 

New Business 

 

Action Plans 

 

Mr. Tardoni asked if there was an action plan for what would happen if the single steam line 

failed.  Could the old steam line be used if needed?  Mr. Tardoni mentioned the work being done 

in the Quality meeting regarding having individual action plans and teams to create them.  Mr. 

Horan said we do have policies on what to do in the case of failure of different systems.  Mr.  

Jones commented that he would like to see a full set of contingency plans for Facilities and Mr. 

Tardoni added it would make them more comfortable with putting off needed repairs.  Mr. Kolb 

asked specifically about fixing the second steam line and possibly amending the budget to make 

the repairs.  Mr. Johnston said it could probably be repaired with existing budgeted operational 

funds.  Mr. Horan will bring the existing contingency plans and policies for the Building & 

Grounds committee to review.  Mr. Jones reiterated that if we find something that needs fixed, 

then fix it, don’t wait to bring it to this committee for approval.  Ms. Love told the committee 

that we have the County maintenance fund to be used for this type of repairs.  Mr. Jones asked 

for a list of 10 – 20 prioritized projects that we can use the Maintenance fund for and then we can 

decide if we need to ask the Commissioners for additional money.  Mr. Horan and Mr. Jones 

agreed that we can’t spend millions on projects but we can do small fixes to patch and sustain 

until we can spend the millions.  Ms. Love reminded the committee that maintenance and repairs 

can be done out of the operational budget but any Capital projects still need to go through 

Finance & Audit and the Board. 

 

Storage Facilities 

 

In-house counsel has been asked to write up a new lease contract for the current storage building 

for a term of one year.  Mr. Jones asked about looking into purchasing “C” cans to store 

documents in onsite.  He said the current building we are leasing is too big for what we are using 

it for.  Mr. Johnston said we need to make sure we have access to the documents.  Mr. Jones 

asked that we start looking for other options for storage so we have a plan after the one year 

lease is up. 

 

CT Project 

 

Ms. Swanson was excused from the meeting. 

Mr. Horan discussed the two architect proposals received for the CT replacement project.  Mr. 

Jones asked that a recommendation be brought to the Finance & Audit committee so it can be 

moved to the full Board for approval. 

 

The Committee agreed to meet again on Tuesday, September 12 at 5:00 PM.  

 

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:16 PM.  

 
 

Submitted by Tami Love. 

Page 4 of 6Page 107 of 335



Building & Grounds Committee Charter Page 1 
 

Board Charter: The Building & Grounds Committee  

                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                          

Category: Board Committees & Committee Charters 
Title: Building & Grounds Committee 
Original adoption:  
Revision:  
 
            
   
  

Purpose: 
 
The purpose of the Building & Grounds Committee is to represent and assist the Board 
of Trustees (Board) in discharging its duties in respect to protecting and maintaining the 
real properties of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (Hospital), including its off-
site properties, in support of a safe, efficient, and aesthetic environment. 

Responsibilities: 

In fulfilling its charge, the Building & Grounds Committee is responsible for the following 
activities and functions: 

1. Monitor the functional integrity and safety of the Hospital’s real properties, 
including its off-site properties, and reports to the Board any needs for action to 
maintain or improve its real properties. 

2. Assess the needs, and governmental and regulatory mandates, to set priorities 
that support the overall mission of the Hospital for safe, efficient care. 

3. Recommend, review, and assess proposed projects and renovations. 
4. Identify future needs and improvements that are beyond normal maintenance 

activities. 
5. Monitor capital construction projects. 
6. Recommend to the Board an annual Building and Grounds plan consistent with 

the Hospital’s annual budget and strategic plan. 
 

Composition:  

The Building & Grounds Committee will consist of two (2) members of the Board, one of 
whom will function as chair person; the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officers; and 
the Director of Facilities. Each of these members shall have voting privileges. 

The Director of Facilities, at his discretion, may invite other attendees who have 
involvement with, or can contribute information about, any current issue under 

Board of Trustees Orientation and Resource Handbook 

Page 5 of 6Page 108 of 335



Building & Grounds Committee Charter Page 2 
 

consideration at a meeting of the committee.  Such additional attendees will not have 
voting rights.   

Meeting Schedule: 

 
The committee shall meet monthly, or as needed. 
 

 

Page 6 of 6Page 109 of 335



              Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Foundation’s mission is to foster philanthropic relationships, raise funds, and manage resources 
for the advancement of healthcare at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County for the benefit of the citizens of Southwest Wyoming. 

 

 

 

September 28, 2017 
5:30pm 

MHSC Foundation Office  
 

 

AGENDA 

I. Call to Order Charlie Van Over   

Roll Call & Establishing Quorum  

Reading of Mission Statement 
 

II. Approval of Minutes Charlie Van Over   

August  
 

III. Monthly Financial Report  Teresa Noble 

      

IV. Old Business     

A. Red Tie Gala Tiffany Marshall 

B. Urology Approved Purchase Tiffany Marshall 

C. Employee Contribution Campaign Tiffany Marshall  
 

V. New Business   

A. Foundation President update Charlie Van Over 

B. Interim CEO update Irene Richardson 

C. Foundation Director updates Tiffany Marshall 

D. Vacant Board Position- Medical Staff Representative Tiffany Marshall 

  

VI. Other Discussions 

 

VII. Adjournment 

 

 

Next Meeting:  
Joint Foundation and MHSC Board of Trustee dinner- 5:30pm  

Joint Foundation and MHSC Board of Trustee Meeting- 6:00pm 

Foundation Board meeting- 7:00pm 

October 26, 2017 

Classrooms 1-3  

Page 110 of 335



September 28, 2017 
5:30pm 

Coyote Creek 
 

BOARD MEMBER PACKET 

This packet includes additional information for the Foundation Board to review and discuss during 
the Foundation Board Meeting.   

Page 1: Updated Memorial Hospital Foundation Board of Directors Contact Information 

Page 2: Updated 2017-2018 Board of Trustees and other position information 

Page 3-6: Official Capital Request and Quote for PharmaWatches 

Page 7: Memo from Uinta Bank- Investment Opportunities  

Page 8: Red Tie Gala Historical Sponsor List 

Page 9: PR- Blanket Donation  

Page 111 of 335



1

Page 112 of 335



2

Page 113 of 335



3

Page 114 of 335



4

Page 115 of 335



5

Page 116 of 335



6

Page 117 of 335



7

Page 118 of 335



Sponsor 2015 2016 2017 2018 forecasted
Amerinet (turned Intallere) Platinum See Intallere See Intallere na
BP America Platinum 
City of Green River Platinum Platinum Declined decline
City of Rock Springs Platinum Platinum Declined decline
CJ Signs Wrap trade Wrap trade Wrap trade Wrap trade
Clark Stith Gold 
CliftonLarsonAllen Gold CliftonLarsonAllen Platinum Platinum/Diamond
Coldwell Banker Diamond
Commerce Bank DIamond Platinum Diamond Diamond
Complete Carpet Care Gold Declined Gold 
Daniel's Jewlery Platinum Platinum Platinum Platinum/Diamond
Deer Trail Assisted Living Gold Gold
Dr Franks Diamond (VIP winner) Diamond Diamond Platinum/Diamond
Dr. and Mrs. Oliver $350 check
Dr. Brianne Crofts Platinum 
Dr. Dinko and Diana Plenkovich Gold Dr. Dinko and Diana Plenkovich Seperated
Dr. Duck* Diamond Sat at Jerry's table Sat at Jerry's table
Dr. Jake Johnson (Family Med) Platinum Diamond Platinum/Diamond
Dr. Jensen* Diamond
Dr. Mack/ Southwest Pain Mgt Diamond Diamond Diamond Platinum/Diamond
Dr. Matti Diamond Diamond Diamond
Dr. Neupane Diamond Diamond Out of town Platinum/Diamond
Dr. Poyer* Diamond Sat at Jerry's table Platinum/Diamond
Dr. Samer Kattan Platinum 
Dr. Sulentich* Diamond
Dude and Shirley Delambert Diamond Diamond Diamond Diamond
Freedom Oilfield Services Gold Declined
Freudenthal & Bonds, PC Gold Gold Declined (Barbara retired)
Guild Mortgage Gold Diamond Platinum/Diamond
Hall, Noble, and Associates Platinum Platinum Diamond (VIP winner) Platinum/Diamond
High Country Realty Gold Gold Gold Doubtful
Hogan & Associates Diamond Diamond Partner Doubtful
HydraFab Platinum Maybe
Intellare Platinum Platinum Platinum/Diamond
Jerry Klein Platinum Platinum Diamond decline
JFC Engineers & Surveyors Gold Gold 2 Platinum Tables Platinum/Diamond
Joy Global Gold Platinum/Diamond
Key Bank Gold Silver Gold/Silver
Larry Fussleman Platinum Platinum Platinum Maybe
Lemich Law Center Platinum Platinum Platinum Doubtful
Mary Jo Kershisnik (Gateway Inc.) Diamond Diamond Diamond
Mathey Law Office Diamond Platinum/Diamond
Maya Medi Spa Platinum 2 Platinum Tables Out of town Platinum/Diamond
Medic  Management Group Diamond Diamond Doubtful
MHSC Diamond Diamond Diamond Maybe
Plan One/Architects Diamond Diamond (VIP winner) Diamond Maybe
Pondersa Bar Platinum Platinum went with Hydra Fab Will sponsor bar, not table
Questar (wexpro) Diamond Diamond Diamond Maybe
Rock Springs Winnelson CO Platinum Platinum Platinum Platinum/Diamond
Rocky Mountain Bank Platinum Partner Partner Platinum/Diamond
Rocky Mountain Power Sports Platinum Gold Diamond (VIP winner)
Simplot Platinum Diamond Diamond Diamond
Solvay Silver Silver/Gold
Sweet and Savory Creations Platinum out of town Platinum/Diamond
The Radio Network Diamond Diamond Diamond Diamond
Tronox Diamond Diamond Partner Maybe
UMIA Insurance Inc Platinum Platinum Platinum Platinum/Diamond
University of Utah- Healthcare Diamond Platinum Platinum Platinum/Diamond
USI Insurance Platinum Platinum/Diamond
Utah Yamas Controls $200 donation $100 donation 
Vaughn's Plumbing & Heating Co. Silver
Wasatch Controls Platinum Silver Gold/Platinum/Diamond
Wind River Vending Platinum Platinum Sat with Mary Jo

Red Tie Gala Sponsor List

Page 119 of 335



8

Page 120 of 335



 MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

FOUNDATION BOARD 
August 24, 2017 

 
 
Present: Mr. Charlie Van Over 
  Dr. Chad Franks 
  Ms. Dianne Blazovich 
  Ms. Irene Richardson 

Ms. Teresa Noble 
Mr. Fred Von Ahrens 
Ms. Kelly Sugihara 

  Ms. Becky Costantino  
 
 Absent: Mr. Marty Kelsey   
  
 
    

Call to Order, Roll Call & Establishing Quorum, Reading of Mission Statement 
 
A quorum was announced and Mr. Van Over read the Foundation’s mission statement. 
 
Mr. Van Over welcomed two Foundation Board of Directors, Ms. Kelly Sugihara and Ms. Becky 
Costantino. 
 

Approval of Minutes 
 
The July 2017 meeting minutes were provided for review. Upon review, Ms. Noble motioned to approve 
the meeting minutes; Dr. Franks second the motion; motion carried. 
 

Monthly Financial Report 
 
The Foundation’s financials were presented to the board for review. After reviewing the financials, Dr. 
Franks motioned to approve the financials, Mr. Von Ahrens second the motion; motion carried.  
 
Ms. Marshall informed the board that the Patient Financial Assistance Fund had been depleted and the 
donations currently being collected through the Employee Contribution Campaign weren’t enough to 
cover the expenses. She told the board that she had suspended the fund in the hospital until the fund could 
be built up again. She also informed the board that there was approximately $770 worth of bills but only 
$200 in the fund.  
 
After discussion, Ms. Noble motioned to pay the outstanding bills and then use the current donations to 
compensate for the negative balance and build the fund back up; Dr. Franks second the motion; motion 
carried. 
 

2017 Election of Officers 
 
After nominations and discussion, the board unanimously voted the positions as follows: 

Page 121 of 335



 

 
  
 Page 2 
 

o Foundation President- Charles Van Over 
o Vice President- Fred Von Ahrens 
o Secretary- Dianne Blazovich 
o Treasurer- Teresa Noble  

 
 

Old Business 
 
Red Tie Gala: Ms. Marshall asked for direction from the board regarding the items as listed below:  

 
1. Fund to support- The board decided to benefit the Greatest Needs Fund in which would 

be used to purchase a BioFire for the lab to benefit all physicians and patients. 
 

2. Auctioneer- Ms. Marshall informed the board that she’s hoping to secure Veldon Kraft. 
He has been the auctioneer previously and Ms. Marshall likes working with him. Ms. 
Costantino added that Jim Gibbons is also a great options.  
 

3. Music- Ms. Marshall asked the board for musical direction comparing a live band vs a 
DJ. The board agreed that they like the Sun Downers, who had previously performed at 
the Gala. Ms. Marshall will reach out for availability. 
 

4. CanAm Raffle- Ms. Marshall asked the board for direction on the CanAm and opinions 
on having a 4 seater this year. After discussion, Ms. Marshall will get prices on a 2 seater 
vs a 4 seater and report back to the board for approval.  
 

5. Celebrating 5 years- Ms. Marshall informed the board that she would like to have special 
shot glasses and shot offer this year to celebrate the 5 year mark of the event. The board 
agreed and supported that idea. 
 

6. Photography- Ms. Marshall discussed options for the event photographer and noted that 
she hopes to get a photographer to donate a night of their time for the event. Ms. 
Costantino suggested talking to the PBX operator, Harley. Ms. Marshall will follow-up 
with Harley. 
 

7. Food- Ms. Marshall told the board she plans on keeping the food the same as last year. 
The board agreed. 

 
8. Event Emcee- Mr. Al Harris has agreed to be the event emcee.  

 
9. Jewelry- Ms. Marshall asked the board to think about what they’d like to do for jewelry. 

Historically, both the hospital and Jerry, former CEO, purchased items from Daniel’s 
Jewelry to use throughout the evening as a thank you to guests for coming to the Gala. 
Ms. Marshall didn’t anticipate getting that this year as Jerry is no longer here and she 
didn’t expect the hospital to purchase the items. Ms. Richardson told the board that the 
hospital would support the jewelry again. Ms. Blazovich suggested Ms. Marshall talks to 
Daniel’s Jewelry and see if and how they’d be willing to work with the Foundation again 
this year. Ms. Marshall will reach out to Jane and report back to the board. 

Page 122 of 335



 

 
  
 Page 3 
 

 
In addition to the items presented by Ms. Marshall, Mr. Von Ahrens discussed the sound quality during the 
presentations. The board agreed that the speakers and sound was hard to hear during the event while people 
are talking and the room is loud. Ms. Marshall informed the board that the sound system used is usually the 
band’s system. The board discussed adding speakers to the back of the room to help out. Ms. Costantino 
suggested that maybe Ms. Marshall could reach out to community members for help with speakers. 
 

 
New Business 

 
 
Foundation President Updates- Mr. Van Over informed the board that the Waldner House received a 
donation of blankets, pillows, and pillow cases from the United Steel Workers, Women of Steal 
Committee and there was a small reception at the Waldner House for the donation. 
 
Mr. Van Over informed the board he received a call from Amy Allen, the current City Planner, in regards 
to the Waldner House. Mr. Van Over recalled that the City had approved use of the house while the City 
wrote an ordinance change. He told the board that Ms. Allen suggested the Foundation write the ordinance 
change and submit it to the City. Mr. Van Over concluded that it is not the Foundation’s responsibility to 
write such ordinance and that he would wait for the city to complete the task.  
 
Interim CEO Updates- Ms. Richardson thanked the board for support of the hospital and purchasing items 
as requested by the staff. She reported that the FY17 audit was done and that the year closed with 91 days 
of cash on hand and the debt service ratio was 1.3; a ratio of 1.25 is required to avoid violating the bond 
covenant. The hospital reported an $8M loss for the year, but there were no audit adjustments required.  
Ms. Richardson discussed the current budget for FY18 and the importance of adhering to the budget and 
that the staff are working hard to make sure the budget is met.   
 
Ms. Richardson reported that the Joint Commission was on property earlier in the week for their popup 
survey. She reported that there were 3 identified areas ‘in the red’ meaning a threat to patient safely. 
Those identified areas included the behavioral health holding rooms, airflow in the operating room, and 
infection control issues in multiple practices in the medical office building. She continued that due to the 
severity of the infection control issues, the Wyoming Department of Health came to the hospital to further 
research and monitor the issues and processes that address the issues. Ms. Richardson was pleased that the 
staff moved quickly when issues were addressed and noted that the hospital now has the right people in 
the right places to correct the red areas.  
 
Ms. Richardson ended her report informing that the new urologist, Dr. Christiansen, had started and 
currently seeing patients and working with Dr. Curry.  
 
Foundation Director Updates- Ms. Marshall provided the following updates to the board:  

 
 
1. Rotary Club- Ms. Marshall informed the board that she will be giving a presentation to the 

Rotary Club in November. She also told the board that she had spoken with the president of the 
Rotary Club and that the hospital was going to partner with the club to offer nursing 
scholarships in the spring and fall.  

Page 123 of 335



 

 
  
 Page 4 
 

2. Marine Corps League- Ms. Marshall informed the board that she will be giving a presentation 
to the Marine Corps League in September at the American Legion building.  

3. Waldner House- Ms. Marshall informed the board that she had selected a candidate for the 
Waldner House Manager position. The new House Manager will start September 18th after 
completing orientation.  

4. State Bank- Ms. Marshall informed the board that she had completed the process to close the 
State Bank accounts and was waiting on confirmation and checks from State Bank.  

5. Approved Urology instrument- Ms. Marshall informed the board that she had been working 
with Melissa, the Director of Surgical Services, to identify and purchase the instrument for Dr. 
Christiansen that the board had approved the prior month. She added that she is still waiting on 
a confirmation and quote to what the physician would like.  

6. Approved iPads for ED- Ms. Marshall informed the board that she had been working with the 
Director of Materials Management to get quote on the iPads for the Emergency Department 
that the board had approved the prior month. She add that she is still waiting on quotes as 
MHSC has a new representative who isn’t as responsive.  

7. ECC/Staff/Community- Ms. Marshall informed the board that after meeting with Ms. 
Richardson, they had decided to create a new program for staff who donate to the Foundation. 
She explained that for any staff member that donates $50 or more to the Foundation through 
the Employee Contribution Campaign, the hospital would then donate $100 to a local charity 
of the staff member’s choice. Ms. Marshall explained that the benefit to the program is that it 
helps the Foundation raise money, but also shows the staff that the hospital and Administration 
support the staff not just as work, but outside of work. Ms. Marshall added that it’s a small cost 
for great publicity within the community and a successfully common grassroots marketing 
technique for smaller communities.  

 
 

 
 

Other 
  

Crystal Hamblin, the Director of Respiratory Services, asked the Foundation Board for financial 
support in purchasing an EPOC Blood Gas Machine. She explained to the board that the hospital 
had approved $15,000 for the purchase of the item, but the quote ended up being approximately 
$20,000 to account for the interface for the machine to link with the hospital’s system, Quadramed. 
Dr. Franks added that this piece of equipment would benefit all staff, not just one department, and 
would be a great thing to have for patient care. Ms. Hamblin explained that she would be able to 
pull $2,000 from another budgeted item, but asked the board for $3,000 to help offset the costs. 
Ms. Costantino motioned to approve up to $3,000 to assist in purchasing the EPOC Blood Glass 
Machine, Ms. Sugihara second the motion; motion carried. 
 
Ms. Marshall presented a quote provided by Pharmacy for 12 PharmaWatches. She explained that 
she didn’t receive a formal request but the quote was given when meeting with the Director of the 
Pharmacy. Ms. Marshall told the board that these are important as they electronically monitor the 
refrigerators that contain drugs in the hospital and that within the past month, one refrigerator had 
lost its temperature twice, losing a total of approximately $100,000 worth of drugs. Ms. Marshall 
asked that the board keep this quote in mind for when the formal request is received. Ms. Marshall 
also noted that the inconsistent temperature of the refrigerator was actually a conditional finding 

Page 124 of 335



 

 
  
 Page 5 
 

from the Joint Commission. After discussion, the board decided to be proactive and support the 
hospital’s emergent needs to comply with the Joint Commission. Ms. Blazovich motioned to 
purchase the PharmaWatches, a total of $6,480, Ms. Noble second the motion; motion carried. 

 
Ms. Noble asked Ms. Richardson for some clarification on the Joint Commission’s survey as she 
had already been asked questions from community members about the results. Ms. Richardson 
explained that the Survey in the Clinic/Medical Office Building was the first survey the hospital has 
had so findings were expected.  
 
 Ms. Noble asked Ms. Richardson for direction in responding to questions and rumors. Ms. 
Richardson explain that the Joint Commission is here to help the hospital ensure care to patients. 
She included that the findings from the Joint Commission have already been address and the staff is 
working hard to rectify any issues, if the issues weren’t rectified on the spot. Ms. Richardson added 
that she is pleased with the staff’s response and willingness to help improves processes. 

 
With no other discussions, the meeting was adjourned.  

 
Submitted by: Tiffany Marshall 

 

Page 125 of 335



Page 126 of 335



Page 127 of 335



Page 128 of 335



Page 129 of 335



Page 130 of 335



Page 131 of 335



Page 132 of 335



Page 133 of 335



Page 134 of 335



Page 135 of 335



Page 136 of 335



Page 137 of 335



Page 138 of 335



Page 139 of 335



Page 140 of 335



Page 141 of 335



Page 142 of 335



Page 143 of 335



Page 144 of 335



Page 145 of 335



Page 146 of 335



Page 147 of 335



Finance & Audit Committee Meeting

September 26, 2017

MHSC Classrooms 1 & 2

Page 148 of 335



Agenda
 

 

II. Approve Meeting Minutes Taylor
Jones

CAPITAL REQUESTS September 26 2017.pdf - Page
10
 

 

FY18-7.pdf - Page 11
 

 

FY18-8.pdf - Page 19
 

 

III. Capital Requests FY18 Taylor
Jones

IV. Building & Grounds Committee Report James
Horan

V. IT Report Rich Tyler

NARRATIVE TO AUGUST 2017 FINANCIAL
STATEMENT.doc - Page 28
 

 

FY18 FINANCIALS COMBINED - AUGUST
2017.pdf - Page 31
 

 

FY18 Other Operating Revenue Detail.xlsx -
Page 47
 

 

CLINIC NARRATIVE TO AUGUST 2017
FINANCIAL STATEMENT.doc - Page 49
 

 

1. Financial Statements Irene
Richardson

A. Monthly Financial Statements & Statistical Data Irene
Richardson

VI. Financial Report  

Agenda Finance Comm September 26 2017.docx -
Page 5
 

 

I. Call Meeting to Order Taylor
Jones

Finance and Audit Comm Draft Minutes August 30
2017.doc - Page 6
 

 

18 CAPITAL.xlsx - Page 25
 

 

Building & Grounds September 2017.doc - Page 26
 

 

IT Report fo Finance Sept 2017.docx - Page 27
 

 

Meeting Book - September 26, 2017 Finance & Audit Committee Meeting

Agenda

Page 2 of 119Page 149 of 335



FY18 FINANCIALS CLINIC - AUGUST
2017.pdf - Page 50
 

 

FY18 FINANCIALS HOSPITAL ONLY -
AUGUST 2017.pdf - Page 65
 

 

18 MHSC STATISTICS August 2017.pdf -
Page 77
 

 

2. Statistics Irene
Richardson

18 PAYOR MIX August 2017.pdf - Page 79
 

 

3. Accounts Receivable report Irene
Richardson

18 FTE PER AOB August 2017.pdf - Page
81
 

 

4. Paid FTE's Per Adjusted Occupied Bed Irene
Richardson

HDRHCD August 2017 Board.pdf - Page 73
 

 

18 Board Graphs August 2017.pdf - Page 78
 

 

FY18 DAYS IN AR August 2017.pdf - Page
80
 

 

18 FTE REPORT - 090217.pdf - Page 82
 

 

18 INVESTMENT SUMMARY 08-31-17.pdf -
Page 88
 

 

B. Approve Investment Report Irene
Richardson

1. Preliminary Bad Debt Ron
Cheese

2. Title 25 County Voucher Ron
Cheese

3. Legal Summary Irene
Richardson

POTENTIAL BAD DEBTS -
SEPTEMBER.pdf - Page 90
 

 

FY18 County Maintenance & Title 25
Voucher.pdf - Page 91
 

 

18 BOARD LEGAL August 2017.pdf - Page  

C. Other Business
 

 

5. Budget Adherence Irene
Richardson

18 DAYS OF CASH OH HAND AUGUST
2017.pdf - Page 89
 

 

Page 3 of 119Page 150 of 335



4. Cash Disbursements Irene
Richardson

92
 

FA Charter revised 091817.docx - Page 113
 

 

A. Financial Forum Discussions Taylor
Jones

VII. New Business
 

 

FY18 CASH DISBURSEMENTS - August
2017.pdf - Page 93
 

 

FA Spending Authority Matrix.docx - Page 116
 

 

VIII. Adjournment Taylor
Jones

Page 4 of 119Page 151 of 335



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE AGENDA 
  

Tuesday ~ September 26, 2017  3:30 p.m.   Classrooms 1 & 2 
      

   Voting Members:     Non-Voting Members: 
  Taylor Jones, Chairman  

Marty Kelsey 
       Ron Cheese 
       Tami Love 
       Rich Tyler 

Irene Richardson 
Dr. Larry Lauridsen 
Dr. Augusto Jamias 

  Guests:                        

 Angel Bennett 
John Kolb, Commission 
Darryn McGarvey, CLA 
(via phone) 

 Jim Horan 
Kari Quickenden 
Tyler Johnson, CLA (via 
phone) 

Kristy Nielson 
Mary Fischer 
 

     

I. Call Meeting to Order      Taylor Jones 

II. FY2017 Financial Audit presentation    Darryn McGarvey, CLA 

III. Approve August 30, 2017 Meeting Minutes    Taylor Jones 

IV. Capital Requests FY 18      Taylor Jones 

V. Building Project Review      Jim Horan     

VI. IT Report        Rich Tyler 

VII. Financial Report        

A. Monthly Financial Statements & Statistical Data  Irene Richardson 

1.  Financial Statements     Irene Richardson 

2.  Statistics       Irene Richardson 

3.  Accounts Receivable report    Irene Richardson 

4.  Paid FTE’s Per Adjusted Occupied Bed   Irene Richardson 

5.  Budget Adherence      Irene Richardson    

B. Approve Investment Report     Taylor Jones 

C. Other Business       

  1.  Preliminary Bad Debt      Ron Cheese 

  2.  Title 25 County Voucher     Ron Cheese 

  3.  Legal Summary      Irene Richardson 

  4.  Cash Disbursements     Irene Richardson   

VIII.     New Business 

A. Finance & Audit Charter review    Taylor Jones 

B. Spending Authority Matrix review    Taylor Jones 

C. Key Metrics Discussion     Marty Kelsey 

D. Financial Forum Discussions    Taylor Jones 

 IX. Adjournment        Taylor Jones 

Page 5 of 119Page 152 of 335



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Finance & Audit Committee Meeting 

August 30, 2017 

 

 

Voting Members Present:  Mr. Taylor Jones 

     Mr. Marty Kelsey 

 

Non-Voting Members Present: Mr. Ron Cheese 

Dr. Augusto Jamias 

Dr. Larry Lauridsen 

Ms. Tami Love 

     Ms. Irene Richardson 

Mr. Rich Tyler 

 

Guests:    Ms. Angel Bennett 

Mr. Jim Horan 

Mr. John Kolb, Sweetwater Board of County Commissioners 

Ms. Stephanie Mlinar 

Ms. Kari Quickenden 

Ms. Sarah Roth 

Mr. Tom Chelchowski, Harris Healthcare Solutions 

 

 

Call Meeting to Order 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order.  

 

Approve Meeting Minutes 

 

The June 28, 2017, minutes were reviewed and no changes were made. 

 

Capital Requests FY 18 

 

Mr. Tyler reviewed capital expenditure request FY18-5. He said the request for $39,280.80 is to 

expand the virtual server infrastructure by adding additional hard drives. He said there are no 

related additional expenses. Ms. Richardson reviewed the process of how they prioritize within 

the $2M budget amount and decide what is brought forward to the Finance and Audit 

Committee. The motion to approve forwarding FY18-5 to the full Board for review and 

consideration as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried.  

 

Ms. Love distributed hard copies of capital expenditure request FY18-6. Ms. Richardson said 

this was an emergency request not included in the packet. The request for $19,526 is for two 

Trophon EPRs with accessories. The need is a result of The Joint Commission survey finding the 

previous week. Ms. Roth reviewed the need and the request. She said we need one system in the 

Clinic and one in the Hospital. She has checked various vendors and the price is comparable. Ms. 

Roth said this is the lowest price found and it includes assistance to help with competencies. Ms. 

Richardson said The Joint Commission is back in 23 days from the recent visit so we need 

approval of this equipment immediately. Mr. Kelsey noted the amount was within the current 

guidelines for CEO approval in the spending matrix and made the motion to approve FY18-6 and 

Page 6 of 119Page 153 of 335



 

 

Minutes of the August 30, 2017 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 2 

then present to the full Board for endorsement at the next regular meeting; second by Mr. Jones. 

Motion carried.  

 

Building and Grounds Committee Report 

 

Mr. Horan said he is not generating a lot of financial requests and is generating information for 

the Committee. He provided an update from the previous committee meeting. There has been no 

resolution on the Emergency Department reception desk project. Facilities is cleaning ducts in 

the laundry area. There will be some expenses brought forward related to behavioral health 

rooms from the recent Joint Commission survey. The work won’t be complete when they return 

but we need to show the plan and our progress. Ms. Richardson reviewed the immediate plan to 

correct. Mr. Jones asked for a copy of The Joint Commission report and asked if guidelines are 

available to prepare for their visit. Mr. Horan said we are working on a plan for storage. The CT 

project is moving forward and we selected an architect for a cost savings. He asked about next 

steps and additional approvals needed. Ms. Richardson instructed Mr. Horan to proceed. Mr. 

Kelsey asked for clarification on the process of requests presented to Building and Grounds and 

then to Finance and Audit.  

 

IT Report 

 

Mr. Tyler reviewed the report included in the packet. He said that IT staff has a learning curve 

with the phone system and they continue working on it. They are updating software and 

evaluating software licensing costs.  

 

Pulse Check Demo 

 

Mr. Tyler distributed a packet of information. Mr. Tom Chelchowski and Mr. Carl Schneider 

with Harris Healthcare Solutions reviewed the Emergency Department Pulse Check program. 

Mr. Kelsey asked Ms. Richardson for her view. She said we have to do something. We either go 

with a new system which is more integrated or we upgrade our current system which is a system 

currently lacking in meeting our needs. Mr. Cheese said he thinks an automated system would 

assist with charge capture. Mr. Tyler said if we do not upgrade T-System, our current system, we 

lose our certification so we need to do something by the end of this calendar year. Mr. Kelsey 

said the information distributed and reviewed at the meeting is very complicated and he feels 

pressured to make decisions without more information and time to review. Mr. Jones said he is 

concerned with any cost overlap. Mr. Schneider said we should look at it as a revenue generation 

project vs. a cost outlay and reviewed financing options. Ms. Mlinar offered clinical information. 

She said the Pulse Check system would assist with current inefficiencies, enhance patient safety 

and patient satisfaction. Mr. Tyler offered to set up a demo if anyone wanted to see the system. 

Mr. Jones asked for the real total costs. Ms. Quickenden asked for an outline of resources. Mr. 

Chelchowski will schedule a phone call with Ms. Richardson to review numbers and provide 

additional information for review.  

 

Page 7 of 119Page 154 of 335



 

 

Minutes of the August 30, 2017 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 3 

Financial Report 

 

Monthly Finance Statements & Statistical Data 

 

Ms. Richardson reviewed the narrative and financial highlights. She said we had a large decrease 

in the average daily census number and length of stay. Expenses are down and we continue to 

work to decrease agency staffing. Ms. Love is developing a report of trends of patient statistics. 

On the revenue side, Ms. Richardson said we are pushing to increase productivity and continue 

to adjust expenses and keep them as low as we can. Mr. Kelsey said the direction we are going is 

a lot more important than where we have been. Ms. Richardson reviewed the clinic narrative. 

Mr. Jones thanked everyone involved in working to reduce expenses.  

 

Ms. Richardson reviewed the days in AR. She said the FTE’s per adjusted occupied bed are at 

8.68. She said she sent an email to Mr. Eric Boley at the Wyoming Hospital Association for help 

gathering information from Wyoming hospitals. Ms. Richardson said if this is the new trend in 

our volume we need to develop a plan. Ms. Love and Ms. Richardson said the FTE’s number is 

calculated based on paid hours. They dispelled any rumors about people being counted multiple 

times.  

 

Ms. Love distributed the budget adherence information. Ms. Richardson explained to the 

Committee what the report shows. She said every month the department leaders send in their 

variance reports explaining line item variances.  

 

Approve Investment Report 

 

The motion to approve to forward to the full Board for review and consideration the investment 

report for $16,987,944.35 as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. Motion 

carried. 

 

Other Business 

 

Mr. Cheese noted the preliminary bad debt amount of $1,116,526.00.  Mr. Jones said the updated 

number will be presented to the Board at their regular meeting. Mr. Cheese said there was an 

increase of about $250,000 in August which puts us right at the budget of 9% of gross revenue. 

 

Mr. Cheese said zero vouchers were forwarded to the County for reimbursement in July but there 

have been three Title 25 vouchers submitted in August for a total of about $45,000. He is also 

working on the professional payment for the University of Utah emergency physicians. Going 

forward, any Title 25 patients seen after July 1st will be paid with the 45% discount to coincide 

with the County vouchers. Mr. Kolb asked for an explanation of what made up the FY17 $8M 

loss. He wants to be able to explain how much of the loss was due to the Title 25 patients and the 

delayed payments from the County and State.  

 

Page 8 of 119Page 155 of 335



 

 

Minutes of the August 30, 2017 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 4 

New Business 

 

Finance & Audit Charter and Spending Matrix 

 

Mr. Kelsey feels the charter is still not ready to be approved by the Board. There was some 

concern about the approval of Capital requests not being included. Ms. Love will send some 

recommended changes to Dr. Barbara Sowada but Mr. Kelsey and Mr. Jones agreed that there 

needs to be more discussion about both the charter and spending matrix. Mr. Kelsey feels 

consent agendas need to be considered again. 

 

Key Metrics 

 

Mr. Kelsey recognized the Finance team for the great packet that is put together for this 

Committee and Board, however, he said it is a little overwhelming with all of the information.  

He would like to see this committee come up with a number of manageable and predictive key 

metrics to report on. Along with these chosen metrics, the team will come up with short term 

goals for the fiscal year and intermediate goals for the future. Mr. Jones agreed that we could 

have action plans for each of the goals like they have started doing in the Quality meeting. Ms. 

Richardson said she would get with her team and come up with some metrics she feels will show 

the direction the Hospital hopes to move. She also mentioned that these metrics need to be based 

on a strategic plan for the future. 

 

Financial Forum Discussions 

 

Mr. Cheese explained one of the major projects he is finishing up that included revamping the 

patient billing statements for the Clinics. It also included adding a payment portal on the website 

for patients to make payments online. He presented the new statements that have been created for 

the Clinic and Ortho Clinic. He asked for discussion on the issue of making the statements more 

distinguishable for patients. Right now the patients are getting confused because all three 

statements, Hospital, Clinic and Ortho clinic have the same logo and are all the same color. He 

would like to color code the statements along with the patient portal buttons on the website to 

make it easier for the patients to pay their bills.   

 

The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, September 27 at 4:00 PM. 

 

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 

 
Submitted by Cindy Nelson and Tami Love 

 

 
 

Page 9 of 119Page 156 of 335



 YTD CAPITAL 
APPROVED 

 GRANT OR 
DONATION 

REIMBURSED 
 2018 APPROVED 

BUDGET REMAINING YTD BALANCE
AS OF AUGUST 2017 103,068.00      -                                 2,000,000.00      1,896,932.00                                  

CAPITAL 
REQUEST # REQUESTED ITEM/REQUESTOR

 AMOUNT 
REQUESTED COMMENTS

FY18-7 Biological hood 9,566.00           
Mary Fischer

FY18-8 Plasma thawer 2,858.05        
Mary Fischer

TOTAL AMOUNT REQUESTED 12,424.05         -                                 -                        

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE REQUESTS

TUESDAY ~ SEPTEMBER 26, 2017

Page 10 of 119Page 157 of 335



Page 11 of 119Page 158 of 335



Page 12 of 119Page 159 of 335



Page 13 of 119Page 160 of 335



Page 14 of 119Page 161 of 335



Page 15 of 119Page 162 of 335



Page 16 of 119Page 163 of 335



Page 17 of 119Page 164 of 335



Page 18 of 119Page 165 of 335



Page 19 of 119Page 166 of 335



Page 20 of 119Page 167 of 335



Page 21 of 119Page 168 of 335



Page 22 of 119Page 169 of 335



Page 23 of 119Page 170 of 335



Page 24 of 119Page 171 of 335



MHSC Capital Budget for FYE 6/30/2018

Department ITEM Approved  Purch/Amt Variance FY#

MEDICAL IMAGING C10-3V ULTRASOUND TRANSDUCER 12,762                  12,762             -                      FY18-2

RESPIRATORY PURITAN BENNETT 980 VENTILATOR TABLED 3 MOS -                      FY18-3

RESPIRATORY ARTERIAL BLOOD GAS/ELECTROLYTE ANALYZER 31,500                  31,920             420                     FY18-4

INFORMATION SERVICES VIRTUAL SERVER EXPANSION 39,281                  39,281             -                      FY18-5

INFECTION CONTROL TROPHON EPR (2) 19,526                  17,326             (2,200)                 FY18-6

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

Total Budgeted 2,000,000 103,068          101,288      (1,780)           

Capital Expenditure Dollars Authorized 103,068     

Net Capital Outlay FYTD 2018 103,068     

Remaining Balance FY2018 Capital Budget 1,896,932  

Page 25 of 119Page 172 of 335



  Page 1 of 1 

Building and Grounds monthly report   9/19/2017 

 

BUILDING AND GROUNDS COMMITTEE 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

09/12/2017 
Trustee Committee Members Present: Ed Tardoni, Taylor Jones 

Committee Members Present: Irene Richardson, Tami Love, Jim Horan 

Guests Present: Stevie Nosich, John Kolb, Gerry Johnston 

Minutes taken by: Cindy Nelson  

Location:   Classroom 3 

Time started: 5:05P 

                                                                                  

TOPIC DISCUSSION RESPONSIBLE ACTION TIMELINE 
Laundry Upgrade Cleaning lint from exhaust ducts is being 

considered. Installation of dryer external duct also 

being considered to be used temporarily for room 

exhaust. 

Jim Horan Work with contractor to clean ducts. 

Devise plan for external ducting.  

Review progress next 

meeting. 

Behavioral Health rooms Awaiting more data to help determine the number 

of rooms we actually need. 

Clayton 

Radakovich 

To present data when available. Report back to this 

committee after 3rd 

quarter data is 

compiled. 

Offsite storage  Researching requirements for offsite storage of 

records to determine best future option. 

Environmental concerns to be determined. 

Jim Horan Evaluate conditions required for 

record storage. Investigate 

availability and cost for “Conex” 

Containers. 

Review progress next 

meeting. 

Steam piping in tunnel Plan is to cut an access hole in the Main 

Mechanical room floor above the steam 

expansion joint in order to replace joint. 

Jim Horan Provide project estimate to 

committee 

Next meeting. 

CT Replacement Planning stage “kick-off” meeting scheduled for 

September 19. Tentative schedule would have the 

entire project start around January 1, 2018 and 

completed by February 19, 2018. 

Jim Horan Brief Committee of progress and any 

issues each month. 

Review next meeting. 

Action Plans Reviewed existing action plans for various 

“Facilities” contingencies in case of failure. 

Jim Horan Continue to fine-tune plans to 

include detailed action. Provide a list 

of 10 prioritized maintenance 

projects for consideration. 

Review next meeting. 

TJC findings review Discussed findings and best solutions to prevent 

future “fall-out” for various “Elements of 

Performance” 

Jim Horan EOC Committee reporting and 

engagement is essential. EC/LS 

monthly surveys to catch issues early 

and prevent findings. J. Horan to co-

chair EOC committee. 

Review next meeting. 

Buildings and Grounds charter A lively discussion regarding authority, wording and 

purpose of committee as stated in draft charter.  

Committee Voted to approve charter as 

drafted. 

Noted 

Time Adjourned:  6:45P 

Next Meeting:  October 15; 5PM 

Respectfully Submitted:           Jim Horan 

 

Page 26 of 119Page 173 of 335



Finance and Audit Committee 

IT report 

Sept 2017 

Rich Tyler 

1. We continue to make small tweaks to the phone system in regards to long hold times 

and employee requests.  We have also been working with employees and providers 

from the clinic to research some possible auto call-back reminders via phone calls and 

text messages. 

2. We are continuing to evaluate costs associated with moving to Pulsecheck ED EMR 

system or the costs associated with maintaining the current ED EMR of T-Systems. 

3. We have been working on minor software updates to Affinity and QCPR.  These updates 

are related to annual code updates such as ICD-10, CPT, HCSPCS, etc.  We have been 

diligent in making sure all of our coding dictionaries across all of our software packages 

stay up to date. 

4. We continue to work with Kronos and the Fiscal department to move forward with 

implementing the new employee scheduling module in Kronos (Kronos is our current 

employee time-keeping software). 

Page 27 of 119Page 174 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

ROCK SPRINGS, WY 

 

 

To: Finance Committee      September 22, 2017 

From: Irene Richardson, CFO 

 

 

NARRATIVE TO AUGUST 2017 FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 

 

THE BOTTOM LINE.    The bottom line from operations for August was a loss of 

$341,830, compared to a loss of $137,242 in the budget.  This yields a -4.83% operating 

margin for the month compared to -1.85% in the budget. The YTD Net Operating Loss is 

$697,436, compared to a loss of $417,436 in the Budget.  This represents a YTD 

Operating Margin of -5.05% compared with -2.87% in the Budget.   

 

 

The Total Net Loss for the month was $127,259, compared to a gain of $57,863 in the 

budget.  The YTD Total Net Loss is $264,468, compared to a loss of $27,226.  This 

represents a YTD Total Profit Margin of -1.91% compared with -.19% in the budget.  

 

Debt service coverage came in at 2.49.  The existing bond covenants require that we 

maintain debt service coverage of 1.25 for compliance.   

 

 

VOLUME.  Average Inpatient Census for the month was 10.4; under budget and prior 

year by 7.2. YTD Average Census is 11.7 compared to 19.0 in the Budget and 19.0 in the 

prior year. 

 

Inpatient Surgeries were 14 under budget at 25 and Outpatient Surgeries were under 

budget by 10 at 136.   There were 6,546 Outpatient Visits, under budget by 828.     

 

Total ER Visits were 1,378, which was over budget by 24.  There were 39 newborns in 

August, under budget by 6. Births are under budget by 1 year to date.     

  

 

REVENUE.  Revenue for the month was $13,347,260, under budget by $298,798.  

Inpatient revenue was under budget by $1,423,502, Outpatient revenue was over budget 

by $1,183,770 and the employed Provider Clinic was under budget by $59,066. 

 

YTD Total revenue was $26,107,521, under budget by $203,621.  Inpatient revenue is 

under budget by $2,285,209, Outpatient revenue is over budget by $2,418,928 and the 

Provider Clinic is under budget by $337,340.  We are experiencing a shift from inpatient 

care to outpatient care.  YTD inpatient revenue is 22.01% of total revenue compared to 

31.3% in the prior year.   

Page 28 of 119Page 175 of 335



 

Net patient revenue for the month was $6,972,769, under budget by $282,336.  YTD Net 

patient revenue was $13,578,931, under budget by $664,660.   

 

Deductions from revenue were booked at 47.8% for August compared to 46.8% in the 

budget and 43.6% for prior year.  YTD Deductions from revenue are 48%, compared to 

45.9% in the budget and 44.4% for FY 2017.    

 

EXPENSES.  Total Expenses for the month were at $7,413,029, under budget by 

$129,667.   Salary & Wage, Fringe Benefits, Physician Fees, Contract Labor, Purchased 

Services, Utilities and Depreciation were under budget for August.  The following 

categories were over budget for August: 

 

 

Supplies – This expense is over budget by $137,245.  Oxygen, Patient 

chargeables, Drugs, Maintenance supplies and Outdated supplies are over budget 

for August. 

Repairs & Maintenance – This expense is over budget by $12,130.  

Maintenance & Repair in Facilities included CPU repairs and reprogramming. 

Other Operating Expenses – This expense is over budget by $15,479.  Postage, 

Freight, Pharmacy floor charges and Computer software are over budget for 

August. 

Leases & Rentals – This expense is over budget by $30,692.  Expenses over 

budget in August include MRI and IT equipment leases. 

 

 

We will continue to see the effect of the recent cost savings in the new fiscal year.  As of 

August, the daily cash expense is $211,000, down from a FY2017 high of $236,000. 

 

 

BALANCE SHEET.  Operating Cash at month end was $12,335,327, up $935,820 from 

July.  Collections for the month of August were $7,843,823.  The Days of Cash on Hand 

for August are at 105, up 2 days from July due to the high collection month.  The existing 

bond covenants require that we maintain 75 days of cash on hand for compliance.   

   

Gross Receivables at month end were $18,989,993, down $1,293,864 from the prior 

month.  Net Patient Receivables at month end were $9,994,275, down $985,470 from last 

month.  Days in Receivables are 44 for August, down 5 days from July.  

 

OUTLOOK FOR SEPTEMBER.  September volume is down, projecting to come in 

under budget.  We continue to experience a shift from inpatient care to outpatient care 

with inpatient revenue and patient days being under budget.  Revenue is projecting to 

come in at $12.3M, which is under budget with Net Revenue projecting to $6.5M. 

Collections are projecting to come in at $6.3M, which is under budget.  

 

Page 29 of 119Page 176 of 335



With the decreased volumes, expenses are also projecting to come in under budget.  

Salary merit increases and incentives went into effect in August. We should continue to 

see a decreased level of total expenses with the effects of the cost savings and financial 

plan.  Salaries, benefits, consulting fees, contract labor and physician fees should 

decrease in Fiscal Year 2018. 

Page 30 of 119Page 177 of 335



Page 31 of 119Page 178 of 335



Page 32 of 119Page 179 of 335



Page 33 of 119Page 180 of 335



Page 34 of 119Page 181 of 335



Page 35 of 119Page 182 of 335



Page 36 of 119Page 183 of 335



Page 37 of 119Page 184 of 335



Page 38 of 119Page 185 of 335



Page 39 of 119Page 186 of 335



Page 40 of 119Page 187 of 335



Page 41 of 119Page 188 of 335



Page 42 of 119Page 189 of 335



Page 43 of 119Page 190 of 335



Page 44 of 119Page 191 of 335



Page 45 of 119Page 192 of 335



Page 46 of 119Page 193 of 335



JULY MONTHLY FYTD

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL TOTAL

Collection Agency interest income             9,938.82 

Medical Records                919.99 

Document Copy Service                140.25 

Pharmacy sales 14.22                 

Prenatal Reimbursement                 (31.88)

HPSA           35,411.30 

PALS Class                110.00 

BLS Classes                279.00 

Vending machine commissions                433.32 

Hampton & Newman Deposition                500.00 

Interlare             1,819.62 

Lifeline reclass                 (40.00)

Reduction SCHHC (from Corrected Reversal)           (1,110.56)

Pacific Steel                   33.21 

Sports Physicals             1,025.00 

County Maintenance Fund             1,187.70 

UOFU Payment  - sent to wrong venue                141.55 

Reverse Sw. Peds Dup Inv.           (2,100.00)

Solvay Occupation Med retainer 900.00               

Castle Rehab Transport 780.00               

Rocky Mountain Home Care 80.00                 

Jim Bridger Retainer 800.00               

Foundation Reimbursement Pointer 2,715.00           

Jim Bridger Physician Services 14,875.00         

Mission at Castle Rock Physician Services-Reverse Dup 3,846.00           

Tata Occupation Medicine on site 15,150.00         

Shriners Hospital 346.36               

High Desert Rural Health Clinic District Wamsutter 21,222.87         

Cafeteria sales 23,749.88         

July Totals 133,136.65    133,136.65          

AUGUST MONTHLY FYTD

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL TOTAL

Collection Agency interest income             9,750.93 

Medical Records                113.20 

Document Copy Service                   20.00 

Radiology Film Copies                     5.00 

HPSA                604.84 

BLS Classes                155.00 

Black Butte Coal                494.11 

Central Supply                   34.29 

Disproportionate Share                179.00 

Pacific Steel                169.02 

BCBS Refund Check             1,774.28 

Sports Physicals             1,300.00 

County Maintenance Fund                512.64 

UOFU Payment  - sent to wrong venue will be reversed                206.00 

Solvay Occupation Med retainer                900.00 

Castle Rehab Lab Courier 260.00               

Prenatal Classes 60.00                 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
OTHER OPERATING REVENUE - Detail

YEAR TO DATE AUGUST 2017

Page 47 of 119Page 194 of 335



Jim Bridger Retainer 1,600.00           

Jim Bridger Physician Services 16,480.00         

Tata Occupation Medicine on site 13,050.00         

High Desert Rural Health Clinic District Wamsutter 18,438.39         

Cafeteria sales 32,323.35         

August Totals 98,430.05      231,566.70          

Page 48 of 119Page 195 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

ROCK SPRINGS, WY 

 

To: Finance Committee      September 22, 2017 

From: Irene Richardson, CFO 

 

PROVIDER CLINIC – AUGUST 2017    

 

THE CLINIC BOTTOM LINE.    The bottom line for the Provider Clinic for August 

was a loss of $778,939, compared to a loss of $902,516 in the budget.    

 

VOLUME.  Total visits were 4,846 for August, over budget by 76 visits.  

 

REVENUE.  Revenue for the Clinic for August was $1,387,455, under budget by 

$59,066.    YTD Revenue was $2,557,571, under Budget by $337,340.  The Clinic 

physicians also generate hospital revenue in addition to their office revenue.  This is 

called enterprise revenue, which consists of various sources, including Lab and Medical 

Imaging and Surgery.  The amount of gross enterprise revenue generated for August from 

the Clinic is $4,188,726.  This equates to $2,178,138 of net enterprise revenue.  The 

impact to the bottom line from the enterprise revenue is $153,341.  The gross enterprise 

revenue represents 31% of the total Hospital revenue for August.    

 

Net Revenue for the Clinic for August was $829,131, over budget by $48,392.  YTD Net 

Patient Revenue was $1,569,193, which was under Budget by $136,676.  YTD Net 

Patient Revenue is 57% of Gross Revenue compared with 55% in the budget and 53% in 

the prior year.   

 

Deductions from Revenue for the Clinic were booked at 43.9% for August.  Historically, 

the Clinic has a more favorable payor mix than the hospital.   The Clinic has a much 

larger Commercial insurance population than the hospital and a smaller Medicare, 

Medicaid and Self Pay population than the hospital.  In August, the YTD Payor Mix was 

as follows; Commercial Insurance and Blue Cross consisted of 57.4% of revenue, 

Medicare and Medicaid consisted of 35.81% of revenue and Self Pay consisted of 5.89% 

of revenue. 

 

EXPENSES.  Total Expenses for the month were $1,608,070, which was under budget 

by $75,185.   YTD Expenses were $2,970,559, which was under Budget by $266,748. 

The majority of the expenses consist of Salaries and Benefits; which is about 76.7% of 

YTD Total Expenses.   

 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT.   The Provider Clinic revenue plus enterprise revenue 

consists of 41.8% of total hospital gross patient revenue for August.    

Page 49 of 119Page 196 of 335



Page 50 of 119Page 197 of 335



Page 51 of 119Page 198 of 335



Page 52 of 119Page 199 of 335



Page 53 of 119Page 200 of 335



Page 54 of 119Page 201 of 335



Page 55 of 119Page 202 of 335



Page 56 of 119Page 203 of 335



Page 57 of 119Page 204 of 335



Page 58 of 119Page 205 of 335



Page 59 of 119Page 206 of 335



Page 60 of 119Page 207 of 335



Page 61 of 119Page 208 of 335



Page 62 of 119Page 209 of 335



Page 63 of 119Page 210 of 335



Page 64 of 119Page 211 of 335



Page 65 of 119Page 212 of 335



Page 66 of 119Page 213 of 335



Page 67 of 119Page 214 of 335



Page 68 of 119Page 215 of 335



Page 69 of 119Page 216 of 335



Page 70 of 119Page 217 of 335



Page 71 of 119Page 218 of 335



Page 72 of 119Page 219 of 335



Page 73 of 119Page 220 of 335



Page 74 of 119Page 221 of 335



Page 75 of 119Page 222 of 335



Page 76 of 119Page 223 of 335



STATISTICS Actual Budget PY YTD YTD YTD YTD
Aug-17 Aug-17 Aug-16 Aug-17 Aug-16 Aug-15 Aug-14

Volumes:
Case Mix

Medicare 1.1894 1.4713 1.4713 1.2400 1.4054 1.4161 1.1291
All payers 0.8458 0.8313 0.8313 0.8307 0.8329 0.8423 0.8787

Admissions
Med 49 71 71 124 160 163 161
ICU 22 32 32 48 66 61 70
Surgery 8 11 11 10 17 23 24
OB 40 47 47 94 100 103 108
Newborn 42 44 44 93 93 102 100

Total Admissions 161 205 205 369 436 452 463

Discharges
Med 59 92 92 145 173 175 151
ICU 10 16 16 19 33 33 58
Surgery 8 11 11 15 26 37 39
OB 41 45 45 94 95 103 107
Newborn 39 45 45 90 91 103 98

Total Discharges 157 209 209 363 418 451 453

Patient Days:
Med 167 340 340 404 785 638 502
ICU 42 88 88 91 167 181 219
Surgery 38 40 40 62 68 97 80
OB 74 76 76 171 155 163 167
Newborn 78 64 64 167 139 152 140

Total Patient Days 399 608 608 895 1,314 1,231 1,108  

Observation Bed Days 129 103 103 238 180 162 96

Surgery Statistics:
IP Surgeries 25 39 39 56 80 69 78
OP Surgeries 136 146 146 288 259 291 297

Outpatient Statistics:
X-ray 756 695 695 1,439 1,421 1,445 1,319
Mammography 138 131 131 234 249 255 300
Ultrasound 307 301 301 562 525 534 522
Cat Scan 445 389 389 861 791 760 609
MRI 110 100 100 208 188 214 212
Nuclear Medicine 57 37 37 87 68 85 42
PET Scan 12 6 6 21 17 8 14
Laboratory 2,518 3,255 3,255 5,375 6,193 5,173 4,406
Histology 159 137 137 299 251 264 333
Respiratory Therapy 266 254 254 506 475 479 358
Cardiovascular 420 486 486 824 970 928 678
Sleep Lab 32 20 20 61 33 37 32
Cardiac Rehab 356 484 484 712 944 803 759
Physical Therapy 225 255 255 432 468 497 482
Dialysis 311 256 256 610 488 508 574
Medical Oncology 182 203 203 331 379 475 198
Radiation Oncology 252 365 365 478 629 721 246
Total Outpatients Visits 6,546 7,374 7,374 13,040 14,089 13,477 11,084

Clinic Visits - Primary Care 4,317 4,256 4,798 7,985 8,615 11,160 9,018
Clinic Visits - Specialty Clinics 529 514 578 985 940 980 1,041

ER visits admitted 119 150 150 259 298 284 279
ER visits Discharged 1,259 1,204 1,204 2,499 2,505 2,608 2,753
Total ER visits 1,378 1,354 1,354 2,758 2,803 2,892 3,032

 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
AUGUST 2017

Page 77 of 119Page 224 of 335



18 Board Graphs August 9/22/2017 2:22 PM

   MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
   "DASHBOARD" GRAPHS

AUGUST 2017

  FYE 2017 ACTUAL   FYE 2018 BUDGET   FYE 2018 ACTUAL

AVERAGE ACUTE CENSUS ER IP+OP VISITS

INPATIENT CHARGES OUTPATIENT CHARGES

TOTAL NET OPERATING REVENUE OPERATING EXPENSE

AVERAGE CHARGE PER ADJUSTED PATIENT DAY AVERAGE CHARGE PER OUTPATIENT VISIT (Inc. ER)

AVERAGE NET OPERATING REVENUE PER ADJUSTED PATIENT DAY    AVERAGE OPERATING EXPENSE PER ADJUSTED PATIENT DAY

0

5

10

15

20

25

0
200
400
600
800

1,000
1,200
1,400
1,600
1,800

$0
$500,000

$1,000,000
$1,500,000
$2,000,000
$2,500,000
$3,000,000
$3,500,000
$4,000,000
$4,500,000
$5,000,000

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

$0
$1,000,000
$2,000,000
$3,000,000
$4,000,000
$5,000,000
$6,000,000
$7,000,000
$8,000,000
$9,000,000

$0
$1,000,000
$2,000,000
$3,000,000
$4,000,000
$5,000,000
$6,000,000
$7,000,000
$8,000,000
$9,000,000

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

$12,000

$14,000

$0
$100
$200
$300
$400
$500
$600
$700
$800
$900

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

$7,000

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

$7,000

Page 78 of 119Page 225 of 335



HOSPITAL CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 20.97% 21.70% 18.37%
Blue Cross 22.76% 22.55% 23.66%
Medicaid 8.12% 8.55% 9.99%
Medicare 37.32% 35.76% 36.77%
Self Pay  6.13% 7.61% 9.42%
Other 4.70% 3.83% 1.79%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

CLINIC CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 27.81% 28.30% 28.94%
Blue Cross 28.99% 29.22% 30.49%
Medicaid 14.61% 14.12% 14.70%
Medicare 23.14% 21.70% 19.07%
Self Pay  4.63% 5.89% 6.18%
Other 0.82% 0.77% 0.62%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

ORTHO CLINIC CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 56.14% 51.23% 39.50%
Blue Cross 22.41% 23.33% 27.91%
Medicaid 5.27% 5.08% 6.32%
Medicare 14.03% 17.60% 23.02%
Self Pay  1.76% 2.34% 2.71%
Other 0.39% 0.42% 0.54%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

COMBINED CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 22.13% 22.72% 19.86%
Blue Cross 23.32% 23.12% 24.39%
Medicaid 8.65% 8.96% 10.34%
Medicare 35.69% 34.30% 34.80%
Self Pay  5.93% 7.38% 8.96%
Other 4.28% 3.52% 1.65%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY

Two months ended August 31, 2017
PAYOR MIX DATA

Page 79 of 119Page 226 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
DAYS IN A/R

08/31/17

HOSPITAL AR DAYS
Aug-16 52
Sep-16 49
Oct-16 51
Nov-16 51
Dec-16 52
Jan-17 54
Feb-17 55
Mar-17 53
Apr-17 51
May-17 53
Jun-17 46
Jul-17 45
Aug-17 43

CLINIC AR DAYS
Aug-16 70
Sep-16 68
Oct-16 59
Nov-16 63
Dec-16 60
Jan-17 62
Feb-17 56
Mar-17 57
Apr-17 64
May-17 56
Jun-17 47
Jul-17 50
Aug-17 72

ORTHO AR DAYS
Aug-16 53
Sep-16 52
Oct-16 63
Nov-16 53
Dec-16 41
Jan-17 51
Feb-17 53
Mar-17 41
Apr-17 51
May-17 53
Jun-17 44
Jul-17 47
Aug-17 71

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Aug-16 Oct-16 Dec-16 Feb-17 Apr-17 Jun-17 Aug-17

70 68 
59 

63 60 62 
56 57 

64 
56 

47 
50 

72 

CLINIC AR DAYS

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Aug-16 Oct-16 Dec-16 Feb-17 Apr-17 Jun-17 Aug-17

53 52 

63 

53 

41 

51 53 

41 

51 53 

44 47 

71 

ORTHO AR DAYS

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Aug-16 Oct-16 Dec-16 Feb-17 Apr-17 Jun-17 Aug-17

52 49 51 51 52 54 55 53 51 53 

46 45 43 

HOSPITAL AR DAYS

Page 80 of 119Page 227 of 335



National
MHSC MHSC WYOMING Rural MHSC

Current Month FYTD All Hospitals < $90M Net Rev. Benchmark

FTEs Per AOB 8.85 8.73 6.60 4.63 6.60

Change in FTE's to meet Benchmark (106.90)         

Change in MONTHLY Gross 
Revenue to meet Benchmark 3,900,000$   

Summary Report - Variance on MHSC FTE's Per Adjusted Occupied Bed

For The Month ending:   August 2017

Page 81 of 119Page 228 of 335



18 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 1 of 6 9/15/2017 9:23 AM

                          MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY

 Variance
PPE 8/6/2017 8/20/2017 9/3/2017 Variance YTD from budget

BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease
AVG CENSUS 18.00 13.0 8.6 12.4 (5.6)                3.79                 -                        11.6 (6.4)
ER VISITS (Avg Day) 46                   41               45               48               2.8                 3.29                 -                        44.8 (0.7)
SURGERIES (IP+OP) 84                   88 63 68 (16.2)              5.00                 -                        388.0
BIRTHS 20                   28 12 14 (5.9)                2.00                 -                        96.0
CHARGES -IP  $000 1,860             1409 1105 1313 (547.0)            208.00            -                        6418.0
                 -OP $000 4,416             4610 4352 4963 547.0             611.00            -                        22756.0
                 -TOTAL $000 6,276             6019 5457 6276 -                   819.00            -                        29174.0
Adjusted Patient Days 850                 777                  598                  832                  (18.6)              (234.15)           -                        3673.5

Paid FTEs (Including Contract)

600 MEDICAL FLOOR 30.8           27.6            25.7            24.3            (6.5)                -                   1.40                      25.7 (5.1)
605 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 8.0             6.9              6.4              7.9              (0.1)                1.50                 -                        6.2 (1.8)
610 OB FLOOR 5.9             6.1              5.3              5.2              (0.7)                -                   0.12                      5.7 (0.2)
611 NURSERY 7.3             6.8              6.4              6.3              (1.0)                -                   0.09                      6.6 (0.7)
612 LABOR & DELIVERY 6.1             6.8              5.0              5.8              (0.4)                0.73                 -                        5.9 (0.2)
620 ICU 13.9           11.8            15.7            12.5            (1.4)                -                   3.28                      13.3 (0.6)
630 OR 13.3           16.3            12.9            13.4            0.1                 0.55                 -                        14.0 0.7
631 SAME DAY SURGERY 7.1             6.8              5.0              5.2              (1.9)                0.15                 -                        6.2 (0.9)
633 RECOVERY 2.0             2.7              2.2              2.6              0.6                 0.36                 -                        3.1 1.1
634 CENTRAL STERILE 3.1             2.8              2.7              2.9              (0.2)                0.14                 -                        2.9 (0.2)
640 DIALYSIS 5.0             5.0              4.9              5.0              (0.0)                0.07                 -                        5.0 (0.0)
650 ER 25.6           27.8            26.3            22.3            (3.3)                -                   3.91                      25.1 (0.5)
651 TRAUMA 1.0             1.7              1.7              1.5              0.5                 -                   0.23                      1.3 0.3
652 SANE 0.5             1.0              1.3              0.7              0.2                 -                   0.59                      0.9 0.4
660 RADIATION ONC 6.6             6.7              5.8              6.1              (0.5)                0.29                 -                        6.4 (0.2)
661 MEDICAL ONC 5.5             7.0              5.1              5.0              (0.5)                -                   0.09                      5.5 (0.0)
700 LABORATORY 29.5           29.3            29.4            29.6            0.1                 0.20                 -                        29.8 0.3
701 HISTOLOGY 2.0             2.0              2.0              1.9              (0.1)                -                   0.06                      2.0 (0.0)
702 BLOOD BANK 1.0             0.7              1.1              1.1              0.1                 -                   0.04                      1.0 (0.0)
710 RADIOLOGY 7.7             7.6              7.3              8.9              1.2                 1.51                 -                        8.3 0.6
711 MAMMOGRPAHY 2.0             1.1              1.2              1.1              (0.9)                -                   0.13                      1.2 (0.8)
712 ULTRASOUND 3.6             5.2              3.9              5.5              1.9                 1.54                 -                        4.5 0.9
713 NUC MED 1.9             1.8              1.6              1.6              (0.3)                0.02                 -                        1.7 (0.2)
714 CAT SCAN 5.1             5.7              5.8              4.8              (0.3)                -                   1.05                      5.2 0.1
715 MRI 1.0             1.1              1.0              1.0              (0.0)                0.03                 -                        1.1 0.1
716 PET SCAN 0.1             -              0.1              -              (0.1)                -                   0.10                      0.0 (0.1)
720 RESPIRATORY 6.1             6.4              5.5              5.2              (0.9)                -                   0.24                      5.5 (0.6)
721 SLEEP LAB 1.8             1.1              1.4              1.8              (0.0)                0.44                 -                        1.5 (0.3)
722 CARDIO 2.8             2.9              2.8              2.8              (0.0)                -                   0.03                      2.8 (0.0)
723 CARDIAC REHAB 2.4             2.3              2.3              2.2              (0.2)                -                   0.15                      2.4 (0.0)
730 PHYSICAL THERAPY 4.0             3.6              3.6              3.5              (0.5)                -                   0.17                      3.6 (0.4)
780 PATIENT ED 2.5             2.4              2.4              2.3              (0.2)                -                   0.15                      2.5 (0.0)
781 SOCIAL SERVICES 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              -                 -                   -                        1.0 0.0
782 QUALITY & ACCREDIT 5.5             5.0              4.9              5.3              (0.2)                0.46                 -                        5.0 (0.5)
783 INFECTION CONTROL 1.0             1.1              1.5              1.5              0.5                 -                   0.03                      1.3 0.3
784 ACCREDITATION 2.0             2.0              2.0              2.0              (0.0)                -                   -                        2.0 (0.0)
786 NURSING INFORMATICS 3.0             3.0              3.0              3.0              0.0                 -                   -                        3.0 0.0
790 HEALTH INFORMATION 11.7           12.5            12.5            12.3            0.6                 -                   0.22                      12.3 0.6
791 CASE MANAGEMENT 5.0             4.5              3.8              4.2              (0.8)                0.41                 -                        4.5 (0.5)
800 MAINTENANCE 11.0           9.9              10.1            10.8            (0.2)                0.72                 -                        10.1 (0.9)
801 HOUSEKEEPING 23.5           23.3            23.1            24.3            0.8                 1.24                 -                        23.6 0.1
802 LAUNDRY 6.5             4.8              4.6              4.6              (1.9)                0.00                 -                        5.1 (1.4)
803 BIO MED 2.0             1.0              1.0              1.1              (0.9)                0.07                 -                        1.0 (1.0)
810 SECURITY 8.1             7.6              7.8              6.8              (1.3)                -                   1.01                      7.4 (0.7)
850 PURCHASING 5.0             5.0              5.0              4.9              (0.1)                -                   0.09                      5.0 (0.0)
855 CENTRAL SUPPLY 3.0             3.0              3.0              3.0              -                 -                   -                        3.0 0.0
870 DIETARY 17.6           18.4            18.0            16.7            (0.9)                -                   1.30                      17.2 (0.4)
871 DIETICIANS 1.3             1.4              1.5              1.5              0.2                 -                   0.04                      1.4 0.1
900 ADMINISTRATION 6.0             5.0              5.0              5.0              (1.0)                -                   -                        5.0 (1.0)
901 COMM SVC 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              -                 -                   -                        1.0 (0.0)
902 MED STAFF SVC 2.0             2.0              2.0              2.0              -                 -                   -                        2.0 0.0
903 MHSC FOUNDATION 1.5             1.0              1.0              1.0              (0.5)                -                   -                        1.1 (0.4)
904 VOLUNTEER SRV 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              -                 -                   -                        1.0 0.0
905 NURSING ADMIN 5.3             5.7              6.2              6.1              0.8                 -                   0.06                      5.9 0.6
907 PHYSICIAN RECRUIT 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              -                 -                   -                        1.0 0.0
910 INFORMATION SYSTEMS 8.0             8.1              8.1              8.1              0.1                 0.03                 -                        8.1 0.1

CHANGE FROM
LAST PAY PERIOD

Page 82 of 119Page 229 of 335



18 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 2 of 6 9/15/2017 9:23 AM

PPE 8/6/2017 8/20/2017 9/3/2017 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

920 HUMAN RESOURCES 4.7             4.7              4.8              4.9              0.2                 0.12                 -                        4.7 0.0
930 FISCAL SERVICES 5.0             4.8              4.8              4.8              (0.2)                -                   0.02                      4.9 (0.1)
940 BUSINESS OFFICE 14.8           14.5            14.6            14.6            (0.2)                -                   0.01                      14.7 (0.1)
941 ADMITTING 13.4           14.1            14.5            14.3            0.9                 -                   0.23                      14.4 1.0
942 COMMUNICATION 2.9             2.9              2.9              3.2              0.4                 0.30                 -                        3.0 0.2
943 CENTRAL SCHEDULING 4.0             3.8              3.9              3.9              (0.1)                -                   0.02                      3.9 (0.1)
949 DENKER 3.8             2.9              4.2              3.3              (0.5)                -                   0.91                      3.3 (0.5)
950 OLIVER 3.7             3.3              3.0              3.0              (0.7)                0.00                 -                        3.1 (0.6)
951 JOHNSON 4.3             5.7              4.0              3.2              (1.1)                -                   0.81                      4.6 0.3
953 STEWART 1.0             -              -              -              (1.0)                -                   -                        0.0 (1.0)
954 WHEELER 2.0             1.9              2.0              1.9              (0.1)                -                   0.08                      1.9 (0.1)
955 CHOU 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              -                 -                   -                        1.0 0.0
956 KATTAN 2.0             2.7              2.8              2.7              0.7                 -                   0.02                      2.7 0.7
958 VERONESE 2.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.0)                -                   -                        1.2 (0.9)
959 GREWAL 2.0             2.0              2.0              2.0              -                 -                   0.00                      2.2 0.2
960 SANDERS 2.0             2.2              2.2              2.1              0.1                 -                   0.07                      2.1 0.1
961 DANSIE 1.5             2.1              2.1              2.0              0.5                 -                   0.07                      2.1 0.6
962 BOWERS 1.5             1.7              1.6              1.8              0.3                 0.20                 -                        1.7 0.2
963 LONG 1.5             3.6              0.9              0.8              (0.7)                -                   0.10                      1.8 0.3
964 JAKE JOHNSON 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              -                 -                   -                        1.0 0.0
965 DOLCE 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.1              0.1                 0.10                 -                        1.0 0.0
966 OCC MED 2.0             2.2              2.2              2.2              0.2                 -                   0.03                      2.2 0.2
968 GILMARTIN 2.0             1.5              1.5              1.6              (0.4)                0.10                 -                        1.5 (0.5)
969 PAWAR 2.0             2.0              2.0              2.0              -                 -                   0.01                      2.1 0.1
970 CROFTS 1.3             1.0              1.0              1.1              (0.2)                0.10                 -                        1.0 (0.3)
971 WAMSUTTER CLINIC 1.5             1.6              1.6              1.5              0.0                 -                   0.10                      1.5 0.0
972 FARSON CLINIC -             -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        0.0 0.0
973 LAURIDSEN 1.5             0.9              0.9              0.9              (0.6)                -                   -                        0.9 (0.6)
974 SMG ADMIN/BILLING 24.9           19.1            19.9            19.2            (5.7)                -                   0.65                      20.1 (4.8)
975 NEUPANE 2.0             2.0              2.0              2.0              0.0                 0.02                 -                        2.0 0.0
976 LEHMAN 1.5             0.8              0.8              0.8              (0.7)                -                   -                        0.8 (0.7)
978 HOSPITALIST 4.2             5.2              5.2              5.2              1.0                 -                   -                        5.0 0.8
981 CROFT 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              -                 -                   -                        1.4 0.4
982 CHRISTENSEN 1.0             -              1.0              1.0              -                 -                   -                        0.4 (0.6)
983 MACK 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              -                 -                   -                        1.0 0.0
984 FRANKS 1.3             1.0              1.0              1.0              (0.3)                -                   -                        1.0 (0.3)
985 NELSON -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        0.0 0.0
986 BONGIORNO 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              -                 -                   -                        1.0 0.0
988 CURRY 3.5             3.6              3.4              3.9              0.4                 0.54                 -                        3.6 0.1
989 SHAMO -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        0.0 0.0
991 JAMIAS 1.3             1.0              1.0              1.0              (0.3)                -                   -                        1.0 (0.3)
992 ASPER 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              -                 -                   -                        1.2 0.2
993 LIU 2.0             2.0              2.0              2.0              -                 -                   0.01                      2.0 0.0
994 DUCK 1.5             1.3              0.3              1.2              (0.3)                0.91                 -                        0.9 (0.6)
995 A. BROWN 2.0             2.7              2.0              2.0              -                 -                   0.04                      2.2 0.2
996 SARETTE 0.6             -              0.8              -              (0.6)                -                   0.80                      0.3 (0.3)

TOTAL Paid FTEs 483.4         473.7          458.9          453.2          (30.2)          -                   5.69                      463.4           (20.0)            
TOTAL WORKED FTEs 439.9         419.5          408.5          413.8          (26.1)          5.29                 -                        408.2           (31.7)            

WORKED % Paid 91% 89% 89% 91% 0% 0.02                 -                        88% (0.0)                   

CONTRACT FTES (Inc above) 3.0 8.7 8.6 10.6 7.6             1.93            -                  10.6             7.6               

GROSS EMPLOYEE PAYROLL 1,599,017  1,541,454   1,431,668   1,453,741   (145,276)    22,073.47      -                        7,441,661       

 Average Employee Hourly Rate $41.35 $40.68 $38.99 $40.09 ($1.25) 1.10                 -                        #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Benchmark Paid FTEs 6.63           8.53            10.75          7.63            1.00           -              3.12                8.83 2.20             

per  Adj. Occupied Bed (APD)

WORKED FTEs (Including Contract)

600 MEDICAL FLOOR 28.0           24.9            23.1            21.7            (6.3)                -                   1.43                      22.9 (5.1)

Page 83 of 119Page 230 of 335



18 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 3 of 6 9/15/2017 9:23 AM

PPE 8/6/2017 8/20/2017 9/3/2017 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

605 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 7.3             6.7              6.0              7.4              0.1                 1.35                 -                        5.8 (1.4)
610 OB FLOOR 5.4             5.7              4.2              5.0              (0.3)                0.79                 -                        5.0 (0.4)
611 NURSERY 6.6             6.6              5.2              5.9              (0.7)                0.70                 -                        6.0 (0.7)
612 LABOR & DELIVERY 5.6             5.6              5.0              5.4              (0.1)                0.40                 -                        5.3 (0.3)
620 ICU 12.6           9.9              11.3            11.6            (1.0)                0.37                 -                        11.1 (1.6)
630 OR 12.1           13.3            12.4            13.1            1.0                 0.75                 -                        12.8 0.7
631 SAME DAY SURGERY 6.5             6.6              4.5              5.0              (1.5)                0.47                 -                        5.8 (0.7)
633 RECOVERY 1.8             2.6              2.2              2.6              0.7                 0.36                 -                        2.4 0.6
634 CENTRAL STERILE 2.8             2.4              2.0              2.7              (0.1)                0.69                 -                        2.4 (0.4)
640 DIALYSIS 4.6             4.7              4.5              4.4              (0.1)                -                   0.12                      4.5 (0.1)
650 ER 23.3           22.8            21.9            21.8            (1.5)                -                   0.13                      22.2 (1.1)
651 TRAUMA 0.9             1.4              1.3              1.2              0.3                 -                   0.10                      1.2 0.2
652 SANE 0.5             1.0              0.8              0.5              0.0                 -                   0.34                      0.7 0.2
660 RADIATION ONC 6.0             5.6              5.0              5.9              (0.1)                0.86                 -                        5.6 (0.4)
661 MEDICAL ONC 5.0             4.9              4.2              5.0              0.0                 0.82                 -                        4.7 (0.3)
700 LABORATORY 26.8           26.8            25.8            26.1            (0.8)                0.30                 -                        26.4 (0.4)
701 HISTOLOGY 1.8             1.8              1.8              1.7              (0.1)                -                   0.04                      1.8 (0.0)
702 BLOOD BANK 0.9             0.7              1.1              1.1              0.2                 -                   0.04                      1.0 0.1
710 RADIOLOGY 7.0             6.8              7.0              8.2              1.2                 1.20                 -                        7.3 0.3
711 MAMMOGRPAHY 1.8             1.1              1.1              1.1              (0.7)                -                   0.03                      1.1 (0.8)
712 ULTRASOUND 3.3             3.8              3.6              4.8              1.5                 1.14                 -                        4.0 0.7
713 NUC MED 1.7             1.2              1.6              1.6              (0.1)                0.02                 -                        1.5 (0.3)
714 CAT SCAN 4.6             4.6              4.9              3.9              (0.7)                -                   0.92                      4.6 (0.1)
715 MRI 0.9             1.0              1.0              1.0              0.1                 0.03                 -                        1.0 0.1
716 PET SCAN 0.1             -              0.1              -              (0.1)                -                   0.10                      0.0 (0.1)
720 RESPIRATORY 5.6             4.9              4.7              4.5              (1.0)                -                   0.13                      4.7 (0.8)
721 SLEEP LAB 1.6             1.1              1.3              1.8              0.2                 0.52                 -                        1.4 (0.2)
722 CARDIO 2.5             2.0              2.6              2.4              (0.2)                -                   0.22                      2.4 (0.1)
723 CARDIAC REHAB 2.2             1.9              2.3              2.0              (0.2)                -                   0.30                      2.1 (0.1)
730 PHYSICAL THERAPY 3.6             3.2              3.4              3.2              (0.5)                -                   0.27                      3.3 (0.3)
780 PATIENT ED 2.3             1.9              2.4              2.1              (0.2)                -                   0.27                      2.1 (0.1)
781 SOCIAL SERVICES 0.9             1.0              1.0              0.9              (0.0)                -                   0.13                      0.9 0.0
782 QUALITY & ACCREDIT 5.0             4.0              4.4              5.1              0.1                 0.64                 -                        4.4 (0.6)
783 INFECTION CONTROL 0.9             0.6              1.5              1.5              0.5                 -                   0.03                      1.2 0.3
784 COMPLIANCE 1.8             1.8              1.9              1.8              0.0                 -                   0.05                      1.8 (0.0)
786 NURSING INFORMATICS 2.7             2.9              2.9              2.4              (0.3)                -                   0.50                      2.6 (0.1)
790 HEALTH INFORMATION 10.6           10.3            11.8            10.7            0.0                 -                   1.16                      10.7 0.0
791 CASE MANAGEMENT 4.6             4.2              3.4              3.9              (0.7)                0.48                 -                        3.8 (0.8)
800 MAINTENANCE 10.0           9.4              9.3              9.9              (0.1)                0.68                 -                        9.0 (1.0)
801 HOUSEKEEPING 21.4           21.6            20.8            21.9            0.5                 1.15                 -                        21.4 0.0
802 LAUNDRY 5.9             4.6              4.6              4.3              (1.6)                -                   0.28                      4.8 (1.1)
803 BIO MED 1.8             0.9              1.0              0.8              (1.0)                -                   0.12                      0.8 (1.0)
810 SECURITY 7.4             7.1              6.4              5.8              (1.6)                -                   0.62                      6.0 (1.4)
850 PURCHASING 4.6             4.4              4.4              4.3              (0.3)                -                   0.16                      4.2 (0.3)
855 CENTRAL SUPPLY 2.7             2.5              2.6              2.3              (0.4)                -                   0.32                      2.4 (0.3)
870 DIETARY 16.1           16.5            16.5            15.1            (0.9)                -                   1.42                      15.3 (0.8)
871 DIETICIANS 1.2             1.3              1.3              1.4              0.2                 0.16                 -                        1.3 0.1
900 ADMINISTRATION 5.5             4.8              4.0              4.9              (0.6)                0.90                 -                        4.4 (1.1)
901 COMM SVC 0.9             1.0              1.0              1.0              0.1                 -                   -                        1.0 0.1
902 MED STAFF SVC 1.8             2.0              1.9              1.8              (0.1)                -                   0.14                      1.8 0.0
903 MHSC FOUNDATION 1.4             0.9              1.0              1.0              (0.4)                -                   -                        1.1 (0.3)
904 VOLUNTEER SRV 0.9             1.0              1.0              1.0              0.1                 -                   -                        0.9 (0.0)
905 NURSING ADMIN 4.8             4.9              5.6              5.8              1.0                 0.18                 -                        5.3 0.4
907 PHYSICIAN RECRUIT 0.9             1.0              1.0              1.0              0.1                 -                   -                        0.9 (0.0)
910 INFORMATION SYSTEMS 7.3             7.8              7.1              7.0              (0.2)                -                   0.04                      7.1 (0.2)
920 HUMAN RESOURCES 4.3             4.7              4.8              4.5              0.2                 -                   0.28                      4.3 0.1
930 FISCAL SERVICES 4.6             4.5              4.6              4.2              (0.3)                -                   0.36                      4.3 (0.3)
940 BUSINESS OFFICE 13.5           13.3            13.2            13.4            (0.1)                0.17                 -                        12.9 (0.6)
941 ADMITTING 12.2           13.0            13.6            13.5            1.3                 -                   0.17                      13.3 1.1
942 COMMUNICATION 2.6             2.7              2.6              2.8              0.2                 0.17                 -                        2.7 0.1
943 CENTRAL SCHEDULING 3.6             3.4              3.6              3.6              (0.0)                0.04                 -                        3.5 (0.2)
949 DENKER 3.5             2.9              2.4              1.9              (1.6)                -                   0.52                      2.6 (0.9)
950 OLIVER 3.4             2.9              2.8              2.7              (0.6)                -                   0.04                      2.7 (0.7)
951 JOHNSON 3.9             4.8              4.0              3.2              (0.7)                -                   0.86                      4.1 0.2
953 STEWART 0.9             -              -              -              (0.9)                -                   -                        0.0 (0.9)
954 WHEELER 1.8             1.6              2.0              1.9              0.1                 -                   0.08                      1.7 (0.1)
955 CHOU 0.9             1.0              1.0              1.0              0.1                 -                   -                        1.0 0.1
956 KATTAN 1.8             2.2              2.2              2.7              0.9                 0.50                 -                        2.3 0.5
958 VERONESE 1.8             1.0              -              1.0              (0.8)                1.00                 -                        0.7 (1.1)
959 GREWAL 1.8             2.0              2.0              1.0              (0.8)                -                   1.02                      1.6 (0.2)

Page 84 of 119Page 231 of 335



18 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 4 of 6 9/15/2017 9:23 AM

PPE 8/6/2017 8/20/2017 9/3/2017 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

960 SANDERS 1.8             2.0              1.7              2.0              0.2                 0.33                 -                        1.9 0.0
961 DANSIE 1.4             2.1              2.1              1.6              0.3                 -                   0.46                      1.8 0.4
962 BOWERS 1.4             1.5              1.6              1.3              (0.1)                -                   0.36                      1.4 0.0
963 LONG 1.4             1.9              0.8              0.8              (0.6)                -                   -                        1.4 0.1
964 JAKE JOHNSON 0.9             1.0              0.1              1.0              0.1                 0.88                 -                        0.8 (0.1)
965 DOLCE 0.9             0.9              0.9              0.6              (0.3)                -                   0.33                      0.9 (0.1)
966 OCC MED 1.8             2.1              2.2              2.2              0.4                 0.05                 -                        2.0 0.2
968 GILMARTIN 1.8             1.5              1.5              1.5              (0.4)                -                   0.03                      1.3 (0.5)
969 PAWAR 1.8             1.9              2.0              1.4              (0.4)                -                   0.60                      1.5 (0.3)
970 CROFTS 1.2             1.0              0.6              0.9              (0.3)                0.30                 -                        0.8 (0.4)
971 WAMSUTTER CLINIC 1.4             1.5              1.6              1.4              0.0                 -                   0.20                      1.4 0.0
972 FARSON CLINIC -             -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        0.0 0.0
973 LAURIDSEN 1.4             0.9              0.9              0.9              (0.5)                -                   -                        0.8 (0.6)
974 SMG ADMIN/BILLING 22.7           17.0            17.3            18.1            (4.6)                0.80                 -                        18.0 (4.6)
975 NEUPANE 1.8             1.2              2.0              2.0              0.2                 0.02                 -                        1.8 (0.0)
976 LEHMAN 1.4             0.8              0.8              0.7              (0.7)                -                   0.10                      0.7 (0.7)
978 HOSPITALIST 3.8             5.2              5.2              5.2              1.4                 -                   -                        5.0 1.2
981 CROFT 0.9             1.0              0.4              1.0              0.1                 0.60                 -                        0.8 (0.1)
982 CHRISTENSEN 0.9             -              1.0              0.8              (0.1)                -                   0.20                      0.4 (0.6)
983 MACK 0.9             0.4              0.8              1.0              0.1                 0.20                 -                        0.7 (0.2)
984 FRANKS 1.2             0.7              1.0              1.0              (0.2)                -                   -                        0.9 (0.3)
986 BONGIORNO 0.9             1.0              1.0              1.0              0.1                 -                   -                        1.0 0.1
988 CURRY 3.2             3.5              3.1              3.7              0.5                 0.63                 -                        3.3 0.1
991 JAMIAS 1.2             1.0              0.8              1.0              (0.2)                0.20                 -                        0.8 (0.4)
992 ASPER 0.9             1.0              0.8              0.9              (0.0)                0.10                 -                        0.8 (0.1)
993 LIU 1.8             2.0              2.0              1.9              0.1                 -                   0.12                      1.9 0.1
994 DUCK 1.4             1.0              0.3              0.3              (1.0)                0.06                 -                        0.6 (0.8)
995 A. BROWN 1.8             1.9              1.6              1.8              0.0                 0.20                 -                        1.7 (0.2)
996 SARETTE 0.6             -              0.8              -              (0.6)                -                   0.80                      0.3 (0.3)

TOTAL WORKED FTEs 439.9         419.5          408.5          413.8          (26.14)        5.29                 -                        408.2           (31.7)            

CNTRCT FTES (Inc above) 3.0                  8.7                   8.6                   10.6                 7.57           1.93                 -                        10.6             7.6               

OVERTIME HOURS Current PR
OT Dollars YTD HPurs

600 MEDICAL FLOOR 16.5            0.3              -              -                 -                   0.25                      18.3                  
605 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 22.8            6.5              10.5            218.83           4.00                 -                        41.0                  
610 OB FLOOR -              2.0              -              -                 -                   2.00                      8.5                    
611 NURSERY -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        1.8                    
612 LABOR & DELIVERY -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
620 ICU 6.8              16.0            2.0              27.88             -                   14.00                    59.0                  
630 OR 15.8            1.5              5.5              201.96           4.00                 -                        41.5                  
631 SAME DAY SURGERY -              5.0              3.5              144.48           -                   1.50                      15.0                  
633 RECOVERY -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
634 CENTRAL STERILE 2.5              2.3              -              -                 -                   2.25                      7.5                    
640 DIALYSIS 1.3              0.5              0.8              34.09             0.25                 -                        15.0                  
650 ER 0.8              54.5            8.8              404.73           -                   45.75                    155.5                
651 TRAUMA -              -              3.3              72.87             3.25                 -                        3.3                    
652 SANE 0.3              -              1.0              52.01             1.00                 -                        1.3                    
660 RADIATION ONC 0.5              0.3              9.0              638.50           8.75                 -                        15.5                  
661 MEDICAL ONC 0.8              0.3              -              -                 -                   0.25                      1.5                    
700 LABORATORY 12.3            10.5            13.0            381.22           2.50                 -                        100.3                
701 HISTOLOGY 0.5              -              -              -                 -                   -                        3.8                    
702 BLOOD BANK -              0.8              -              -                 -                   0.75                      2.0                    
710 RADIOLOGY 1.3              1.5              1.8              71.21             0.25                 -                        7.3                    
711 MAMMOGRPAHY -              -              1.0              33.01             1.00                 -                        1.0                    
712 ULTRASOUND 3.5              0.3              10.5            520.11           10.25              -                        14.5                  
713 NUC MED -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        0.3                    
714 CAT SCAN 1.5              0.8              5.3              179.42           4.50                 -                        8.8                    
715 MRI -              0.5              0.5              26.67             -                   -                        1.0                    
716 PET SCAN -              0.3              -              -                 -                   0.25                      0.3                    
720 RESPIRATORY 18.5            -              8.0              326.80           8.00                 -                        34.3                  
721 SLEEP LAB -              -              3.0              139.95           3.00                 -                        3.0                    
722 CARDIO 1.5              -              -              -                 -                   -                        1.5                    
723 CARDIAC REHAB -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
730 PHYSICAL THERAPY -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
780 PATIENT ED -              0.8              -              -                 -                   0.75                      1.0                    
781 SOCIAL SERVICES -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    

Page 85 of 119Page 232 of 335



18 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 5 of 6 9/15/2017 9:23 AM

PPE 8/6/2017 8/20/2017 9/3/2017 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

782 QUALITY & ACCREDIT 3.3              7.8              0.5              8.85               -                   7.25                      12.0                  
783 INFECTION CONTROL -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
784 COMPLIANCE -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        0.3                    
786 NURSING INFORMATICS -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
790 HEALTH INFORMATION -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        0.3                    
791 CASE MANAGEMENT 9.8              6.0              21.5            1,233.06       15.50              -                        51.5                  
800 MAINTENANCE 1.0              3.8              0.5              29.96             -                   3.25                      5.8                    
801 HOUSEKEEPING 9.0              2.0              23.8            468.85           21.75              -                        75.3                  
802 LAUNDRY 7.8              4.8              15.0            244.77           10.25              -                        40.0                  
803 BIO MED -              0.8              -              -                 -                   0.75                      1.0                    
810 SECURITY 7.8              16.5            22.0            649.24           5.50                 -                        78.0                  
850 PURCHASING -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        0.5                    
855 CENTRAL SUPPLY -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
870 DIETARY 48.8            34.8            20.5            409.82           -                   14.25                    206.8                
871 DIETICIANS -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
900 ADMINISTRATION -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
901 COMM SVC -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
902 MED STAFF SVC -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
903 MHSC FOUNDATION -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
904 VOLUNTEER SRV -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
905 NURSING ADMIN 6.0              46.8            11.0            683.81           -                   35.75                    74.3                  
907 PHYSICIAN RECRUIT -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
910 INFORMATION SYSTEMS -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
920 HUMAN RESOURCES -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
930 FISCAL SERVICES -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
940 BUSINESS OFFICE 3.0              0.3              4.5              171.69           4.25                 -                        15.5                  
941 ADMITTING 43.5            77.3            88.0            2,133.82       10.75              -                        379.5                
942 COMMUNICATION 3.0              2.5              0.3              4.01               -                   2.25                      6.0                    
943 CENTRAL SCHEDULING 2.0              0.3              2.5              54.83             2.25                 -                        5.8                    
949 DENKER 1.2              2.0              4.7              47.96             2.67                 -                        9.5                    
950 OLIVER 1.4              1.8              2.2              66.36             0.42                 -                        8.8                    
951 JOHNSON 0.9              1.3              1.7              47.84             0.41                 -                        5.0                    
953 STEWART -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
954 WHEELER 0.8              -              -              -                 -                   -                        0.8                    
955 CHOU -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
956 KATTAN 0.8              -              4.8              99.85             4.75                 -                        6.8                    
958 VERONESE -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
959 GREWAL 0.3              0.3              -              -                 -                   0.25                      0.5                    
960 SANDERS 14.5            15.8            9.8              306.54           -                   6.00                      55.5                  
961 DANSIE 2.6              3.4              0.8              40.67             -                   2.62                      10.4                  
962 BOWERS 1.3              1.0              2.8              65.73             1.75                 -                        6.0                    
963 LONG -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        1.0                    
964 JAKE JOHNSON -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
965 DOLCE -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        1.0                    
966 OCC MED 13.5            19.5            17.0            792.67           -                   2.50                      67.3                  
968 GILMARTIN 1.8              1.5              -              -                 -                   1.50                      4.9                    
969 PAWAR -              0.8              -              -                 -                   0.75                      3.3                    
970 CROFTS -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
971 WAMSUTTER CLINIC -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
972 FARSON CLINIC -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
973 LAURIDSEN -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
974 SMG ADMIN/BILLING 26.0            41.8            3.0              1,164.88       -                   38.75                    125.5                
975 NEUPANE 0.3              1.8              -              135.24           -                   1.75                      3.3                    
976 PA LEHMAN 2.6              3.4              0.8              40.67             -                   2.63                      10.4                  
978 HOSPITALIST -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
981 CROFT -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
982 CHRISTENSEN -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
983 MACK -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
984 FRANKS -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
986 BONGIORNO -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
988 CURRY 3.8              8.3              15.3            435.84           7.00                 -                        32.8                  
991 JAMIAS -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
992 ASPER -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    
993 LIU 0.3              0.5              -              -                 -                   0.50                      1.5                    
994 DUCK 0.3              0.5              -              -                 -                   0.50                      1.5                    
995 A. BROWN 1.8              1.5              -              -                 -                   1.50                      4.9                    
996 SARETTE -              -              -              -                 -                   -                        -                    

TOTAL OT HOURS 325.3          412.3          359.8          12,811       -                   52.50                   1,875.8        

Page 86 of 119Page 233 of 335



18 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 6 of 6 9/15/2017 9:23 AM

PPE 8/6/2017 8/20/2017 9/3/2017 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

TOTAL OT FTEs 4.1              5.2              4.5              -                   0.66                      4.7               
OT % WORKED HOURS 1.0% 1.3% 1.1% -                   0.2%

Page 87 of 119Page 234 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
OPEN BID INVESTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

08/31/17

INTEREST
ACCOUNT FINANCIAL INST RATE 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018
GENERAL BANK OF WEST 3.230% 8,700,000 8,710,751 5,295,564 4,330,411 4,362,377 4,368,503
RESERVE BANK OF WEST 3.230% 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000
GENERAL BANK OF WEST 1.250% 2,460,272 2,983,016 2,964,992 2,964,992
CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT KEYBANK 1.140% 13,539,405 13,001,178 12,299,119 9,231,852 8,253,433 8,253,433
E. BOICE WYOSTAR 0.993% 404,098 39 39 39 40 40
LIFELINE WYOSTAR 0.993% 104,078 104,294 104,607 104,934 105,575 105,750
TOTAL 24,047,580 23,116,262 21,459,601 17,950,252 16,986,416 16,992,716

INFORMATION:

CURRENT INVESTMENT BALANCE: 16,992,716.48$       

GENERAL FUND BALANCE AS OF 08/31/17 1,600,094                
REPRESENTING DAYS OF CASH ON HAND 7.6

RECOMMENDATION:

MAINTAIN FUNDS IN CURRENT INVESTMENTS DUE TO COMPETITIVE INTEREST RATES,
 AND LIQUIDITY OF FUNDS.

24,047,580 23,116,262
21,459,601

17,950,252
16,986,416 16,992,716

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

30,000,000

6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018

Page 88 of 119Page 235 of 335



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
Days of Cash on Hand

8/31/2017

237.36

154.07
135.26

106.86
91.17

105.12

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 YTD 2018

DAYS OF CASH ON HAND

152,647 161,980 

198,019 
228,512 226,999 230,244 179,717 

200,999 202,528 

240,227 245,026 
222,192 

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 YTD 2018

DAILY CASH COLLECTIONS/DAILY CASH EXPENSE

DAILY COLLECTIONS DAILY CASH EXPENSE

Page 89 of 119Page 236 of 335



Page 90 of 119Page 237 of 335



Vouchers Submitted by MHSC at agreed discounted rate

August 2017 $25,316.51
August 2017 $6,466.36
August 2017 $12,235.93

County Requested Total Vouchers Submitted as of August 31, 2017 $44,018.80

Total Vouchers Submitted FY 2018 $44,018.80

Less:  Total Approved by County and Received by MHSC FY 2018 $31,782.87

Total Vouchers Pending Approval by County $12,235.93

FY18 Title 25 Fund Budget from Sweetwater County $601,920.00

Funds Received From Sweetwater County $31,782.87

 FY18 Title 25 Fund Budget Remaining $570,137.13

Total Budgeted Vouchers Pending Submittal to County $0.00

FY17 Maintenance Fund Budget from Sweetwater County $608,812.00

County Maintenance FY18 - July $1,187.70
County Maintenance FY18 - August $512.64

$1,700.34

 FY18 Maintenance Fund Budget Remaining $607,111.66

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
County Voucher Summary

as of month ending August 31, 2017

Page 91 of 119Page 238 of 335



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Legal Fees By Fiscal Year

FY 2018
Dray, Dyekman, Reed & Healey PC $330.00
Hirst Applegate, LLP $25,721.45
Jamieson & Robinson, LLC $26,821.52
Phillips Law, LLC $39,932.35

Total FYTD 2018 $92,805.32

Page 92 of 119Page 239 of 335



Page 93 of 119Page 240 of 335



Page 94 of 119Page 241 of 335



Page 95 of 119Page 242 of 335



Page 96 of 119Page 243 of 335



Page 97 of 119Page 244 of 335



Page 98 of 119Page 245 of 335



Page 99 of 119Page 246 of 335



Page 100 of 119Page 247 of 335



Page 101 of 119Page 248 of 335



Page 102 of 119Page 249 of 335



Page 103 of 119Page 250 of 335



Page 104 of 119Page 251 of 335



Page 105 of 119Page 252 of 335



Page 106 of 119Page 253 of 335



Page 107 of 119Page 254 of 335



Page 108 of 119Page 255 of 335



Page 109 of 119Page 256 of 335



Page 110 of 119Page 257 of 335



Page 111 of 119Page 258 of 335



Page 112 of 119Page 259 of 335



Finance & Audit.ag15 Page 1 

 

Board Charter for Finance & Audit Committee  

                                                                                                                                     
                                                                                         

Category: Finance and Audit Committee 
Title: Finance and Audit Committee 
Original adoption: June 14, 2010 
Revision: 2017 
 
               
  

Purpose 
 
The purpose of the Finance and Audit Committee is to represent and assist the Board of 
Trustees (Board) in its fiduciary and oversight duties as set forth below. 
 

Responsibilities 
 
In fulfilling its charge, the Finance and Audit Committee is responsible for the following 
activities and functions:  

 Reviews, monthly, the financial status of the hospital and reports to the Board. 

 Reviews the fiscal year operating and capital budgets of the hospital prepared by Senior 
Leadership; makes recommendations to the Board regarding approval of said budgets.  

 Monitors the overall financial performance and risk of the hospital in light of approved 
budgets, long term trends, and industry standards. 

 Reviews on a regular basis hospital financial statements.  

 Reviews and recommends to Board all Capital purchases. 

 Recommends to the Board policies designed to strengthen the financial health of the 
hospital.  

 Recommends to the Board key financial objectives to be established and monitored. 

 Reviews hospital investments; makes recommendations to Senior Leadership as 
deemed desirable. 

 Monitors the hospital’s debt obligations; reviews borrowing initiatives proposed by 
Senior Leadership; makes recommendations to the Board as deemed necessary. 

 Reviews the Board’s policy regarding financial assistance for the poor and uninsured, in 
compliance with State statute 18-8-106. 

 Provides oversight over external auditing matters by: 
o Reviews the Board’s external auditing policy; recommends changes if deemed 

necessary. 

Board of Trustees Orientation Resource Handbook 

Page 113 of 119Page 260 of 335



Finance & Audit.ag15 Page 2 

 

o Recommends to the Board external auditors for the hospital after reviewing the 
composition of the audit team, proposed compensation, and other relevant 
matters. 

o Meets annually with the Board’s external auditors separate from Hospital 
management to review the annual audit and associated management letter. 

o Reviews audit findings and recommends to the Board any action plans that 
should be taken to strengthen internal controls and to otherwise improve the 
hospital’s accounting and management practices. 

o Makes other related recommendations to the Board associated with the auditing 
function. 

Composition 

The Finance and Audit Committee consists of two (2) members of the Board, including the 
Board treasurer, who functions as Chair, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial 
Officer serve as voting members of the committee.  The Controller, Director of Patient Financial 
Services, Director of Information Technology, and two physicians serve as non-voting members 
of the committee.  

Meeting Schedule 
Monthly; additional meetings may be called by the Committee Chair in consultation with the 
Chief Executive Officer, or as needed. 

Reports: 

The committee will receive and review the following reports, and provide the Board with an 
executive summary: 

• Monthly and annual financial statements to include: 

 Financial statements 
 Investment reports 
 Key financial ratios 
 Key operating benchmarks 
 Payor trend reports 

 Service line profit and loss, incorporated as part of monthly budget comparison report (not 
included in packet) 

 Chargemaster review every three years. 
•     Annual financial audit report and management letter.  
•     Annual financial contributions of physicians by specialty.  
 

Note: As used herein, the term “hospital” includes the “clinics” when such inclusion is 
appropriate 

Page 114 of 119Page 261 of 335



Finance & Audit.ag15 Page 3 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 115 of 119Page 262 of 335



1 
 

Board Policy 

                                                                                                                                   
                                                                                           

Category: Finance & Audit 
Title: Spending Authority and Matrix 
Original adoption: May 4, 2011 
Revision: 2017 
 
           
    
  

Purpose: The purpose of this policy is to establish rules and guidelines with respect 

to spending authority for employees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 
(MHSC). The dollar amount and nature of the expenditure ultimately determines the 
level of approval required. 
 

Policy:  Statutory authority for the purchase of goods and services for MHSC resides 

with its Board of Trustees. This policy delegates spending authority for items less than 
$25,000 to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and/or the Chief Financial Officer (CFO).  
Through the Spending Authority Matrix, the policy also sets forth guidelines for the 
procurement of goods and services that are equal to or greater than $25,000. 
 

Definitions: 

 
Physicians are the three groups of practitioners listed in the MHSC Medical Staff 
Bylaws (Physicians, Licensed Independent Practitioners, and Allied Health 
Professionals) 
 
Purchased Services are any service contracted for and performed by a third party 
rather than a hospital's in-house staff. 
 
Capital Purchases are buildings and equipment that ≥ $2,000 and a life of at least one 
year. 
 
Real Estate is property consisting of land and the buildings on it. 
 
Legal Settlements are the resolutions between MHSC and a person or entity without 
court action 

 
Procedure:  

1. The rules and guidelines of the Spending Authority Matrix shall be followed in 
delegating spending authority. 

Spending Authority Matrix 

Board of Trustees Policy Manual NO. FA 1-2011  

Page 116 of 119Page 263 of 335



2 
 

Type of Transaction Legal 
Review 

Leader 
Approval 

Board 
Approval 

Commissioner 
Approval 

Authorized 
Signature 

Physicians      

Acquisition of Practice Yes CEO Yes No CEO 
Employment>$100,000 Yes CEO Yes No CEO 
Consulting agreement >$25,000 Yes CEO Yes No CEO 

Purchased Services      

PO or check requests up to 
$1,000 

No Dept Director No No CEO,CFO 

PO or check requests up to 
$2,500 

No Senior Leader    

PO or check requests up to 
$25,000 

No CFO No No CEO,CFO 

PO or check requests ≥ $25,000 No CEO, CFO No No CEO,CFO 
Management agreements up to 
$25,000 

Yes CEO, CFO No No CEO,CFO 

Management agreements ≥ 
$25,000 

Yes CEO,CFO Yes No CEO,CFO 

Consulting agreements up to 
$25,000 

Yes CEO,CFO No No CEO,CFO 

Medical services up to $25,000 Yes CEO,CFO No No CEO,CFO 
Medical services ≥$25,000 Yes CEO,CFO Yes  No CEO,CFO 
Service contracts up to $25,000 Yes Dept Director No No  CEO,CFO 

Service contracts ≥$25,000 Yes CEO,CFO Yes No CEO,CFO 

Capital Purchases      

Unbudgeted items up to 
$10,000 

No Dept Director No No CEO,CFO 

Budgeted items up to $10,000 No CEO,CFO No No CEO,CFO 
Budgeted items up to $25,000 Yes CEO,CFO No No CEO,CFO 
Budgeted items ≥$25,000 Yes CEO,CFO Yes No CEO,CFO 

Real Estate      

Real estate acquisitions Yes CEO,CFO Yes Yes CEO 
Real estate leases up to $5,000 
per month 

Yes CEO,CFO Yes No CEO,CFO 

Real estate leases ≥$5,000 per 
month 

Yes CEO,CFO Yes No CEO,CFO 

Leases      

Leases, as leasee up to $2,000 
per month 

Yes CEO,CFO No Yes CEO,CFO 

Leases, as leasor ≥$2,000 per 
month 

Yes CEO,CFO Yes No CEO,CFO 

Legal Settlements      

w/insurance up to $25,000 Yes CEO No No CEO 
w/insurance ≥$25,000 Yes CEO Yes No CEO 

 

Page 117 of 119Page 264 of 335



3 
 

2. Departments must purchase goods and services as economically as possible 
according to the specified standards of quality and service while giving responsible 
suppliers fair consideration. 

3. Whenever appropriate, purchased goods and services shall occur through a 
competitive bid process that is publicly accountable, ethical, fair, and transparent. 

a. Items costing less than $2,000 do not require competitive quotes or put 
out for bid.  

b. Items costing between $2,000 and $10,000 require at least three 
competitive quotes. 

c. Items costing more than $10,000 must be put out for a formal bid. 
4. There may be occasions when a “sole source” provider is necessary, or highly 

desirable, which precludes the need for a competitive bid. 
5. Regardless of the situation, an individual cannot delegate authority down to 

another employee. Authority can only be delegated up to the individual’s 
supervisor or Chief Officer. 

6. Payment will be processed only for items purchased according to the above 
Matrix. 

7. All contracts with physicians must be signed by both the CEO and the CFO and 
approved by the Board of Trustees. 

8. All legal settlements will go through insurance, including those below the 
deductible amount. 

9. Except for the purchases that require the CEO’s signature, either the CEO or the 
CFO may sign for all other expenses. 

10. All designated signers for payment must complete a signature card; the original 
will be kept on file at the local financial institution(s) and a copy will be kept on 
file in the Finance Department. 

11. Payment for goods and services shall be made via checks drawn against Memorial 
Hospital of Sweetwater County demand deposit accounts, or electronic funds 
transfer, as authorized by the hospital administration and its Board of Trustees. 

12. In accordance with Hospital policy, the Hospital is responsible for the 
maintenance and storage of all contracts associated with these purchases.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 118 of 119Page 265 of 335



4 
 

Cover Check List 

 

This check list summarizes the purpose of the purchase, assures that the purchase has 
been reviewed by In-house legal counsel, and is ready for Board approval. 

1. Name of Item to be purchased: 

2. Purpose of good or service, including scope and description: 

3. Date of service execution: 

4. Date service expires: 

5. Rights of renewal and termination 

6. Monetary costs: 

7. Extraneous costs associated with contract: Such as installation, remodeling, etc 

8. Let for bid, if appropriate 

9. In-house Counsel approval 

Page 119 of 119Page 266 of 335



Page 267 of 335



Page 268 of 335



Page 269 of 335



Page 270 of 335



Page 271 of 335



Page 272 of 335



Page 273 of 335



Page 274 of 335



Page 275 of 335



Page 276 of 335



Page 277 of 335



Page 278 of 335



Page 279 of 335



Page 280 of 335



Page 281 of 335



Page 282 of 335



Page 283 of 335



Page 284 of 335



Page 285 of 335



Page 286 of 335



Page 287 of 335



Page 288 of 335



Page 289 of 335



Page 290 of 335



Page 291 of 335



Page 292 of 335



Page 293 of 335



Page 294 of 335



Page 295 of 335



Page 296 of 335



Page 297 of 335



Page 298 of 335



Page 299 of 335



 

  Page 1 of 1 

Confidential   9/29/2017 

Quality Committee Meeting 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

September 19, 2017 

 
 

Present:  Clayton Radakovich, Taylor Jones, Amanda Molski, Dr. Barbara Sowada, Dr. Kristy 

Nielson, Dr. Christian Theodosis, Kari Quickenden, Irene Richardson, Dr. David Liu, 

Suzanne Campbell, Jodi Corley 

 

Absent/Excused:  Tracie Soller, Kerry Marshall,  

 

Chair:   Taylor Jones   

       

Minutes 

Minutes were not available for approval; they will be brought forth next month for approval. 

 

Risk Management 

Mr. Radakovich brought forth a potential patient risk for discussion.  

 

ED Throughput 

Ms. Molski reported the numbers and Dr. Theodosis reiterated the statistics were good, although 

the volumes were down. The team continues to work on initiatives. Dr. Sowada questioned that 

providers were being called every 30 minutes for orders. The team explained that we are working 

on this process and bringing the Hospitalist on board. Dr. Theodosis noted some of the issues both 

with statistics and providers is some work arounds with the computer system. Ms. Molski will bring 

flow charts next month for review. 

 

Strategy and Vision for Quality 

Ms. Molski presented a PowerPoint explaining the vision and goal for the Quality Team. (See 

attached) Collectively the Senior Leadership and Board will look into contributing a Newsletter 

that will highlight the Organizational Chart, outlining duties, including plans and updates. This will 

be reiterated with Leadership rounding. 

 

Quality Charter 

Committee reviewed the Quality Board Charter, (see attached). Ms. Campbell will rework one 

section then the Quality Board Charter will be brought to the Board for final approval. 

 

Old Business 

No old business was brought forth for discussion. 

 

New Business 

No new business was brought forth for discussion. 
 

Adjournment   The meeting adjourned at 11:00 a.m. 

 

Next Meeting   Wednesday, October 18, 2017, 08:30 am, Classroom 1 & 2 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________________________      

Robin Fife, Recording Secretary 

 

Page 300 of 335



Page 301 of 335



Page 302 of 335



Page 303 of 335



Page 304 of 335



Page 305 of 335



Page 306 of 335



Page 307 of 335



Page 308 of 335



Page 309 of 335



Page 310 of 335



Page 311 of 335



Page 312 of 335



Page 313 of 335



Page 314 of 335



Page 315 of 335



Page 316 of 335



Page 317 of 335



Page 318 of 335



Page 319 of 335



Page 320 of 335



Page 321 of 335



Page 322 of 335



Page 323 of 335



Page 324 of 335



Page 325 of 335



Page 326 of 335



Page 327 of 335



Page 328 of 335



Page 329 of 335



Page 330 of 335



Page 331 of 335



Page 332 of 335



Page 333 of 335



Page 334 of 335



Page 335 of 335


	Meeting Book
	meeting book - wednesday - october 4, 2017 board of trustees regular meeting.pdf


